ENVIRONMENT & TRANSPORT CABINET COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 28th November, 2018

10.00 am

Council Chamber - Sessions House

\_ /

Council

kent.gov.uk







Kent

County
Council

kent.gov.uk

AGENDA

ENVIRONMENT & TRANSPORT CABINET COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 28 November 2018 at 10.00 am Ask for: Georgina Little
Council Chamber - Sessions House Telephone: 03000 414043

Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the start of the meeting

Membership (16)

Conservative (12): Mr M A C Balfour (Chairman), Mr M D Payne (Vice-Chairman),
Mr A Booth, Mr T Bond, Mr A Cook, Mr N J Collor, Mr S Holden,
Mr A R Hills, MrR C Love, MrP J Messenger, MrJ M Ozog and
Mr H Rayner

Liberal Democrat (2): Mr | S Chittenden and Mr A J Hook

Labour (1) Mr B H Lewis

Independents (1) Mr M E Whybrow

Webcasting Notice

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for the live or subsequent broadcast via the
Council’s internet site or by any member of the public or press present. The Chairman will
confirm if all or part of the meeting is to be filmed by the Council.

By entering into this room you are consenting to being filmed. If you do not wish to have
your image captured please let the Clerk know immediately

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1 Introduction/Webcast announcement

2 Apologies and Substitutes
To receive apologies for absence and notification of any substitutes present

3  Declarations of Interest by Members in items on the Agenda

To receive any declarations of interest made by Members in relation to any matter on
the agenda. Members are reminded to specify the agenda item number to which it
refers and the nature of the interest being declared.

4  Minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2018 (Pages 7 - 16)



10

To consider and approve the minutes as a correct record.

Dates of future meetings for 2019/2020

The Cabinet Committee is asked to note that the following dates have been
reserved for its meetings in 2019/20:

Friday 24 May 2019
Tuesday 16 July 2019
Thursday 10 October 2019
Friday 29 November 2019
Friday 24 January 2020
Tuesday 24 March 2020
Friday 15 May 2020

All meetings will take place at County Hall, Maidstone, and will commence at 10:00
am.

Verbal Update

To note the written/verbal update from the Cabinet Member for Community &
Regulatory Services and the Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport
and Waste.

Lower Thames Crossing (Presentation)

Performance Dashboard (Pages 17 - 26)
To note the report.

Update on Preparedness to Respond to Brexit - Transport, Borders and Emergency
Planning (Pages 27 - 32)

To note and discuss the planning and preparedness of services set out in the report.

Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013 - 2030 Early Partial Review, Kent Mineral
Sites Plan and revised Local Development Scheme (Pages 33 - 626)

The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked to:

(i) consider and endorse, or make recommendations to the Cabinet Member
responsible for the Minerals and Waste Local Plan on the proposed:

(a) Pre-submission Draft of the Kent Mineral Sites Plan;
(b) Pre- submission Draft of the Early Partial Review of the Kent Minerals and
Waste Local Plan; and,

(c) the updated Local Development Scheme (revised timetable) to reflect changes
to the programme and timetable concerning preparation of the Local Plan work.

(i) note that the decision to approve the Pre-submission Drafts Plans for
submission to the Secretary of State for independent examination is a matter for
County Council;



11

12

13

14

15

(iii) request the County Council to:

(c) Approve and publish the Pre-Submission Drafts of the Kent Mineral Sites Plan
and the Early Partial Review of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan for a
statutory period of representation and to submit the Draft Plans to the Secretary
of State for independent examination; and

(d) delegate powers to the Corporate Director for Growth, Environment & Transport
to approve any non-material changes to the Mineral Sites Plan and Early Partial
Review of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan in consultation with the
Deputy Leader prior to their publication and during their examination.

Kent & Medway Energy & Low Emissions Strategy - Emerging evidence and
priorities (Pages 627 - 634)

To consider and make recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Planning,
Highways, Transport and Waste as to the:

1. Progress in and proposed timelines for the development of the Strategy; and

2. The Themes and Project Models proposed in the TRI-LEP Energy Strategy
outlined in Section 3, and their relevance to the Kent and Medway Strategy.

Key Street and Grovehurst Road Junction Improvements, A249 (Pages 635 - 654)

To note the progress made to date on the preparation of the full business case for
submission to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government as part
of the Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF) bid process.

18/00064 - A28 Thanet - Road Asset Renewal and Strengthening Works (Pages 655
- 668)

To consider and endorse, or make recommendations to the Cabinet Member for
Planning, Highways, Transport & Waste, on:

(i) the proposed works to renew and strengthen the A28 road surface between
Birchington and Margate; and

(ii) the delegation to the Corporate Director of Growth, Environment & Transport,
under the Officer Scheme of Delegations, to take further or other decisions as
may be appropriate to deliver the scheme in accordance with these
recommendations

18/00007 - Revision of the Rights of Way Improvement Plan (Pages 669 - 762)

To consider and endorse or make recommendations to the Cabinet Member for
Community and Regulatory Services on the proposed decision to adopt and publish
the Rights of Way Improvement Plan 2018.

Bus Summit - Big Conversation Update (Pages 763 - 772)
To note the report.



16 Work Programme 2019-20 (Pages 773 - 778)

The Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and agree its Work Programme for
2019/20.

17 Contract Management/ Procurement - Public Rights of Way Vegetation Clearance
(Pages 779 - 784)

To note and comment on the contents of this report.

Benjamin Watts
General Counsel
03000 416814

Tuesday, 20 November 2018

Please note that any background documents referred to in the accompanying papers maybe
inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant report.



Agenda Item 4

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

ENVIRONMENT & TRANSPORT CABINET COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Environment & Transport Cabinet Committee held in
the Council Chamber - Sessions House on Thursday, 20 September 2018.

PRESENT: Mr M D Payne (Vice-Chairman), Mr M A C Balfour, Mr A Booth,
Mr N J Collor, Mr S Holden, MrARHils, MrRCLove, MrP JMessenger,
Mr | S Chittenden, Mr A J Hook, Mr B H Lewis, Mr M E Whybrow and Mr H Rayner

ALSO PRESENT: Mr M Hill, OBE (Cabinet Member for Community and Regulatory
Services) and Mr M Whiting (Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport and
Waste).

IN ATTENDANCE: Mrs B Cooper (Corporate Director of Growth, Environment and
Transport), Simon Jones (Director of Highways, Transportation and Waste), Katie
Stewart (Director of Environment, Planning and Enforcement) and Georgina Little
(Democratic Services Officer).

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

111. Membership
(Item 2)

1. Mr Payne welcomed Mr M Balfour and Mr H Rayner as new Members to the
committee

2. RESOLVED that the membership change be noted.

112. Apologies and Substitutes
(Iltem 3)

Apologies were received from Mr T Bond and Mr A Cook.

113. Election of Chairman
(Item 4)

1. Mr M Payne proposed, seconded by Mr A Hills that Mr M Balfour was elected
as Chairman of this Cabinet Committee.

2. RESOLVED that Mr M Balfour was elected Chairman to the Environment and
Transport Cabinet Committee.

114. Declarations of Interest by Members in items on the Agenda
(ltem 5)

Mr B Lewis declared an interest as an employee of Lake Market Research
which was used as part of the bus consultation.

Page 7



115. Minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2018
(Item 6)

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 13t July 2018 are a
correct record and that they be signed by the Chairman.

116. Verbal Update
(ltem 7)

1.

Mr M Hill (Cabinet Member for Community and Regulatory Services) informed
the Committee that the Natural Ways to Wellbeing was a project run by the
Countryside Partnership and Mind to help those with Mental Health problems
engage with nature using elements of ecology. Mr Hill appreciated the level of
support shown by the Dartford Members through their contribution of Member
grants.

Mr Hill said that the Ash Dieback art project, run by the Kent Downs Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) was launched on 14t September. The
project aimed to raise awareness of the urgent cultural response required to
tackle the demise of the ash trees. Mr Hill informed Members that it was
expected that the Ash tree population would decline by 98%. Research was
being carried out to try and develop a disease resistant strain and this could
be used to plant replacement trees, however, this was not a cure.

. Mr Whiting (Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport and Waste)

confirmed that the A26 sink hole was due to be completed by the 7 October
2018, subject to weather conditions and third parties meeting their agreed
installation dates.

. Further to the report to an earlier E&T Cabinet Committee regarding the

proposed consultation on charging for non-household waste, the consultation
had started and due to close on 1 November 2018, following which a decision
would be made on whether Kent County Council introduced a charge for such
waste. Mr Whiting also informed the Committee of the extended opening hours
at Dartford, Maidstone and Swanley HWRC’s, with a 6pm closure on
Wednesdays and a 6.30pm closure on Thursdays. The extended hours would
be gradually reduced through September.

Mr Whiting said that Highways England was preparing a Development
Consent Order (DCO) which would form part of the initial process for the
Statutory Consultation on the Lower Thames Crossing. Mr Whiting assured
Members that the response would be presented to the Committee prior to its
submission. The Lower Thames Crossing Consultation was due to start in
October 2018.

(a) In response to Members concerns regarding the Crossrail 1 Line to Abbey
Woods, Mr Whiting confirmed that the DFT had announced that this had

Page 8



been delayed until the autumn of 2019. With regards to Thameslink
changes Mr Whiting said that getting the service right was fundamental.
Maidstone would start to see the benefit of the changes by December 2019
and Kent County Council fully supported this position. Mr Whiting agreed to
chase the response from Joseph Johnson (Minister of State, Department for
Transport).

(b) Mr Whiting confirmed that data had been received from the Lower Thames
Crossing on the proposed traffic modelling and said that this would be
available to Members in conjunction with the final consultation report.

(c) In response to non-household waste, Mr Whiting confirmed that there was a
definitive list of non-household waste items that would be circulated to
Members of the Committee.

6. RESOLVED that the verbal updates be noted, with thanks.

117. Performance Dashboard
(Item 8)

Richard Fitzgerald (Business Intelligence Manager, Performance, Strategic
Business, Development &lntelligence) was in attendance for this item.

1.

Mr Fitzgerald introduced the Performance Dashboard which showed progress
made against targets set for Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) up to the end
of July 2018. Mr Fitzgerald advised the committee that the data for ‘DT06 —
Percentage for Highway Licence applications completed online’ was available
and should have been included within the published dashboard.

In response to Members queries regarding DT04, Mr Fitzgerald agreed to
correct the wording.

In response to Members concerns regarding the newly adopted incentivised
model and the proportion of waste diverted from landfill, Mr S Jones (Director
of Highways, Transportation and Waste) said that the Districts involved had
shown a positive improvement. He informed Members that whilst the figure for
landfill waste remained relatively low and was within the set target level, the
key areas of concern were those that posed a hazardous risk such as animal
and asbestos disposal. Mr Jones said that the incentivised model could be
adopted by other District Councils, however, the model would need to be
compatible and phased in gradually.

. Members raised concern regarding the Year to Date figure of the LED

Streetlight conversions. Mr Jones said that Kent Count Council had recently
awarded the maintenance contract to Bouygues Energies and Services
Infrastructure UK Ltd. (BYESs). Prior to the this, streetlighting maintenance was

Page 9



9.

provided through the highways term maintenance Mr Jones was confident that
the new supplier would improve the LED repair rates.

In response to the management of footways, Mr Whiting agreed to consider a
Key Performance Indicator to monitor these going forward.

Members questioned the measures put in place to tackle fly-tipping as a result
of charging for municipal waste, Mr Whiting said that work would continue to
be done with the District Councils and partner agencies to monitor fly-tipping.
Mr Whiting reiterated to Members that the consultation on charging for non-
household waste items had commenced and that a decision would only be
made once the public view had been sought.

In response to Members queries regarding the effectiveness of the new
pothole repair procedures, Mr Jones said that an additional £10 million had
been budgeted for to assist with further repairs. The Pothole Blitz was a
proactive campaign that helped the Highways Team to identify immediate
risks, trial new treatments and create an intelligence led approach to ensure
well informed decisions in the future.

Members commended the work of the officers and furthermore, commended
Mr Love for his work on the Kent Resource Partnership

RESOLVED that the reported be noted.

118. Big Conversation
(Iltem 9)

Phil Lightowler (Head of Public Transport) was in attendance for this item.

1.

Mr M Whiting (Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport and Waste)
introduced the report which provided Members with an update on the progress
of the Big Conversation Consultation and the next stage of the programme. Mr
Whiting took the opportunity to thank Rob Clarke (Project Manager), Phil
Lightowler (Head of Public Transport) along with all colleagues, Members and
Parish Councillors for their extensive work and input at all public meetings.

Mr Lightowler said that the consultation sought to understand community
views on three proposed ideas: feeder services, bookable services and taxi-
bus services, the concept of which was to link communities without routes to
mainline services. The Big Conversation Consultation was supported through
a series of public meetings and a survey which received 2355 responses. The
next stage of the programme involved analysing the responses which would
help to inform the development of the pilot schemes. An update report would
then be presented to the Programme Board and then to the Cabinet Member
for approval. A final report would be considered by the Environment and

Page 10



Transport Cabinet Committee Mr Lightowler informed the Committee that the
Bus Summit was due to be held on 30 October 2018 and details of the event
were within the report if Members wished to attend. Mr Whiting confirmed that
the Bus Summit would be webcast to facilitate those who could not attend.

3. In response to Members concerns regarding the £18 per person subsidy
figure, Mr Whiting clarified that the objective of the consultation was not solely
about buses - it was to identify ways in which Kent County Council could save
money on the expensive subsidies and how these could be reinvested into
rural areas to improve and/or provide public transportation. The specific
question around whether people were willing to pay towards an improved
public transport service was asked at every meeting, however, the response to
this question was not yet known and would be available in the published Lake
Market Research report. Mr Whiting said that there was a £0.5 million budget
set aside to facilitate the pilot schemes, however, the pilots would not be
introduced until 2019. The criteria against which the three ideas were being
evaluated against were set out at paragraph 3.2 on page 33 of the agenda.

4. Mr Lightowler assured members that the English National Concessionary
Travel Scheme (ENCTS) permits were a statutory obligation for Kent County
Council and those who were entitled to and used an ENCTS permit would not
be required to pay for public transportation. There were no proposals to
introduce charging, however, Mr Lightowler acknowledged that this had been
a major misconception reported throughout the Big Conversation. The
Consultation focused on very new and radical ideas that addressed issues of
entitted ENCTS users not having access to bus services and asked those
users for their views on whether they would be willing to pay a voluntary
contribution to fund a bus service.

5. In response to queries regarding the Equality Impact Assessment (EQIA), Mrs
Cooper said that the EQIA was a living document and that the initial
assessment was carried out in June 2018. A revised EQIA would be published
following the feedback from the consultation.

6. Members commended the work and support of all staff and Members involved
in the Big Conversation Consultation.

7. RESOLVED that the report be noted.

119. Kent & Medway Energy & Low Emissions Strategy - Emerging evidence
and priorities
(ltem 10)

Carolyn McKenzie (Head of Sustainable Business and Communities) and
Deborah Kapaj (Sustainable Estates Programme Manager, Sustainable Business
and Communities) were in attendance for this item.

Page 11



1.

Mr Payne (Deputy Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport and
Waste) introduced the report that provided Members with an update on the
development of an Energy and Low Emissions Strategy for Kent and Medway
and the emerging priorities for action.

Ms McKenzie said that the paper was a further update to the report presented
to the Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee in May 2018 which set
out the evidence base and suggested actions for early consultation feedback.
The on-going development of the strategy would continue to be informed
through extensive engagement with stakeholders and the Kent Environment
Strategy Cross Party Members Group. Ms McKenzie highlighted to the
Committee the five key themes (pages 54 — 57) and the potential options for
action, which included:

e Leadership and Governance

e Evidence and Intelligence

e Policy, Planning and Guidance

e Financing and Investment

e Communications and Engagement

Ms McKenzie concluded that the specific costed measures had not yet been
defined, however, the evidence gathered indicated a clear need for further
action in Kent with support from District Partners, the Kent and Medway
Economic Partnership and the SE Local Enterprise Partnership to deliver
sustainable growth, improve health outcomes and address the risks of climate
change. The proposed initiatives would be presented to the Committee at a
later date and assurance was given to Members that the proposals would be
evaluated using a business case, value for money approach with external
funding to ensure maximum impact.

In response to Members queries, Ms McKenzie confirmed that the preparation
of the action plan had been moved to the autumn as complex areas required
further research. Further work was also needed to be undertaken with partners
to ensure a cohesive strategy.

With regard to anti-idling policies, work had been done in conjunction with
Canterbury District Council to implement an anti-idling policy in an attempt to
reduce pollution. Work had also been carried out with Licencing authorities
which looked at providing taxi ranks with electric charging points.

Ms McKenzie explained that many of the potential actions to improve energy
and low emissions could not be enforced by Kent County Council, however,
the Council was exploring the feasibility of those options which was why the
report used terminology like ‘exploration.’

Page 12



6. In response to nuclear sources and emission levels, Ms McKenzie said that
the paper focused primarily on the work that had already began, however,
Districts had raised questions concerning nuclear power sources and work
around this would be considered. In regard to fusion production, Ms McKenzie
hoped that the strategy would contain a section that looked at all types of new
technology and the feasibility work required around these types of technology.
Ms McKenzie agreed to look at whether a breakdown of the fuel consumption
could be provided to Members.

7. Mr Whiting commended the work of Mr Payne who was leading on the Energy
and Low Emissions Strategy for Kent and Medway and all the officers
involved.

8. RESOLVED that the:
(a) evidence gathered to date and emerging analysis; and

(b) the proposed themes and potential actions outlined in Section 5, to help
shape the final draft strategy,

be noted.

120. Approach to Managing Highway Structures
(ltem 11)

Andrew Loosemore (Head of Highways Asset Management) and Kathryn
Moreton (Asset Management, Drainage, Structures and Safety Barriers) were in
attendance for this item.

1. Mr M Whiting (Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport and Waste)
introduced the report that outlined the approach taken by the Highways Asset
Management team in managing highway structures in Kent, with specific
reference to sub-standard highway structures. Mr Whiting was pleased to
announce that there had been no structural failures resulting in injury reported
in the last 30 years.

2. Mr Loosemore assured Members that the management of highway structures
was underpinned by a regime of regular inspections and quality control
processes to reduce the deterioration and degradation of bridges. The report
demonstrated the process for identifying substandard structures and the
resources available to do so.

3. Mrs Moreton said that each year the RAC Foundation would submit a
Freedom of Information (FOI) request to all bridge authorities in England
seeking data on the condition of substandard structures (bridges over a 1.5m
span). The RAC Foundation report revealed that 4.4% of bridges were

Page 13



deemed to be substandard and did not meet the current loading
requirements. In Kent however, the number of substandard bridges sat at
3.8% which was below the national average. The report also identified that it
would cost £934 million to repair all substandard structures within England
which would be equivalent to £271,000 per structure. Mrs Moreton said that
whilst there had been 39 substandard structures identified in Kent, this was a
consistent figure and was below the national average.

4. In response to Members queries, Mr Loosemore said that the mitigating

measures in place ensured safety for the road user and the structure itself
and this was monitored on a regular basis. Whilst there was a need for further
funding, the approach to managing structures was based on risk. Those
structures identified as an immediate risk would be completed as a priority
and those that could not be addressed in the same year would continue to
have regular inspections and mitigating measures would be put in place to
ensure the safety of the structure and the road user. Mr Loosemore confirmed
that structures submerged in water received specialist underwater
inspections.

5. Mrs Moreton said that highway bridges were subject to a principle inspection,

however, should concerns arise then a more comprehensive inspection would
also be carried out with increased monitoring every three to six months to
identify degradation of structures that may be deemed to be more complex.

6. RESOLVED that the report be noted.

121. Winter Service Policy for 2018/19
(ltem 12)

Carol Valentine (Highway Manager, West) was in attendance for this item.

1.

Mr M Whiting (Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport and Waste)
introduced the report that set out the revisions to the Winter Service Policy. Mr
Whiting said that there had been no substantive changes to the general
custom and practice in which the Highways Team operate in terms of
managing the winter service, the changes within the policy were simply to
reflect that practice.

Mrs Valentine drew Members attention to page 84 of the agenda which
highlighted the work that had been done over the summer to improve the
winter service. The three key changes to the policy included: the Smart Winter
Project whereby additional sensors would be used to monitor the road surface
temperatures which would in turn provide data to optimise primary routes; the
optimisation of secondary routes; and the farmers gritting trial which again, fed
into optimising resources and looking at possible secondary routes. Mrs

Page 14



Valentine advised the Committee that the Equality Impact Assessment was
available and would be circulated to Members.

3. In response to the minimum salt stock levels, Mrs Valentine said that there
was 16,800 tonnes of salt which was sufficient and would cover the entire
winter period.

4. Mrs Valentine confirmed that Parish Seminars were due to take place in
November 2018 and the Winter Service Policy would be a key item on the
agenda for discussion.

5. In response to queries regarding media and communication, Mr Loosemore
agreed that communication was essential during the winter season and was a
valuable asset during the Beast from the East in helping to keep people safe.
There was guidance issued by the Department for Transport (DfT) which was
available on the Kent County Council website, however, work continued to be
done on improving public guidance.

6. RESOLVED that the proposed changes to the Winter Service Policy for
2018/19 to include the following:

(s.5.5.4) Observational data from road weather sensors will be used to
validate pre-salting decisions

(s. 6.1.1) Secondary routes to be treated when all primary routes treated and
resources available

(s. 6.4.2) Farmers trial to be expanded

be noted.

122. Work Programme for 2018/19
(Item 13)

1. Mrs Cooper (Corporate Director of Growth, Environment and Transport)
informed the Committee that the Kent Port Access Contingency Planning
item had been deferred to the November Cabinet Committee due to the
complex nature of the work involved. The Members request to address
concerns regarding the management of traffic and freight was
acknowledged.

2. RESOLVED that the Work Programme be noted subject to the inclusion of
the following items:

(a) A factual report on the progress of the Manston Airport Development
Consent Order

Page 15



(b) A progress report on the railroad ferry service into Ramsgate

123. Street Lighting Term Services Contract
(ltem 14)

Andrew Loosemore (Head of Highways Asset Management) and Sue Kinsella
(Streetlighting Asset Management) were in attendance for this item.

1.

Mr M Whiting (Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport and Waste)
introduced the report that provided an overview of the Street Lighting Term
Services Contract. Mr Whiting was pleased to announce that the project was
the largest of its type in the UK and had been successful in delivering on time,
within budget and with very few complaints due to the strong partnership
between the staff at Bouygues Energies and Services Infrastructure UK Ltd.
(BYEs) and the officers within Kent County Council.

Mr Loosemore informed the Committee that Kent County Council had entered
into a fifteen-year term Maintenance Contract with BYEs as of 1st September
2018. The LED conversion project was valued at £40 million and required a
specific team to manage the contract and all aspects of eventualities to ensure
a high standard of service deliverance.

Ms Kinsella informed the Committee that as of June 2018, a total of 100,000
conversions has been completed. In recognition of the success of the project
and its achievements in reducing energy consumption and carbon emissions,
the Highways Asset Management Team would be attending the Highway
Magazine Awards as finalists on 17 October 2018.

In response to queries regarding the number of LED conversions in Thanet,
Ms Kinsella confirmed that there was 15,000 still needing completion across
the county. The process had been prolonged in Thanet as the LED
conversions could not take place until the concrete columns had been
replaced.

Ms Kinsella confirmed that Kent County Council maintained streetlighting for
seven District Councils. A record of ownership for each streetlight was
available and should Members have a query regarding this, the Streetlight
Asset Management Team would be able to assist.

RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted.

Page 16



Agenda Item 8

From: Mike Whiting, Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport
and Waste

Barbara Cooper, Corporate Director of Growth, Environment and

Transport

To: Environment & Transport Cabinet Committee — 28" November
2018

Subject: Performance Dashboard

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary:

The Environment and Transport Performance Dashboard shows progress made
against targets set for Key Performance Indicators. The latest Dashboard has data up
to September 2018.

Recommendation(s):
The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked to NOTE the report.

1. Introduction

1.1. Part of the role of Cabinet Committees is to review the performance of the
functions of the Council that fall within the remit of the Committee.

1.2. To support this role, Performance Dashboards are regularly reported to each
Cabinet Committee throughout the year, and this is the third report for the
2018/19 financial year.

2. Performance Dashboard

2.1. The current Environment and Transport Performance Dashboard is attached at
Appendix 1.

2.2. The Dashboard provides a progress report on performance against target for the
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) included in this year’s Directorate Business
Plan.

2.3. The current Dashboard provides results up to the end of September 2018.

2.4. The Dashboard also includes a range of activity indicators which help give
context to the Key Performance Indicators.

2.5. Key Performance Indicators are presented with RAG (Red/Amber/Green) alerts
to show progress against targets. Details of how the alerts are generated are
outlined in the Guidance Notes, included with the Dashboard in Appendix 1.

2.6. Latest performance is ahead of target for all but one of the key performance

indicators in Highways & Transportation. Emergency incidents attended within 2
hours was 1% behind target during September with difficulty responding to all

Page 17



2.7.

2.8.

2.9.

drainage incidents within 2 hours during periods of heavy rainfall. Activity levels
remain high due to the knock-on effect of the severe late winter weather.

Performance is ahead of target for all Waste Management indicators, with the
exception of waste recycled and composted at Household Waste Recycling
Centres (HWRCs). Overall recycling rates for the county have shown a slight
decline this year from a peak of 49.9% last year. HWRCs saw a decline in
recycling rates last year and recycling levels have not improved this year.

For digital take-up, four indicators are ahead of target and three behind target,
two of which had their targets increased compared to last year. Actions are in
place to improve performance against these indicators. Digital take up for Young
Persons Travel Pass applications was slightly lower than at the same time last
year, but the figures for the year are expected to improve when half year passes
are renewed in January.

For Environment, Planning and Enforcement, both indicators are meeting target.
Greenhouse Gas emissions have reduced significantly ahead of the stretching
target, with LED streetlight conversions being the major reason for this
improvement.

3. Recommendation(s):
The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked to NOTE this report.

4,

Background Documents

The Council’s Business Plans:

http://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/strategies-and-policies/corporate-

policies/business-plans

5.

Contact details

Report Author: Richard Fitzgerald
Business Intelligence Manager - Performance
Strategic Commissioning - Analytics
03000 416091
Richard.fitzgerald@kent.gov.uk

Relevant Director: Barbara Cooper
Corporate Director, Growth, Environment and Transport
03000 415981
Barbara.Cooper@kent.gov.uk

Page 18



http://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/strategies-and-policies/corporate-policies/business-plans
http://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/strategies-and-policies/corporate-policies/business-plans
mailto:richard.fitzgerald@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Barbara.Cooper@kent.gov.uk

6T abed

Appendix 1

Environment and Transport
Performance Dashboard

Financial Year 2018/19
Results up to September 2018

Produced by Strategic Commissioning - Analytics

Publication Date: October 2018




0z abed

Appendix 1

Guidance Notes

Data is provided with monthly frequency except for Waste Management where indicators are reported with quarterly frequency and on
the basis of rolling 12 month figures, to remove seasonality.

RAG RATINGS

Target has been achieved

Floor Standard achieved but Target has not been met

m Floor Standard has not been achieved

Floor standards are set in Directorate Business Plans and if not achieved must result in management action.

DOT (Direction of Travel)

ﬁ Performance has improved in the latest month/quarter
@ Performance has worsened in the latest month/quarter
& Performance is unchanged this month/quarter

Activity Indicators

Activity Indicators representing demand levels are also included in the report. They are not given a RAG rating or Direction of Travel
alert. Instead they are tracked within an expected range represented by Upper and Lower Thresholds. The Alert provided for Activity
Indicators is whether they are in expected range or not. Results can either be in expected range (Yes) or they could be Above or
Below.



Key Performance Indicators Summary

Month

Highways and Transportation

HTO1 : Potholes repaired in 28 calendar
days (routine works not programmed)
HTO2 : Faults reported by the public
completed in 28 calendar days

HTO3 : Streetlights repaired in 28
calendar days

HTO4 : Customer satisfaction with
service delivery (100 Call Back)

HTO08 : Emergency incidents attended to
within 2 hours

HT11c : Number of LED streetlight
conversions (since start of programme)

YTD

T¢ abed

Waste Management

RAG reported for rolling 12 month

WMO1 : Municipal waste recycled and composted

WMO2 : Municipal waste converted to energy

WMO01 + WMO02 : Municipal waste diverted from landfill

WMO3 : Waste recycled and composted at HWRCs

Appendix 1

Digital Take up — reported year to date

YTD
RAG

DTO1 : Percentage of public enquiries for Highways
Maintenance completed online

DTO2 : Percentage of Young Persons Travel Pass
applications completed online

DTO3 : Percentage of concessionary buss pass
applications completed online

DTO04 : Percentage of speed awareness course
bookings completed online

DTO5 : Percentage of HWRC voucher applications
completed online

DTO6 : Percentage of Highway Licence applications
completed online

DT13 : Percentage of 16+ Travel Cards applied for
online

Environment, Planning and Enforcement

EPEZ20 : Percentage of planning applications which
meet DCLG standards and requirements

EPE13 : Greenhouse Gas emissions from KCC estate
(exclud. schools)




Z¢ abed

Appendix 1

Service Area Director

Cabinet Member

Highways & Transportation

Simon Jones

Mike Whiting

Key Performance Indicators

(since start of programme)

. N Latest
Ref Indicator description Month
HTO1 Pothples repaired in 28 calendar days 100%
(routine works not programmed)
HT02 Faults reported by the public completed in 28 95%
calendar days
HTO3 | Streetlights repaired in 28 calendar days 92%
Customer satisfaction with service delivery o
HT04 | 100 Call Back) 92%
HTO8 Emergency incidents attended to within 2 97%
ours
HT11d Number of actual LED streetlight conversions 108,004

Month
RAG

DOT

Year to YTD
Date RAG

97%

93%

93%

85%

alo|a|a|f

98%

N/a

Target Floor
90% 80%
90% 80%
90% 80%
75% 60%
98% 95%

106,760 | 96,080

HTO8 — Performance for September was slightly below the 98% target and this was due to high volumes of drainage emergencies, with
access to a sufficient number specialist tankers not being available to pump up water in periods of heavy rainfall at all affected
locations. These emergencies are triaged and priority is given to property flooding with these sites also being the focus for capital

improvement schemes.

available or until the water subsides.

Where flooding impacts only on the highway, some minor roads are closed until specialist equipment is



Appendix 1

Service Area

Director

Cabinet Member

Highways & Transportation

Simon Jones

Mike Whiting

Activity Indicators

Expected Range
Ref Indicator description Year to date = expecged P 9 R
range: Upper Lower YTD
HTo1p | Fotholes repaired 8,070| Above 7,050 4,650 4,513
(as routine works and not programmed)
HTo2p | Routine faults reported by the public 31,806 | Above 28,900 22,900 24,411
completed
HTO3b | Streetlights repaired 2,459 Below 8,480 6,930 5,913
g HTO6 Number of new enquiries requiring further 49 581 Yes 52 800 43.200 44.615
< action (total new faults)
N | HTO7 Wo.r.k in Prpgress (outstanding enquiries 7411 Above 6.900 5 400 5688
waiting action)

HTO1b & HT02d — The number of potholes repaired and faults reported has been high this year, due to the severe winter weather at

the start of the year.

HTO03 — Over 100,000 LED conversions have now been completed and this is leading to far less faults. Bouygues, the contractor
delivering the conversion project, has now taken over the routine maintenance from 1st September.

HTO7 - Work in Progress remains high following the severe winter weather. The more complex works such as drainage and flooding

require further investigation and design.




Appendix 1

Service Area

Director

Cabinet Members

Waste Management

Simon Jones

Mike Whiting

Key Performance Indicators (Figures are provided as rolling 12 month totals to remove seasonality)

Ref Indicator description (;:etaits:r RAG DOT Target Floor P&i:::f
WMO01 Municipal waste recycled and composted 49.1% {4 46.8% 44.3% 49.5%
WMO02 Municipal waste converted to energy 50.2% 1 47.9% 45.4% 49.8%
01+02 Municipal waste diverted from landfill 99.3% & 94.7% 89.7% 99.3%
WMO03 | Waste recycled and composted at HWRCs 68.2% 4 69.3% 67.3% 68.3%

vz abed

Activity Indicators

WMO1 — After two years of steady improvement, household recycling in the county peaked at 49.9% in the year to December 2017, and has now
since a slight decline so far this year.
WMO3 - Recycling rates at HWRCs during 2017 and have been relatively stable so far this year.

R . e Latest In expected Expected Range Previous
ef Indicator description

Quarter range? Upper Lower Quarter
WMO05 | Waste tonnage collected by District Councils 536,772 Below 560,000 540,000 540,736
WMO06 Waste tonnage collected at HWRCs 168,912 Below 190,000 170,000 172,778
05+06 | Total waste tonnage collected 705,684 Below 750,000 710,000 714,713

WMO05 and WMO6 — Following an increase in waste tonnage during 2016, waste tonnage arisings have been declining over the last 2 years and
are now 3.4% lower than at September 2016, despite significant population growth across the county.



Appendix 1

Service Area Director Cabinet Member
Highways, Transportation and Waste Simon Jones Mike Whiting

Digital Take-up indicators

. s Year to YTD Previous
Ref Indicator description Date RAG DOT Target Floor Year
DTO1 Per.centage of public enquiries for Highways 449% PN 50% 259 439%
Maintenance completed online
DTO2 Pergent_age of Young Perspns Travel Pass 77% g 80% 60% 82%
applications completed online
DTO3 Pergent_age of concessionary bus pass 26% PN 20% 59 18%
applications completed online
-
S DT04 Perqentage of speed awareness course 78% PN 80% 65% 80%
| bookings completed online
N -
o | pTO5 ngggﬁzgeoﬁll‘i:e\)/vl?c voucher applications 98% PN 98% 80% 97%
DTO6 ng&gﬁzgeoﬁll‘i:éghway Licence applications 80% 4 60% 50% 59%
DT13 (Ijslzﬁ(eantage of 16+ Travel Cards applied for 78% 4 50% 40% 589%

DTO01 — The target has increased this year from 40% last year. The top five faults reported online reporting are potholes (72%),
Streetlights (67%), Drainage (51%), Soft Landscaping (46%) and Roadworks (9%).

DTO02 — A slightly higher proportion of paper applications have been received so far this year, but digital take-up is expected to increase
in January with the mid-year renewals for half-year passes, which are mostly made on on-line.

DTO04 - This target has increased this year from 75% last year. A project is in place to renew the on-line software system to improve the
customer journey and encourage more people to book online.



9z abed

Appendix 1

Division Director Cabinet Member
Environment, Planning and Enforcement Katie Stewart Mike Whiting
Key Performance Indicators
Ref Indicator description YSaal;;o RAG DOT Target Floor Prev. Yr.
Percentage of planning applications which meet DCLG o o o o
EPE20 standards and requirements 100% T 100% 80% 100%
Key Performance Indicator (reported quarterly in arrears)
Ref Indicator description Ll RAG DOT Target Floor AOTLENE
P Quarter 9 Year
EPE14 Greenh_ouse Gas emissions from KCC estate 35773 & 38,600 41,700 40,400
(excluding schools) in tonnes




Agenda Item 9

From: Mike Hill, Cabinet Member for Community and Regulatory
Services

Mike Whiting, Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways,
Transport and Waste

Barbara Cooper, Corporate Director of Growth, Environment
and Transport.

To: Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee — 28
November
Subject: Update on Preparedness to Respond to Brexit — Transport,

Borders and Emergency Planning

Classification: Unrestricted

Past Pathway of Paper: N/A

Future Pathway of Paper: N/A

Summary:
This report provides an overview of the plans and work undertaken to date in
preparation for potential changes to border arrangements following Brexit.

It focuses upon three key services:

a. Trading Standards
b. Highways and Transport
c. Emergency Planning/Business Continuity

Recommendation(s):
The Cabinet Committee is asked to note and discuss the planning and preparedness
of services set out in the report.

1. Background

1.1. The UK will leave the EU on 29t March 2019. This will result in a modification
to border controls including custom checks. Initial indications have identified
that this could materially affect the way KCC delivers its core services, the way
Kent’s roads function, and the way local businesses and residents go about
their day to day activities.

1.2. It has been suggested that Kent may need to accommodate delays of around

12 hours on the key routes to the UK border, and the current best estimate is
that Kent will need to cope with holding up to 10,000 HGVs on a routine basis.

Page 27



1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

2.1.

2.2.

Concerns remain around the likely changes to custom checks on passenger
traffic and the need for trading standards to intervene on a more regular basis
due to revised import/export requirements.

Since 2017, KCC has been engaged with Government departments along with
local, regional and national partners to try to clarify the potential changes at the
border to establish the potential impact across Kent.

Since early 2018, KCC has increasingly allocated resources to develop
contingency plans and to identify the various activities necessary to mitigate the
perceived and changing impact of Brexit.

All such plans have been focused on minimising the potential impact upon the
residents and businesses of Kent arising from changes to border arrangements
post-Brexit, and several mitigations have been developed.

We have identified to Government the works, people, facilities, costs and legal
authority required to successfully deliver the various mitigations.

This report provides an overview of work to date by the following teams:

Trading standards — As the market surveillance authority, KCC’s trading
standards team is responsible for inspecting goods crossing the UK border
in Kent which are referred to the team via UK Border Force and the national
Single Point of Contact.

Highways operation and transport planning — As highways authority, KCC is
responsible for maintaining the KCC-managed network, as well as working in
collaboration with Highways England, DfT and other authorities to support
resilience of the wider road network across Kent.

Resilience and emergency planning — As a Category 1 responder under the
Civil Contingencies Act, KCC is responsible for working in collaboration with
other Cat 1 responders to support the county’s response to, and recovery
from, incidents of the kind that is likely to occur from Day 1 of Brexit border
arrangements coming into effect.

Progress to Date

KCC officers have sought information from Government departments and its
agencies to establish traffic volumes, custom control activities and new border
rules under consideration. We have worked alongside key partners such as
DfT, Kent Police, and Highways England to understand their plans and actions.

The KRF has been actively developing contingency plans and testing
assumptions and proposals. Its membership has extended significantly with
numerous Government departments, all Kent Districts and out-of-county (or
neighbouring otherwise it sounds as if they are coming from all directions!!)
police and county councils now participating.

Page 28



2.3.

24,

2.5.

2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

2.9.

A range of different scenarios and durations of disruption have been
considered, including a worst-case scenario. This would entail a no deal
scenario where full third country custom checks would be required at the border
after 29 March 2019.

In August the planning scenario being proposed by national government was to
plan for 6 weeks of significant traffic congestion across Kent, which would
include 4 weeks of significant traffic disruption, followed by 2 weeks of recovery
of the roads to normal.

Since August, the planning scenarios being considered by government include
a worse-case scenario of 6 month of disruption, although this is considered
extreme due to the high degree of uncertainty around the likely border
arrangements.

It is clear, however, that any deal would entail some degree of disruption to
border arrangements with associated traffic congestion. Any change in
operation would be expected to lead to some teething problems, at least in the
short term.

Work to date has mainly focused not on the detail of border arrangements,

which are still to be determined, but rather the impact on traffic congestion
likely to be seen a result of changes at the border. These assumptions are
based on an understanding of the capacity of Kent ports and roads.

Such congestion could exceed that of previous incidents experienced in Kent,
including Operation Stack in 2015 which saw almost 7,000 HGVs contained on
the M20 in Kent. Local Kent roads experienced significant gridlock and
exceptionally high traffic volumes as a result.

In 2016, when customs checks became erratic due to weekend industrial
action, the county saw significant delays at the UK border across all vehicle
types (tourist and freight) and queues quickly formed across both strategic and
local road networks. Delays of over 12 hours were experienced.

2.10. A dedicated freight traffic management plan, Operation Fennel, is being

2.11.

designed and contains the various mitigations (Dover TAP, Brock contra flow,
Manston Airport and M26) available for deployment to mitigate the potential
traffic disruption. Work remains ongoing to complete this operational plan and
to develop plans for tourist traffic.

Other considerations include the impact upon Trading Standards, as an
increase in border checks would have material impact upon this service. As
reported to the Growth Economic Development and Communities Cabinet
Committee in July 2018, the service has already seen an increase in referrals
to inspect third country goods following a number of developments unrelated to
Brexit — including the opening of a Fast Parcel Hub at Dartford and an increase
in referrals from the Single Point of Contact.

Page 29



2.12.1n light of potential further increases from a change to the way that European
goods are handled post-Brexit, the service is working as closely as possible
with Government departments and agencies with a remit for border controls
and checks to understand the likely changes to requirements for imports and
exports post-Brexit, and as a result of this ongoing dialogue, is increasing its
staff numbers to ensure sufficient capacity to handle the impact of any changes
to border arrangements after 29 March 2019.

2.13.In order to help local authorities, businesses and communities across the
country to better prepare, a series of technical notices have been published by
Government to try to better articulate the new environment anticipated post-

Brexit.

2.14.Table 1 provides an overview of the progress to date in KCC engaging with and
preparing for Brexit across the three services identified in Para 1.8.

TABLE 1. Planning Progress to Date

Area of Planning

responsibility

Trading e Regular engagement of Government Departments through the
Standards Kent Border Steering Group (which is co-chaired by KCC and

Lead Director/
Officer:

Katie Stewart
Steve Rock

Government and includes a range of Government
Departments and Dover District Council as Port Health
Authority), and associated working groups, as well as National
Trading Standards

Recruitment prepared for a Border Team of between 4 and 14
inspection officers to be based at Dover, managed by the
Trading Standards Consumer and Product Safety Team. The
exact number is being kept under review in consultation with
Government departments and agencies to ensure as accurate
an estimate of the likely required capacity as possible.
Seeking of external funds to cover the Border Team and
associated costs — some of which are now to be covered by
National Trading Standards

Highways and
Transport
Planning

Lead Director/
Officer:
Simon Jones

Regular engagement with Government Departments through
the Kent Strategic Freight Forum and Strategic Operation
Fennel Group (which are chaired by KCC, and includes
Highways England, Kent Police, DfT, Local authorities and
industry) to shape Government’s own contingency plans for
the affected road network, as well as lobbying for the
appropriate national contingency planning

Consistent lobbying of Government for the appropriate
enforcement powers to enable traffic authorities in Kent to
implement the contingency plans now being developed — and
principally to ensure that freight vehicles can be effectively
directed to the appropriate contingency locations

Exploration of a potential central location in which to base the
operation of highways officers associated with managing the

Page 30




network from Day 1 — likely to be co-located with the
emergency and resilience team

e Direct engagement with Department for Transport to request a
range of capital investment and revenue support required to
manage Kent’s highways considering the potential transport
impacts arising from Brexit.

Resilience and | ¢ Review of the Community Risk Register to identify and clarify
emergency risks facing Kent as a result of Brexit
planning e Proactive delivery of Operation Fennel — Strategic and Tactical

plans for Kent Resilience Forum partners, including transport

Lead planning. This includes the mobilisation of Op Fennel
Director/Officer: Strategic and Tactical Groups earlier this year to start
Katie Stewart reviewing and preparing the necessary plans.

Fiona Gaffney | e« Exercise, Equity, held on 30 October to discuss and shape the

tactical plans developed to date for traffic management

e Four additional exercises in early 2019 to test the partnership
operation of the County Emergency Centre

¢ Development of a Kent Resilience Forum Brexit Coordination
Group

e Employment of a Brexit Coordinator, Brexit Comms Officer,
and a Brexit Project Officer to provide a dedicated team to
coordinate the efforts of partners through the Op Fennel suite
of structures and the associated exercises

e A multi-agency communications group

2.15.

2.16.

3.1.

3.2.

The above planning is highly resource intensive, and it is worth noting the
impact that this resource pressure has on wider priorities and responsibilities
in these areas.

For instance, in the resilience and emergency planning agenda, the resources
of the Kent Resilience Forum have been largely refocused on Brexit border
contingency planning, meaning that other previously identified resilience
priorities, such as Op Quantity (i.e. the preparation of the county for a
potential terrorist attack) and severe weather contingency planning (i.e.
community resilience for flood events) have had to be reprofiled to later
quarters.

Business Continuity

Whilst it is critical that the above three services are as prepared as possible
for Brexit, it is also vital to recognise the indirect impact that the traffic
congestion and other implications of changes to the border could have on
KCC’s other services (for example, disrupted school transport, delayed waste
movement, delays to highway maintenance, staff attending work).

Therefore, in addition to the work of the Resilience and Emergency Planning
Service (REPS) to coordinate the response to a worst-case scenario, the

Page 31




3.3.

3.4.

41.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

REPS team are also supporting services across KCC to test their business
continuity plans against potential Brexit scenarios.

This programme will enable services to put in place contingency measures to
cope with and to identify the impact on the services’ ability to deliver services.

This business continuity planning and the associated arrangements will be in
place up to April 2019 but also into the new financial year to ensure the impact
of any new arrangement is managed and monitored appropriately.

Post Brexit Business as Usual

It is recognised that a new and different routine will follow Brexit in the
medium to longer term. This will impact both those services directly involved
at and around the borders but also on our wider service delivery.

Work is underway, but until the final Brexit arrangements are confirmed, it is
difficult to establish the new normality of custom checks and traffic volumes.

The work will consider issues such as new infrastructure which may be
required for services affected by revised traffic volumes and how to overcome
the recruitment challenges for those areas of the business that have
traditionally relied on staff from the European Union.

Consideration is being given elsewhere in the business to the impact of the
loss of European funding and how replacement funding can be secured as a
result.

Recommendation(s)

Recommendation(s):
The Cabinet Committee is asked to note and discuss the planning and preparedness
of services set out in the report.

Contact details

Report authors/Relevant Directors:

Katie Stewart, Director of Environment, Planning and Enforcement
Tel: 03000 418827
Email: katie.stewart@kent.gov.uk

Simon Jones, Director for Highways Transport and Waste
Tel: 03000 411683
Email: simon.jones@kent.gov.uk

Page 32



mailto:katie.stewart@kent.gov.uk
mailto:simon.jones@kent.gov.uk

Agenda Item 10

From: Peter Oakford — Deputy Leader with delegated authority for Minerals
and Waste Local Plan Matters

Barbara Cooper, Corporate Director of Growth, Environment and

Transport
To: Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee — 28th November 2018
Decision No:
Subject: Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013 — 2030 Early Partial Review,
Kent Mineral Sites Plan and revised Local Development Scheme
Classification: Unrestricted

Past Pathway of Paper: N/A
Future Pathway of Paper: Cabinet, County Council

Electoral Division: Countywide

Summary:

This report provides an update on the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan work following council’s
adoption of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30 (KMWLP) in 2016. The KMWLH
commits the County Council to prepare a Mineral and Waste Sites Plan to meet the need identifieg
in the adopted Plan.

Following a call for sites and site appraisal work, this report proposes a Pre-submission Draft of thg
Kent Mineral Sites Plan identifying sites considered suitable in principle to allocate for minera)
development.

Following the reassessment of future waste capacity requirements in Kent, the evidence concludeg
that a Waste Sites Plan is no longer required. As a result, an Early Partial Review of the KMWLH
is required. Implementation of KMWLP policies concerning mineral and waste safeguarding hag
also identified that modifications are necessary to improve their effectiveness. The attached Pre
Submission Draft of the Early Partial Review of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-3(
has been prepared to address changes proposed to the waste strategy and the safeguarding
policies.

Following consideration by Environment and Transport Sub Committee, Cabinet Committee ang
County Council, the agreed Draft Plans will be subject to a statutory period for representations ang
submitted to the Secretary of State for independent examination. Any representations received wil
be submitted with the Plans for consideration by the Secretary of State.

An updated Local Development Scheme is also proposed to reflect changes to the programme ang
timetable concerning the Early Partial Review and preparation of the Mineral Sites Plan.

Recommendation(s):
The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked to:

(i)  consider and endorse, or make recommendations to the Cabinet Member responsible for
the Minerals and Waste Local Plan on the proposed:

Page 33



(@) Pre-submission Draft of the Kent Mineral Sites Plan;

(b)  Pre- submission Draft of the Early Partial Review of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local
Plan; and,

(c) the updated Local Development Scheme (revised timetable) to reflect changes to the
programme and timetable concerning preparation of the Local Plan work.

(i) note that the decision to approve the Pre-submission Drafts Plans for submission to the
Secretary of State for independent examination is a matter for County Council;

(i)  request the County Council to:

(a) Approve and publish the Pre-Submission Drafts of the Kent Mineral Sites Plan and the Early
Partial Review of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan for a statutory period of
representation and to submit the Draft Plans to the Secretary of State for independent
examination; and,

(b) delegate powers to the Corporate Director for Growth, Environment & Transport to approve any
non-material changes to the Mineral Sites Plan and Early Partial Review of the Kent Minerals
and Waste Local Plan in consultation with the Deputy Leader prior to their publication and
during their examination.

1.

Introduction and Background

1.1 The Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30 (KMWLP) was adopted by the County
Council in July 2016 as part of the Council’s statutory responsibility to plan for future minerals
supply and waste management within Kent. This Plan forms part of the Development Plan
and is a key policy document for the determination of planning applications. The KMWLP
sets out the County Council’'s strategy and policy framework for minerals and waste
development in Kent which includes future capacity and supply requirements. The KMWLP
commits the Council to identifying and allocating land considered suitable for minerals and
waste development in a subsequent Waste Sites Plan and a Minerals Sites Plan.

1.2 At its meeting on 30 November 2017, the Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee
(ETCC) considered a report on the progress of the Local Plan work. This included a
reassessment of future waste capacity requirements in Kent that indicated that a Waste Sites
Plan was no longer required and that an early Partial Review of the KMWLP was therefore
needed. In addition, experience of implementing the Local Plan policies regarding mineral
and waste safeguarding had revealed ambiguity in the wording of certain of their exempting
criteria which was hindering the effectiveness of the policies. It was agreed that modifications
were necessary to address this ambiguity. The Committee also recognised that a Mineral
Sites Plan was still required.

1.3 The Committee resolved to:-

i Undertake public consultation on options for minerals sites included in the Mineral
Sites Plan — Options 2017 and associated Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report;

i undertake an early partial review of the KWMLP concerning future requirements for
waste management and mineral and waste safeguarding;

iii as part of the early partial review, undertake associated public consultation on
proposed modifications to the KMWLP and the associated Sustainability Appraisal
Scoping Report; and,

Page 34



14

2.1

2.2

2.3

iv note the contents of an updated Local Development Scheme to reflect the Partial
Review and changes to the timetable in terms of preparation of the Mineral Sites
Plan.

Following consideration, the Cabinet Member responsible for the Local Plan took the decision
to bring this resolution into effect.

This report provides an update on the Local Plan work following the public consultation
referred to in paragraph 1.3 above. It proposes Pre-submission Drafts of the Mineral Sites
Plan and the Early Partial Review of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30. As
County Council policy documents, decisions to approve the Pre-Submission Drafts for
submission to the Secretary of State for independent examination are a matter for County
Council. The Draft Plans will therefore be considered by this Cabinet Committee, Cabinet and
then County Council. Prior to submission, the County Council is required by legislation to
publish the Pre-Submission Drafts for a minimum six-week period for representations on
soundness and legal compliance. Any representations received are then considered by the
Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State to examine the soundness and legality of the
Plan (in accordance with relevant planning policy and guidance).

Mineral Sites Plan

Following the adoption of the KMWLP, the County Council commenced work on the
accompanying Mineral Sites Plan which will allocate sites in Kent for the types of minerals
development needed to fulfil the vision and objectives of the KMWLP. This work included a
review of the requirements for aggregates to be provided for by sites identified in the Mineral
Sites Plan. Policy CSM2 of the KMWLP expects the Mineral Sites Plan to allocate sites for
soft sand and for sharp sand and gravel based upon the most recent calculations of
requirements set out in the Local Aggregates Assessment. To ensure that Kent is planning
for sufficient requirements to the end of the Plan period, a review of need has been
undertaken. This has identified a soft sand need of 2.5mt and a sharp sand and gravel need
of 5.75 mt. However, it should be noted that the adopted KMWLP recognised that sharp sand
and gravel resources in Kent are rapidly depleting. Policy CSM2 of the KMWLP therefore
recognises that the need for sharp sand and gravel requirements can only be met whilst
resources allow. In light of the greater abundance of soft sand resources there is no similar
policy test for soft sand requirements.

Work began with a “Call for Sites” in late 2016, which invited nominations (e.g. from
landowners and potential minerals operators) for sites to be considered for allocation to meet
the KMWLP mineral supply requirements. All those parties that had previously had an interest
in the Minerals and Waste Local Plan work were notified of the Call for Sites and invited to
nominate sites as well as comment on a draft Site Selection Methodology. This included
residents who have previously expressed an interest in minerals and waste plans in Kent,
landowners, minerals and waste operators, local businesses, statutory organisations, local
interest groups, parish, borough and district councils, councillors and others.

The Call for Sites, along with the methodology for site selection and assessment was agreed
by the Cabinet Member for Planning, Highways, Transport and Waste in December 2016
following consideration of the matter at Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee in
November 2016. The agreed site assessment process for the Mineral Sites Plan involves:

(i) Meeting the criteria in paragraph 2.4 below for a Mineral Site Option;

(i) Initial screening — a refined traffic light approach with a Red Amber Green (RAG) rating
based on potential effects of development against a range of assessment criteria;

(iii) Consultation on Site Options; and

Page 35



(iv) Detailed Technical Assessment (DTA) to identify Preferred Options for allocation in a
Pre-Submission Draft Mineral Sites Plan.

2.4 For a site to be considered a Mineral Site Option it had to:

2.5

2.6

(i) Align with the objectives of the KMWLP: The site must be able to provide minerals
in accordance with the future needs for minerals identified in the KMWLP.

(i) Be justified: The site must represent a suitable development opportunity based on a
desktop assessment of the opportunities and constraints associated with its location.

(iii) Be deliverable: Development of the site should not result in severe adverse effects
that would affect its deliverability, and its development should also be supported by
the landowner.

This is in accordance with Policy CSM2 of the KMWLP that sets out the following criteria for
selecting and screening the suitability of sites for allocation in a Mineral Sites Plan:

() The requirement for the mineral;

(i) Relevant development management policies;

(i) Relevant policies in district local plans and neighbourhood plans;

(iv) Strategic environmental information, including landscape assessment and Habitat
Regulation Assessment as appropriate;

(v) Deliverability; and

(vi) other national planning policy and guidance

The Policy also states that sites to be identified in a Mineral Sites Plan will generally be where
viable mineral resources are known to exist, where landowners are supportive of mineral
development taking place and where the Mineral Planning Authority considers that planning
applications are likely to be acceptable in principle in planning terms.

In response to the Call for Sites, 19 mineral sites were promoted for consideration, nine of
which were selected as ‘Options,” i.e. sites that were considered potentially suitable for
allocation in the Kent Minerals Sites Plan, subject to public consultation and detailed technical
assessment. A Site Evaluation Document setting out how the sites were initially assessed
against the methodology (stage ii in paragraph 2.3 above) was considered by ETCC in
November 2017 and was subject to public consultation. The views received have informed
the detailed technical assessment stage of the plan making work that is considered in this
report and its appendices. A summary of the views received on the Site Options is set out in
Appendix 5. It should be noted that in respect of the M2 Site - Lydd Quarry/Allen’s Bank
Extension, Lydd, the County Council received a Petition signed by 229 e-petition signatories
and 747 written signatories objecting to proposal. Details of the petition are also set out in the
Appendix.

2.7 The Site Options subjected to detailed technical assessment (DTA) for soft sand were:

Site Soft Sand Sites Estimated reserve

Ref

M3 Chapel Farm, Lenham 3.2mt

M8 West Malling Sandpit, Ryarsh 3.1mt (and 0.5mt of silica
sand)

During the detailed technical assessment phase, the promoter amended the Chapel Farm
site to remove the eastern parcel of the promoted site and minor revisions to the access route

Page 36



onto the A20. Further information was also provided by the promoter of Site M8 indicating
where the mineral would be excavated.

2.8 The Site Options for sharp sand and gravel were:

Site Sharp Sand and Gravel Sites Estimated
Ref reserve
M2 Lydd Quarry/Allen’s Bank Ext, Lydd 3.1mt

M7 Central Road, Dartford 0.9mt

M9 The Postern, Capel 0.6mt
M11 | Joyce Green Quarry, Dartford 1.5mt
M13 | Stonecastle Farm Quarry Ext, Hadlow/W hested 1.0mt
M12 Postern Meadows, Tonbridge 0.23 mt
M10 Moat Farm, Five Oak Green, Capel 1.5mt

During the detailed technical assessment The Postern, Capel site (M9) was withdrawn from
further consideration by the site’s promoter.

2.9 The remaining 10 sites promoted through the call for sites were not considered to be in
alignment with the KMWLP (stage (i) of the assessment process) and so were not proposed
as Site Options.

2.10 Full details of the nine sites that progressed to the DTA stage and the outcome of the
assessment can be found in the supporting document Kent Mineral Sites Plan — Minerals
Site Assessment Document 2018 (see Appendix 2). The DTA stage considered a range
of environmental impacts including landscape and visual impact, amenity, highways and
transportation, biodiversity, historic environment, waste resources and flood risk, land
stability and need. It also considered where necessary an assessment of Green Belt policy.
The DTA work concluded that three of the sites should progress as sites for allocation in the
Minerals Sites Plan — one soft sand site and two sharp sand and gravel sites. These sites
are considered acceptable in principle for mineral development, subject to planning
applications demonstrating that certain development management criteria can be met. The
DTA work also included Sustainability Appraisal for each site (See Appendix 7).

2.11 The Minerals Site Assessment document (Appendix 2) includes a summary of the views of
interested parties including those of the local community. In the case of the M2 Site — Lydd
Quarry and Allen’s Bank the Council also received a petition opposed to the development. It
has 229 e-signatures and a further 747 written signatories. The petition objects on the basis
of flood, risk, contamination of drinking water, increase in traffic and decrease in property
values. The Council procedures on petitions require that this is brought to the attention of
decision makers.

Page 37



2.12

In summary, the DTA concluded the following:

M3 - Chapel Farm,
Lenham - Western
Site

Suitable for allocation in Pre-Submission Draft Mineral Sites
Plan, subject to meeting development management criteria at
planning application stage

M3 - Chapel Farm,
Lenham - Eastern
Site

Site withdrawn by promoter — due to likely unacceptable impact
on heritage asset. Not allocated in Pre-Submission Draft
Mineral Sites Plan.

M8 - West Malling
Sandpit, Ryarsh

Site not allocated in Pre-Submission Draft Mineral Sites Plan
— inconsistent with green belt policy with regard to inappropriate
development. An alternative promoted soft sand site at Chapel
Farm, Lenham lies outside the Green Belt and is considered
acceptable in principle to meet the soft sand mineral requirements
in Kent. It is not therefore reasonable to conclude that the
necessary ‘very special circumstances’ exist to override the
presumption against inappropriate development within the Green
Belt. It is noted that the site is within the setting of the Kent Downs
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) and the impacts upon
the AONB are uncertain.

M2 - Lydd
Quarry/Allen’s Bank
Ext, Lydd

Site not allocated in Pre-Submission Draft Mineral Sites Plan
- Likely unacceptable impacts upon the Dungeness, Romney
Marsh and Rye Bay Special Protection Area (SPA), the Special
Area of Conservation (SAC) and the Ramsar Site; Likely
unacceptable impact upon the Dungeness, Romney Marsh and
Rye Bay Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI). In respect of
parcel 23 (Allen’s Bank), the likely unacceptable impact upon
archaeological interests. It is noted that the impact upon the
setting and character of the historic town of Lydd is uncertain.

M7 — Central Road,
Dartford

Site not allocated in Pre-Submission Draft Mineral Sites Plan

— Likely unacceptable highway impacts on Bob Dunn Way (A206)
and on M25 Junction 1a (Dartford Crossing), likely unacceptable
loss of biodiversity habitat, impact upon Local Wildlife Sites (LWS)
and UK Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP) interests, likely
unacceptable impacts on residential amenity, likely unacceptable
air quality impact on AQMA and conflict with Local Plan open
space objectives.

M10 - Moat Farm,
Five Oak Green,
Capel

Suitable for allocation in Pre-Submission Draft Mineral Sites
Plan, subject to meeting development management criteria at
planning application stage

M11 — Joyce Green
Quarry, Dartford

Site not allocated in Pre-Submission Draft Mineral Sites Plan
- Likely unacceptable highway impacts on Bob Dunn Way (A206)
and on M25 Junction la (Dartford Crossing), likely unacceptable
air quality impact on AQMA, likely unacceptable loss of
biodiversity habitat, impact upon LWS and UK Biodiversity Action
Plan (BAP) interests and uncertainty that restoration proposals
would meet ecological objectives to replace habitat and conflict
with Local Plan open space objectives. The mineral proposal is

Page 38




3.

considered to be inappropriate development within the Green Belt
through restoration proposals and harm arising from highway
impacts, air quality and biodiversity impacts.

M12 - Postern Site not allocated in Pre-Submission Draft Mineral Sites Plan
Meadows, - insufficient evidence to complete DTA in order to conclude with
Tonbridge any certainty that the development is acceptable in principle for

mineral development.

M13 - Stonecastle Suitable for allocation in Pre-Submission Draft Mineral Sites

Farm Quarry Ext, Plan, subject to meeting development management criteria at

Hadlow/ Whested planning application stage

M9 The Postern, Site withdrawn by Promoter — unable to demonstrate acceptable

Capel access. Not allocated in Pre-Submission Draft Mineral Sites
Plan.

The three sites considered suitable for allocation are set in the Pre-Submission Draft of the
Minerals Sites Plan included at Appendix 1.

Early Partial Review of the KMWLP including Need for a Waste Sites Plan

3.1 The Early Partial Review of the KMWLP proposes modifications in the following areas:

A. Waste management:

= The strategy for provision of future waste management capacity
- The identification of site allocations for waste management facilities

B. Safeguarding - The approach to safeguarding mineral resources and waste
management and minerals supply infrastructure.

The paragraphs below and the supporting evidence to this report set out the justification for
proposed changes identified by the Early Partial Review. The detail of the proposed changes
is set out in the Pre-Submission Draft - Early Partial Review of the Kent Minerals and Waste
Local Plan 2018 which is attached at Appendix 3

3.2 The adopted KMWLP identified a shortfall in waste management capacity over the Plan period

for the following types of waste management: waste recovery (energy from waste and organic
waste treatment), hazardous waste, and the disposal of dredgings. To improve certainty
concerning the provision of the required capacity, policies CSW7, CSW8, CSW12 and CSW 14
commit the County Council to allocating sites suitable for accommodating related waste
facilities in a Waste Sites Plan. Policy CSW4 sets the strategy context for waste management
capacity. Calculation of the future waste management capacity requirements in the KMWLP
had been undertaken in 2012 and so preparation for the Waste Sites Plan involved a review
of those requirements to ensure that the amount of new capacity planned for is robust.

3.3 A key driver for the review of waste requirements was the implementation of a planning

permission for a significant new waste recovery facility at Kemsley which meant that the
amount of existing waste management capacity used to inform the approach in the KMWLP
was no longer robust. Planning permission was granted in 2012 for the Kemsley Sustainable
Energy facility, which would provide capacity for around 500,000tpa of non-hazardous waste
recovery. During the preparation of the KMWLP, there was considerable uncertainty over

Page 39



whether the facility would be built and so it was considered prudent not to factor this into the
assessment of future capacity requirements. However, in August 2016, shortly after the
adoption of the KMWLP, work commenced on the construction of the Kemsley facility, clearly
indicating that the capacity would in fact be realised, substantially eliminating the waste
recovery capacity shortfall identified in the KMWLP of 562,500tpa.

3.4 The adopted KMWLP also identified that sites would be identified in a Waste Sites Plan for

3.5

3.6

3.8

3.9.

3.10

hazardous waste (specifically landfill of asbestos) (policy CSW12) and for the disposal of
dredgings (policy CSW14). Notwithstanding this policy support, the ‘Call for Sites’ did not
reveal any need or support from industry, including the Port of London Authority, for the
allocation of related sites.

In terms of additional organic waste treatment capacity, the review of waste requirements
concluded that, while there is sufficient capacity within Kent to meet recycling and composting
requirements overall, further organic waste treatment capacity could be justified; however, it
is considered that the Plan’s policies are sufficiently supportive, such that the identification of
specific sites to provide any additional certainty that development will come forward, is not
justified.

Overall, the review of waste requirements indicated that there was no need for additional
waste recovery capacity and that there was insufficient justification for a Waste Sites Plan.
As a result, changes to a number of the adopted KMWLP waste policies and explanatory text
are required to remove the commitment to identify sites within a separate Waste Sites Plan.
This will help ensure that there is no over-supply of recovery capacity within Kent. A change
to adopted policies can only be realised via modifications which the County Council is
statutorily obliged to publish for representations and then submit to the Secretary of State for
independent examination.

Public consultation on these proposed changes as set out in the ‘Kent Minerals and Waste
Local Plan 2013-2030 Partial Review 2017' consultation document was undertaken between
December 2017 and March 2018 and a summary of the comments received, with officer
response, is set out in Appendix 5. Key concerns were raised that the revised waste needs
assessment underpinning the partial review underestimates the future need for waste
recovery capacity because it overestimates recycling performance and underestimates
baseline arisings and the network of waste management infrastructure in Kent should be
enhanced to realise associated benefits i.e. incineration with energy recovery facilities provide
substantial inward investment, jobs and a supply of renewable/low carbon power and/or heat.
Further representations suggest that the KMWLP Partial Review should acknowledge that
additional organic waste treatment capacity is required.

The Partial Review work has been reconsidered in light of the concerns raised. This work has
confirmed that the baseline assessments are robust. Changes have been made to recycling
and recovery targets in Policy CSW4 which reflect actual measured performance in Kent and
recent EU targets. As set out in Appendix 5 and the Pre- Submission Draft of the Plan
(Appendix 3) and its supporting evidence, no other significant changes are proposed to the
strategy set out in the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-2030 Partial Review 2017
consultation document.

Minerals and Waste Safeguarding

Given the need for an early Partial Review (as described above), the opportunity has also
been taken to consider whether there are other elements of the KMWLP which may benefit
from amendment in light of 24 months’ experience of implementing its policies. Generally, it
is considered that the KMWLP is performing as intended; however, one matter has arisen in
relation to the safeguarding of mineral resources and minerals and waste management

Page 40



3.11

3.12

4.1

4.2

4.3

51

infrastructure. Implementation of the safeguarding policies DM 7 and DM 8 has revealed an
ambiguity that means the policies are not being implemented wholly as intended.

Amongst other aims, the intention of these safeguarding policies is to ensure that development
on sites for non-mineral development (i.e. housing and commercial) allocated in a Borough or
District Local Plan would be exempt from the KMWLP’s safeguarding provisions if the need
to safeguard any mineral resource underlying the site, and/or proximate minerals and waste
infrastructure, had been assessed and factored into the decision to allocate the sites. In
practice, however, there have been occasions where the policies are being interpreted to
exclude any site allocations in adopted development plans from the safeguarding process,
regardless of whether minerals and waste safeguarding matters were considered during the
site allocation process. This is not the intention of the policies, nor national policy guidance,
and it has the potential to undermine the effectiveness of these policies. The Early Partial
Review provides the opportunity to address this matter.

Proposed minor changes to policies DM7 and DM8, as well as supporting text to ensure that
the safeguarding intention of the KMWLP is effective was the subject of public consultation
between December 2017 and March 2018. A workshop was also held with the Borough and
District Councils to discuss the proposal and invite comments. Details of the views received
are set out in Appendix 5 along with officer response. A number of minor changes have been
made to related explanatory text to address concerns. The proposed revisions to the adopted
Safeguarding policies and explanatory text are set out in the Pre-Submission Draft of the Early
Partial Review of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local at Appendix 3.

Next Steps

Following consideration by ETCC and Cabinet Committee, County Council will be asked to

agree that the Pre-Submission Draft Plans be submitted to the Secretary of State for
independent Examination by a Government-appointed inspector. Prior to submission the
Plans will be published for a statutory period for representations on soundness and legal
compliance in accordance with Regulation 19 of the Town and Country Planning (Local
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended).

During the examination, the Inspector will consider all representations received and may
choose to convene public hearings. If requested by the Council, the Inspector can discuss
changes needed to ensure soundness (known as ‘main modifications’). If such changes are
necessary, these will be reported to this Cabinet Committee, Cabinet and County Council for
agreement prior to being published for representations. Ultimately, the Mineral Sites Plan and
modifications to the KMWLP can only be adopted by the County Council following receipt of
an Inspector’s report that finds the Plan and the modifications sound and legally compliant.
Adoption of the Plan and the modifications would then be considered by ETCC, Cabinet
Committee and County Council.

During the process, minor non-material changes (e.g. changes related to grammar and clarity)
may be needed, and it is proposed that the agreement to such changes be delegated to the
Corporate Director for Growth, Environment & Transport in consultation with the Deputy
Leader.

Revised Local Development Scheme
The Local Development Scheme sets out the County Council’s programme for preparing
minerals and waste planning documents. The current Local Development Scheme, which was

adopted in December 2017 anticipated submission of the Plan to the Secretary of State
following the pre-submission consultation in January 2019. This needs to be updated to reflect

Page 41



the updated timetable. The revised timetable for the preparation of the Minerals Sites Plan and
KMWLP Partial Review, to be included in the Scheme, is set out in the table below.

Stage Dates
Second Call for Sites November 2016 - January 2017
Minerals Sites Options and KMWLP Partial
Review Consultation (Reg 18) December 2017 — March 2018
Pre-Submission Plan Consultation December 2018 — February 2019
(Reg 19)
Submission March/April 2019
Independent Examination Hearing June/ July 2019
Inspector's Report October 2019
Adoption December 2019

6. Financial Implications

6.1 The costs of preparing the Kent Mineral Sites Plan Options and the early Partial Review of
the MWLP are met from the Environment, Planning and Enforcement Division’s budget.

7. Policy Framework

7.1  The Kent Mineral Sites Plan and the policies within the KMWLP itself support the County
Council’s corporate policies contained within the Council’s Strategic Statement ‘Increasing
Opportunities, Improving Outcomes — Kent County Council’s Strategic Statement 2015-2020’.
The Minerals Sites Plan will support and facilitate sustainable growth in Kent’s economy and
support the creation of a high-quality built environment, with accessible local services that
reflect the community’s needs and support its health, social and cultural well-being.

Legal Implications

8.1 The County Council has a legal obligation under the Town and Country Planning Acts to
prepare a statutory Development Plan for planning purposes(commonly known as the Local
Plan) .

8.2 The County Council is also required by national planning policy to ensure that local plans
promote sustainable minerals and waste development. The early partial review will play an
important role in ensuring that minerals and waste development in Kent is in line with national
planning policy.

8.3 There is an expectation by the Minister for Housing, Communities and Local Government that
all planning authorities have an up to date local plan in place. Without an up to date adopted

Page 42



9.1

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

plan, there is a risk that MHCLG will step in as the plan making authority, reducing local
accountability.

Equalities implications

An equality impact assessment (EQIA) has been completed and no equality implications have
been identified. A copy of the assessment is attached at Appendix 8. The earlier Local Plan
work was accompanied by a separate EQIA.

Conclusion

The Town and Country Planning Acts requires the County Council to prepare a Development
Plan setting out how mineral and waste planning matters will be considered in Kent. The
KMWLP adopted in July 2016 sets out the overarching strategy and vision until 2030 and
commits the County Council to preparing Mineral and Waste Sites Plans that allocate
individual sites for development that align with the KMWLP strategy.

Preparation work for the Waste Sites Plan concluded that the waste capacity requirements for
Kent had essentially been met and that a Waste Sites Plan is no longer justified. As a result,
an early partial review of the KMWLP is required. Implementation of KMWLP policies
concerning mineral and waste safeguarding has also identified that minor modifications are
necessary to improve their effectiveness. The attached Pre-Submission Draft of the Early
Partial Review of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30 has been prepared to
address changes proposed to the waste strategy and the safeguarding policies.

In respect of the Minerals Sites Plan, following a call for sites and site appraisal work, this
report proposes a Pre-submission Draft of the Kent Minerals Sites Plan allocating sites
considered suitable in principle for mineral development. Public consultation and views of
technical consultees have informed both Draft Pre-submission Plans.

A decision to submit the Draft Plans for Examination to the Secretary of State is a matter for
County Council. Once agreed the Draft Plans will be published to allow representations
(known as Regulation 19 Consultation). The Draft Plans and any representations will then be
submitted to the Secretary of State for independent examination.

An updated Local Development Scheme is proposed to reflect changes to the programme
and timetable concerning preparation of the Mineral Sites Plan and the Early Partial Review.

11. Recommendation

(i)

(@)
(b)

The Environment and Transport Cabinet Committee is asked to:

the Minerals and Waste Local Plan on the proposed:

consider and endorse, or make recommendations to the Cabinet Member responsible for

Pre-submission Draft of the Kent Mineral Sites Plan;

Pre- submission Draft of the Early Partial Review of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local
Plan; and,

Page 43



(c) the updated Local Development Scheme (revised timetable) to reflect changes to the
programme and timetable concerning preparation of the Local Plan work.

(i) note that the decision to approve the Pre-submission Drafts Plans for submission to the
Secretary of State for independent examination is a matter for County Council;

(i)  request the County Council to:

(c) Approve and publish the Pre-Submission Drafts of the Kent Mineral Sites Plan and the Early
Partial Review of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan for a statutory period of
representation and to submit the Draft Plans to the Secretary of State for independent
examination; and,

(d) delegate powers to the Corporate Director for Growth, Environment & Transport to approve
any non-material changes to the Mineral Sites Plan and Early Partial Review of the Kent
Minerals and Waste Local Plan in consultation with the Deputy Leader prior to their publicatio
and during their examination.

=}

12. Contact details
Lead Officer:
Sharon Thompson — Head of Planning Applications Group

Phone number: 03000 413468 E-mail: sharon.thompson@kent.gov.uk

Lead Director:
Katie Stewart — Director of Environment, Planning and Enforcement
Phone number: 03000 418827

Email: katie.stewart@kent.gov.uk

Appendices

Appendix 1:
Kent Mineral Sites Plan — Pre-Submission Draft 2018

Appendix 2:
Kent Mineral Sites Plan — Minerals Site Assessment Document 2018

Appendix 3:
Early Partial Review of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30 — Pre- Submission
Draft 2018

Appendix 4:
Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30 - Updated Local Development Scheme —
timescale 2018

Appendix 5

Page 44


mailto:sharon.thompson@kent.gov.uk
mailto:katie.stewart@kent.gov.uk

Partial Review of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30 — Summary of Issues
Raised 2018

Appendix 6:
Sustainability Appraisal of the Kent MWLP Partial Review 2018

Appendix 7:
Sustainability Appraisal of the Kent Minerals Sites Plan 2018

Appendix 8:
Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30 Partial Review 2018 and Kent Minerals Sites
Plan 2018 - Equality Impact Assessment

Backaround D men
Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30

Site ldentification and Selection Methodology 2018

Kent Minerals Sites Plan — Mineral Site Selection — Initial Assessment November 2017

Kent Minerals Sites Plan Options 2017 Consultation document

Soft Sand Topic Paper 2018

Sharp Sand and Gravel Topic Paper 2018

Kent County Council - Local Aggregate Assessment DRAFT 2018

Kent Minerals Sites Plan — Appraisal of Landscape and Visual - Axis 2018

Kent Minerals Sites Plan - Land Stability report - Axis 2018

Topic Papers — Waste Assessment — BPP 2017

Waste Evidence Topic Papers — 2018

BPP Consulting Kent Waste Needs Assessment 2018 Specifically:

- Non-Hazardous Waste Recovery Capacity Requirement, November 2018;

- Non-Hazardous Waste Recycling/Composting Capacity Requirement, November 2018;
- Hazardous Waste Needs Assessment, November 2018.

Scoping Report — Sustainability Appraisal of the Kent MWLP Partial Review

Scoping Report — Sustainability Appraisal of the Kent Minerals Sites Plan- Making Process

Habitats Regulation Assessment

SFRA and Water Resource Reports (Available on Request)

Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30 Updated Local Development Scheme — 2017

Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30 - Equality Impact Assessment 2017

Statement of Community Involvement

Page 45


http://mylimehouse.kent.gov.uk/file/4073744
http://mylimehouse.kent.gov.uk/file/5161478
http://kent.limehouse.co.uk/file/4794573
http://kent.limehouse.co.uk/file/4794573
http://kent.limehouse.co.uk/file/4794573
http://mylimehouse.kent.gov.uk/file/4779203
http://mylimehouse.kent.gov.uk/file/4779203
http://mylimehouse.kent.gov.uk/file/5161492
http://mylimehouse.kent.gov.uk/file/5161490
http://mylimehouse.kent.gov.uk/file/5160187
http://mylimehouse.kent.gov.uk/file/5160177
http://mylimehouse.kent.gov.uk/file/5160180
http://mylimehouse.kent.gov.uk/portal/second_call_for_sites_2016/document_library/
http://mylimehouse.kent.gov.uk/portal/second_call_for_sites_2016/document_library/
http://mylimehouse.kent.gov.uk/portal/second_call_for_sites_2016/document_library/
http://mylimehouse.kent.gov.uk/file/5162975
http://mylimehouse.kent.gov.uk/file/5162977
http://mylimehouse.kent.gov.uk/file/5162974
http://kent.limehouse.co.uk/file/4794609
http://kent.limehouse.co.uk/file/4794621
http://kent.limehouse.co.uk/file/4794621
http://mylimehouse.kent.gov.uk/file/5160222
http://mylimehouse.kent.gov.uk/file/4779198
http://mylimehouse.kent.gov.uk/file/4779198
http://mylimehouse.kent.gov.uk/file/4779204
http://www.kent.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0018/50607/Statement-of-Community-Involvement-2011.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

Kent Minerals Sites Plan - Pre Submission Draft 2018

December 2018

Page 47



Kent Minerals Sites Plan - Pre Submission Draft 2018

An Invitation to Comment

The Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan (KMWLP) was adopted in July 2016. It sets out the
vision and objectives for Kent’'s minerals supply and waste management capacity from 2013
to 2030. It does not allocate specific sites suitable for minerals and waste development
except for two strategic sites - one for cement production (and related mineral reserves) at
Holborough in the Medway Valley and one for hazardous waste disposal at Norwood Quarry
on the Isle of Sheppey.

A Mineral Sites Plan is being prepared to allocate specific sites within Kent suitable in
principle for mineral extraction in accordance with policy CSM 2 of the KMWLP. Once
adopted, the document will form part of the Development Plan for Kent, along with the
KMWLP, District and Borough Local Plans and any Neighbourhood Plans

A ‘Call for Sites ‘exercise was carried out between December 2016 and March 2017 which
invited interested parties to submit details of sites that could meet the County’s need for
minerals. These were then assessed against an agreed phased methodology to determine
which sites were suitable to be allocated in a Minerals Sites Plan and be subject to
independent examination by an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State. Following
Initial Screening?, 9 sites were identified as Mineral Site Options potential options. These
‘Site Options™ were subject to public consultation in late 2017/early 2018. The views from
this consultation®, along with further detailed technical assessment (DTA) work*, has
informed which sites should be allocated for mineral development in the Mineral Sites Plan.
The methodology for the Sites Plan work is set out in the Site Selection Methodology 2018.

This is the final stage in the preparation of the Mineral Sites Plan prior to the Plan’s
submission to the Secretary of State for examination. This document is the Pre-Submission
Plan, published in accordance with Regulation 19 of the Town and Country Planning (Local
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012. These documents are available for public inspection
and representations are invited on the soundness and legality of the Plan in advance of
submission to the Secretary of State for an Independent Examination in public. Ultimately
the Inspector will report on the whether the Plan is ‘sound’ taking account of supporting
evidence and representations received. A ‘sound’ Plan is one that is:

o ‘Positively prepared’;

o ‘Justified’;

e ‘Effective’; and,

e Consistent with national policy.

The preparation of this Plan has involved considerable and ongoing engagement and
collaboration with communities, local organisations and businesses. To ensure effective
consideration of cross-boundary impacts that may be affected by the strategies and policies

1 Screening was carried out in line with the County Councils Site Selection Methodology 2018.
2 Kent Mineral Sites Plan Options Consultation September 2017.

3 See Options Consultation Report

4 See Kent Mineral Site Plan — Mineral Site Assessment 2018

2
Page 48



in this Plan, it has also been prepared in cooperation with Kent's district and borough
councils, neighbouring authorities and other Minerals and Waste Planning Authorities. This
Plan is accompanied by a comprehensive evidence base including Habitats Regulations
Assessment (HRA), a Sustainability Appraisal (SA) a Strategic Flood Risk Assessment
(SFRA) and an Equalities Impact Assessment (EQIA).

The period for representations will run for xxxx weeks from xxxxx to xxxxx. The minimum
statutory time period of six weeks has been extended to allow for the Christmas holiday.

You can make comments:

- Onlineat .................
- By email to mwlp@kent.gov.uk
- By postto: Kent County Council
Minerals and Waste Planning Policy
1% Floor, Invicta House
Maidstone
Kent
ME14 1XX

Page 49


mailto:mwlp@kent.gov.uk

Kent Minerals Sites Plan - Pre Submission Draft 2018

Contents
SR 111 1o To 17 Lol o o T 5
2 TRE POLICY CONEEXL ....ceuuecrevenricriinniiiniinniissisnsssssssnsssssesmsssssesassssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssssssnsssssssnans 7
3 Provision Of MiNEral SiteS.........ccuueuuciiieueieiiieniesiinnsiosiinniosissmsesiesmssssissssssssssssssssssssssssssssssns 10
Sharp SANd aNd Gravel .....cce..iieeeiiiieeccirecer e rreeee e s rene s s rene s srenssesseenssessrenssessrensssssrennnes 10
Ko 0T T 13
Appendix 1 - Kent Minerals Site Plan - Sit€ AllOCALIONS...........ccccveeeeecuveeeeiiiieeeiiiieeeecsieeeecieaeescieaeaens 16
Y ¢ [ T 22N Yo T o SRR 17
Extensions to Stonecastle Farm Quarry, Hadlow/Whetsted ..........cccoveeeviiiiiieecee e 17
Moat Farm, Capel, TONDBIIAZE ......uveieiee et e et e e e et e e e bee e e e areeas 20
Yo N Yo [T SR 23
M3: Chapel Farm, Lenham (WeSTEIN SItE).....cccuiiiiieiciieecieeciee et etee et e e te e st e s sree e sateesraeeeanas 23

Page 50



1. Introduction

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

Kent County Council has responsibility for the planning of future mineral supply for
the county. Following the adoption of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-
30 (KMWLP), this responsibility is being fulfilled by the preparation of a Kent Mineral
Sites Plan (the Sites Plan). The plan area for this document is the administrative
area of Kent, excluding Medway.

Kent contains a wide variety of mineral resources. Minerals are extracted for
aggregate and non-aggregate markets. Aggregates are materials derived from sand
and gravel deposits, soft (building) sands from the Folkestone Formation and
crushed hard rock (Kentish Ragstone a limestone). They are used in the
construction industry for building and maintenance purposes, including asphalt
production in road building, concrete and mortar production for construction. Some
aggregate minerals are also used for non-aggregate purposes, for example for
beach feeding for flood defence purposes on parts of the coast line. Kent also has
non-aggregate minerals, they include clay, brickearth, chalk (for
construction/engineering and agricultural lime applications) and building stones
(Kentish Ragstone, and extensive deposits of various sandstones that have been
historically extracted). There also are reserves of industrial silica sand and brick clay
within the county. However, the most significant minerals produced in the county are
sharp sand and gravel, soft sand (building) and hard crushed rock (Kentish
Ragstone).

The Sites Plan provides the spatial detail for meeting requirements for sharp sand
and gravel and for soft sand in accordance with policy CSM2 of the Kent Minerals
and Waste Local Plan 2013-30 which the authority adopted in July 2016, following
an Independent Examination in 2015. The Sites Plan identifies potential locations for
extraction of sharp sand and gravel and of soft sand, providing communities and the
minerals industry with greater certainty about where minerals development may take
place within Kent and the criteria that will need to be met.

Once adopted, the Kent Mineral Sites Plan will replace the currently saved Policy
CA®6 of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan: Construction Aggregates 1993.

Page 51



Dartford

Dartford

Minster
Jueenborough

Kent
International

Swale.......

=53
=

Tonbridgé' i
and Mallirg"

g
W

gt Sevenoaks

Maidstone
NS

denbridge

Southborough

Ashford N 4

Y
Q.) Royal
Tunbndge .
S Sl Tunbridge
) Wells
N
Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2018
N Legend
E District Boundaries IéS“JtE
Kent Minerals Sites Plan - ) Council
kent.gov.uk
Plan Area i
1 . 302,298 Based upon the Ordnance Survey map
T — ] with the permission of the Controller of
Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
0 3 6 12 © Crown Copyright & Database Right 2016.
Miles Additional information © Kent County
Council




2 The Policy Context

Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

The adopted Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30 (KMWLP) is part of the
Development Plan for planning purposes. It sets out the overarching framework for
the strategy and planning policies for sustainable minerals extraction, importation and
recycling, and the management of all waste streams that are generated in Kent,
together with their spatial implications. This includes consideration of the economic,
social and environmental aspects of strategic minerals and waste planning within the
county.

Chapter 3 of the KMWLP sets out the vision for mineral development in Kent and
chapter 4 sets out 6 objectives to support this vision. Chapter 5 sets out the spatial
strategy for meeting the need for minerals, identifying in general terms how much
mineral will be provided over the Plan period and includes policies related to the
delivery strategy for minerals (CSM policies) and Chapter 7 includes the development
management policies (DM policies) which seeks to ensure that minerals development
does not have unacceptable impacts.

Chapter 5 expects that the Mineral Sites Plan will develop the delivery strategy by
allocating specific sites for mineral development in order to provide a level of certainty
to local residents, the minerals industry, land owners and other interested
stakeholders as to where minerals development is likely to take place.

Some work was previously undertaken on preparation of the Sites Plans that led to a
Preferred Options Consultation (for waste and minerals) in May 2012. This work was
not taken forward and to enable a more up-to-date appraisal of site suitability and
deliverability it was considered necessary to undertake a second ‘Call for Sites’
exercise. This commenced in late 2016, continuing into 2017.

Policy CSM2 of the KMWLP sets out the policy context for the Supply of Land-won
Minerals in Kent. It states that “Mineral working will be granted planning permission
at sites identified in a Sites Plan, subject to meeting the requirements set out in the
relevant site schedule in the Mineral Sites Plan and the Development Plan”.

Preparation of the Minerals Sites Plan — Matters Considered

For a site to be allocated in the Sites Plan, Policy CSM2 requires site allocations to
meet the following criteria:

» There has to be a requirement for the mineral;

» consistency with relevant development management criteria;

» consistency with relevant policies in district local and neighbourhood plans;

» assessment based on strategic environmental information and Habitat
Regulation Assessment;

» Deliverability; and

» consistency with other relevant national planning policy and guidance.

Page 53



2.7 In addition, the policy states that sites will generally be where viable mineral
resources are known to exist, where landowners are supportive of mineral
development taking place and where the Mineral Planning Authority considers that
planning applications are likely to be acceptable in principle in planning terms.
Discussion of some of the matters to be taken into account when preparing the
Mineral Sites Plan is set out below

2.8 District and Borough Councils in Kent are preparing their own Local Plans. Care has
been taken to avoid any material conflict between the Mineral Sites Plan and adopted
Local Plans through consultation and engagement during the Local Plan formulation
process. Local Plans produced by the County Council and the District and Borough
Councils, along with any Neighbourhood Plans form the Development Plan.

2.9 Local District and Borough council input has been sought on the site selection
process. The outcomes of meetings held with each local council fed into the overall
site screening process, and their comments were again sought prior to detailed
technical assessments being undertaken on the Site Options

2.10 Minerals and Waste Local Plans have been adopted and are also being prepared by
the minerals and waste planning authorities bordering the Sites Plan area and these
have been taken into account. In accordance with the Duty to Cooperate, there has
been ongoing discussion and consultation with neighbouring mineral planning
authorities, especially those within the South East Region in respect of need
considerations. The County Council is a member of the South East Aggregate
Working Party, which represents the Mineral Planning Authorities in the South East
and industry representatives. The work of this Group has also informed the Sites
Plan work. The County Council will continue to work closely with adjoining authorities
on strategic cross boundary matters.

2.11 In accordance with the requirements of the Habitats Directive 1992, the Site Plan has
been subject to Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA). This work has helped to
inform which sites should be included for allocation within the Site Plan. Related
consultation has taken place with Natural England regarding the impact on
international designations. Full details of the HRA assessment are available on the
Council’s website.

2.12 Post publication of the Site Options for consultation at Regulation 18 stage, the
County Council attended a number of public meeting hosted by Parish and Town
Councils to explain the Site Plan work and seek views on the proposals. The views
received have informed the Site Plan work.

2.13 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 sets out the legislative framework
for the preparation of Local Plans whilst European and National policies and
strategies provide guidance on their content. The Minerals Sites Plan must be
consistent with European and National policies. This Pre-Submission Draft Mineral
Sites Plan
has been produced within the context of relevant Plans, Programmes and Directives
which were also instrumental in shaping the Minerals Strategy 2014. The Sites Plan
has also been prepared in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) 2018 and National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 2014 for Minerals.

8
Page 54



2.14 1t should be noted that the site allocations do not equate to the grant of
planning permission. Any proposal for the development of an allocated site will
need to secure planning consent, and satisfy the requirements of the
development plan and planning policy considerations at that time.

2.15 Development of the allocations of the Mineral Sites Plan, and any other mineral
developments, are subject to all the relevant policies, particularly the development
management policies of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30, along with
other local plans and relevant national policies.

Page 55



3 Provision of Mineral Sites

3.1 The Mineral Sites Plan proposes sites for the extraction of soft sand, and sharp sand
and gravel. It is considered that these allocations, in conjunction with current
permitted reserves and the criteria based approach to the provision of aggregates
established in Policy CSM2 of the adopted KMWLP, will provide sufficient minerals
during the Minerals Sites Plan period for the identified soft sand requirements and
make an effective contribution to the supply of land-won sharp sand and gravel.

Sharp Sand and Gravel

3.2 Policy CSM 2 of the adopted Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30, in
compliance with national policy, commits the County Council to make provision for at
least a 7 year landbank for land-won sharp sands and gravel based on the current
agreed local annual supply requirement for Kent while resources allow.

3.3 The local annual supply requirement is established annually through the Local
Aggregates Assessment (LAA) process, and has been taken as the average of the
previous 10 years of sales and projected over the anticipated Mineral Sites Plan
Period (2019-2030) including provision for an at least 7 year landbank to be available
at the end of this Plan period.

The supply of locally extracted sand and gravel will be sourced from:

» Existing permitted sites

» New sites, including extensions, as identified in the Mineral Sites Plan, and

» Other new sites not identified in the Mineral Sites Plan, deemed as acceptable
sustainable mineral development in accordance with local planning policy and
all material planning considerations including national planning policy

3.4 Based on 2014 data, the KMWLP identified a required provision over the life of the
plan period of 10.8mt of sharp sands and gravel and at least 7 years supply (5.46mt).
Since this time, permitted reserves have increased (due to current reserves being re-
estimated), and the 10 year sales average has decreased. Therefore, a new
requirement® has been calculated as shown in Figure 1.

5 See Sharp Sand and Gravel Topic Paper 2018

10
Page 56



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Figure 1 - Revised Sharp Sand and Gravel Site Plan Requirements

10 year average figure x Years covered by the Plan (18 years, 2019 to 2030 plus 7
year landbank) - Existing Permitted Reserves (estimated when Plan starts in our
case 2019) = Requirement tonnage to be provided over the Plan period
Estimated permitted reserves have been calculated as follows:

Reserves as of end of 2017 = 3.69
Current 10-year sales average=0.472mt

Available reserves by the end 2019 would be reduced by 2 years equivalent
extraction (during 2018 and 2019 at the current 10-year sales average rate)

Available reserves at end 2019 = 3.69mt minus (2 x 0.472mt) = 2.746 mt

Therefore:

(0.472 x 18) — 2.746 = 5.75mt overall Plan requirement

Having assessed the sharp sand and gravel sites that were promoted through the ‘call
for sites’ in accordance with planning policy, two sites are allocated to contribute to
the steady and adequate supply of sharp sands and gravel, subject to demonstrating
at planning application stage compliance with the development management criteria
set out below and national and local planning policy:

» Stonecastle Farm Quarry Extensions, Hadlow (M13) — an extension to the
existing quarry (total yield of 1,000,000 tonnes), and

» Land at Moat Farm, Five Oak Green (M10) - a proposed new quarry (total
yield of 1,500,000 tonnes)

Details of the sites and the development criteria are shown on the map Kent Minerals
Sites Plan — Sharp Sand and Gravels and in Appendix 1.

The total yield of the sites suitable for allocation is 2.5mt. This results in a deficit of
3.25mt over the Plan period. Therefore, Kent will continue to be increasingly
dependent on alternative sources to meet the demand for sharp sand and gravel.
This will likely entail increased importation of sand and gravel via wharves and
railheads, mainly from marine dredged materials from the East English Channel and
North Sea (see LAA2018). Railheads may further distribute this material and may
also have some potential to introduce land-won supply from other areas. Recycled
and secondary aggregates will also contribute to overall aggregate needs but cannot
be used as a substitute for all applications and is seen as making a contribution to
overall supply compared to primary aggregates.

Any proposal for the development of either of the above allocations must address the
development management considerations set out for each site in Appendix 1, in
addition to any other matters relevant to the development of each proposed allocation
demonstrating that any unacceptable impacts will be mitigated to the satisfaction of
the Mineral Planning Authority.

11
Page 57



- Farm Bullen Fam
ictoria 1€
Faulkner 3
<l sk Bourme House Mat Placa Farm
Cottage Cottage Fam
Hayse Farm The Pound
Higham Wood Bt Pierce Mill Addlestead East Peckham
Easterfield ittage
NOen Honeycroft The Lodg Earm
Farm Gaden Green
Snoll Hatch
Stoneham Laddingfor
\ Hadow il Bames Street Little Mill Cottacy
Littl Great Placs Fam . i
Farmhotse p
FishHall Fish Hall g e Little Bued L
i Fam
bt y Laddingford
5 n Hadlow Stair stilstead I’\‘i ‘I:x h Earm
Tonbl'ldge Fam Beltring
HaE s
and Mallifg
Noodlands
M10, Land
at Moat Lily Ho
Hou
Farm
rapsVine ThejGoach Maidstone
Gttage ' Little
Tudel Darman
Tude
Braol e — Fam
Postem Nenham's Farm Famm TTRVyEEE Fowlehall
G Park Lodge Par FFam vast Holse
oseem
T X lackswood House
HeathFam Tudeley Hale M13’ ik Hou
; = Upper :’HUHIIIII‘
Park View Pastem Stonecastle llows Farm
1t
sanding Farm Quarry Moat F am _
Farrituse Whetsted Eastland 1
-U Cottage Upper f
jab) Hall
Q Rhoden = k-
(9] Tudeley . } Farm tg=et
2] wite o The Coach Bank Fam Tunbridge .,
loe) Hou Wells “=" pel Grange
oach House
The Turke
orge ATd
North Lodge Farm
Crockhurst Dragon E Ear
odge Cottage SrOOK Fam
Fish Lodg hepherd ) tag
Cottage Bads &l Manor
Bounysegmill
na Coty
Plants
Bungalow
M— Top, Lodge Hadfmoon . |
ttage Garden House aps
Cottage olt's Hill
Rase Cottage Reeds F
Forest Farm  [<ePef ’ 3 ; Farm
ittane i
Feay {'l ‘HI‘I[‘H LomicCe
sstle Cott Amhurst Bank Cattage
Hill Fam el valnut Contains OSTdata © Crown Copyright and
Knowle Tree Farm database right 2018

1:25,000

05
Miles

0.25

Kent Minerals Sites Plan -
Sharp Sand and Gravels

D District Boundaries

County

Council

kent.gov.uk

Based upon the Ordnance Survey map
with the permission of the Controller of
Her Majesty's Stationery Office

Crown Copyright & Database Right 2016
Additional information © Kent County
Council




Soft Sand

3.9 Policy CSM 2 of the adopted Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30, in
compliance with national policy, commits the County Council to make the provision of
at least a 7-year landbank for soft sand based on the current agreed local annual
supply requirement for Kent.

3.10 The local annual supply requirement is established annually through the Local
Aggregates Assessment (LAA) process, and has been taken as the average of the
previous 10-years of sales and projected over the anticipated Mineral Sites Plan
Period (2019-2030) including provision for an at least 7-year landbank to be available
at the end of this Plan period

3.11 The supply of locally extracted soft sand will be sourced from:

» Existing permitted sites

» A new site, as identified in the Mineral Sites Plan, and

» Other new sites not identified in the Mineral Sites Plan, deemed as acceptable
sustainable mineral development in accordance with local planning policy and
all material planning considerations including national planning policy

3.12 Requirements in the adopted Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan (KMWLP) suggest
a 5 million tonne shortfall to be met from sites identified in the Kent Mineral Sites
Plan. This shortfall was based on 2014 data and assumed the need to plan for a 24-
year land bank, however, the Mineral Sites Plan period is shorter (the Plan period of
11 years (2019 to 30) plus 7 years at the end of the Plan period giving 18 years in
total to plan for). More recent calculations based on data in the LAA2018 regarding
supply in the form of sales and available reserves to meet that demand over the Plan
period, taken together with an 18-year landbank suggest the shortfall is now 2.5mt®.
See Figure 2.

6 See Soft Sand Topic Paper 2018

13
Page 59



Figure 2 - Revised Soft Sand Site Plan Requirements

10-year average figure x Years covered by the plan (18 years, 2019 to 2030 plus
7 year landbank) - Existing Permitted Reserves (estimated when the plan period
commences in our case 2019) = Requirement tonnage to be provided over the
Sites Plan period
Estimated permitted reserves have been calculated as follows:
Reserves as of end of 2017 = 8.85
Available reserves by the end 2019 would be reduced by 2 years equivalent
extraction (using the 10-year sales average of 0.568mt for 2018 and 2019
extraction)
Available reserves at end 2019 = 8.85 - (2 x 0.568mt) = 7.714mt

Therefore:

(0.568 x 18) — 7.714 = Overall Plan of 2.51mt requirement (rounded to 2.5mt)

3.13 Having assessed the soft sand sites that were promoted through the ‘call for sites’ in
accordance with planning policy, one site is allocated to contribute to the steady and
adequate supply of soft sand, subject to demonstrating at planning application stage
compliance with the development management criteria set out below and national and
local planning policy:

» Chapel Farm (West), Lenham (M3’) — a proposed new quarry (total yield
3,200,000 tonnes)

3.14 Details of the site and the development criteria are shown on the map Kent Minerals
Sites Plan — Soft Sand and in Appendix 1.

3.15 Any proposal for the development of the above allocation must address the
development management considerations set out for the site in Appendix 1, in
addition to any other planning considerations relevant to the development and that
any adverse impacts will be mitigated to the satisfaction of the Mineral Planning
Authority.

3.16 The yield of the Chapel Farm West site is 3.2mt. This amount can adequately meet
the objectively assessed need for soft sand over the life of the Plan and will meet the
requirement for a steady and adequate supply of soft sand in accordance with Policy
CSM 2 of the KMWLP.

3.17 There will also be a surplus of 0.7mt of soft sand available to contribute to the wider
regional need for this material.

7 As amended to exclude the eastern parcel 2018

14
Page 60



oy Eastling

Nichling

Throw e
f1edge Hockl
Hollingbourne
g
- Eyhorne
treet t St Throwl
street row
S Swale e
\. 4 i Payden Stres The Valle Tong Green Le
ine oodside
e Lreen
As hb ank
L eed: isfield
% een
Hiegmotn Harrietsham Id Harbour
Broomfield =)
N M3, Chapel
Maidstene -| Farm, )
Langley Heath
Laand  Lenham
Grel
ndwa
G Kingswood =
B hallo
Platt's Heath v The'l
Lenham = : ele
{ I-U} Chactway L t !n’»{ 1’.’\ Channg Hill ioud Raddarck
BN O B B verton
g - treet
D Boughton ~ Lenham Hg
- (@) Malh erbe x
,‘Pﬁ’,‘, Ll 0 haring Heath Ashford
Grafty Green
ThelH arbour 2
Broadstone bl‘jljv,l,l:‘ll‘lr
Egerton
Farthing Heamden Forstal
SIEe 5 Egerton Forstal
uthernden Little Chart
Sty Newland Green ‘ E
Plum tree ( Contains OSTdata © Crown Copyright and
Green Mundy Boi Fi database right 2018
N Legend
-
Kent Minerals Sites Plan - [ oistrict Boundaries Council

1:50,000

N
0 0.5 1 2

Miles

kent.gov.uk

Soft Sand

Based upon the Ordnance Survey map
with the permission of the Controller of
Her Majesty's Stationery Office.

© Crown Copyright & Database Right 2016.
Additional information © Kent County
Council




Appendix 1 - Kent Minerals Site Plan - Site Allocations
Background

This appendix contains the Development Management Criteria for each of the allocated
mineral sites. These set out the key, site specific information relating to potential constraints,
opportunities and issues to be addressed at the planning application stage.

The Kent Minerals Sites Plan is an integral part of, the KMWLP. The two documents should
be read together, and the policies of the KMWLP, particularly the development management
policies (Chapter 7) will be applied to proposals for development on sites allocated in the
Kent Minerals Site Plan.

Development Management Criteria

The Development Management criteria are specific matters to be taken into account in
relation to the development of each site. They also include guidance on restoration
objectives. The information set out in criteria should not be considered as exhaustive. These
criteria are based on an assessment of the sites at the time this Plan was prepared and if
circumstances change or new information becomes available prior to sites coming forward
through a planning application, this will also need to be taken into account in decision
making.

As a result of the issues set out in the Development Management Criteria, and depending on
the precise nature of the development proposed, mitigation measures are likely to be
required in order to prevent adverse impacts occurring. If adverse impacts are unavoidable
and it is considered that they are an acceptable part of the development proposed,
compensation measures may be required.

16
Page 62



Sharp Sand

Extensions to Stonecastle Farm Quarry, Hadlow/Whetsted

Site Location: Hadlow, Tonbridge

Grid reference: Eastings 563335 Northings 146908

District/Borough Council: Tonbridge and Malling (Access is within Tunbridge Wells)
Parish: Hadlow

Site Area: 28 hectares

Estimated Mineral Reserve: 1,000,000 tonnes

Existing Land Use: Agriculture

Proposed Development: Extraction of sharp sands and gravel (Sub-alluvial River Terrace
Deposits)

Proposed Restoration: Reedbeds and lakes
Development Management Criteria:

The Stonecastle Farm Quarry Extension site is acceptable in principle for mineral
development, subject to compliance with the development management considerations, with
particular reference to:

Transport

» A detailed transport assessment to demonstrate compliance with KMWLP Policy
DM13.

» All quarry traffic to utilise the existing Stonecastle Quarry access onto Whetsted
Road, and only turn left when exiting the site.

» The site shall only be worked sequentially to the permitted phases at Stonecastle
Farm Quarry or the Moat Farm Quarry (should planning permission be granted for
this latter site). To avoid unacceptable impacts on the local highway network, the
Stonecastle Farm Extension (M13), the Moat Farm Site (M10) and the permitted
Stonecastle Farm Quarry shall not be worked concurrently .

Water Resources

» A minimum 16 metre buffer will need to be provided between extraction and nearby
watercourses.

» Demonstration that the site will have no adverse impacts on hydrology or
hydrogeology. This should be undertaken in liaison with South East Water and the
Environment Agency and will need to include (amongst other matters) the following:

o The risk of pollutants entering the restored open lakes
o A Hydrometric Monitoring Strategy; the results of this should be regularly
reviewed and the conceptual model of the site updated as required

17
Page 63



>
>

o Risk to derogation of the activities subject to Abstraction Licences in the
vicinity of the site.

Compliance with the Environment Agency’s approach to the management and
protection of groundwater as outlined within their Groundwater Protection Position
Statements and take all measures and precautions necessary to avoid deterioration
in the quality of groundwater below the site.
The restoration plan will need to have reference to the proposed lakes and their
interface with the nearby watercourses in accordance with Environment Agency
advice. It must also include evidence to demonstrate how the integrity of nearby
watercourses will be retained.
The two abstraction licences within the vicinity of the site will need to be taken into
account.
Dewatering techniques must not be used that would impact local water resources.
Any application will need to be accompanied by a detailed flood risk assessment.

Amenity

>

A lighting, noise, dust and vibration management plan should be completed, setting
out how unacceptable impacts will be avoided. A detailed dust assessment and
management plan should be submitted which follows best practice and any national
Government guidance (e.g. Planning Practice Guidance).

Compliance with policy DM11 of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan in respect
of health and amenity.

Biodiversity

>

>

>

>

A detailed ecological appraisal setting out any mitigation measures needed to ensure
there are no unacceptable impacts on Kent's biodiversity assets

Detailed restoration proposals will need to demonstrate that the potential loss of the
BAP habitat deciduous woodland is offset by replacement woodland provision within
the proposed restoration plan. This should include a range of trees and shrub sizes
to create a vertical design element to the planting.

Any operations should exclude the Ancient Woodland and a suitable buffer should be
employed as to not impact on the designation directly or indirectly

Restoration scheme should incorporate additional woodland planting where possible,
including native evergreen species along the western and southern boundaries of the
proposed quarry extension site.

Suitable buffer zones and mitigation to be proposed to mitigate impacts to Local
Wildlife Site TM20.

The developer to appropriately manage the Nuttall’'s pondweed and Crassula in the
area.

The need for compensatory replacement habitat should be considered.

Heritage

>

>

>

Further assessment of the potential impact of proposals on the historic landscape
and surviving features is necessary and should account of the historic landscape
should be taken during works and in later site landscaping and restoration
programme.

The impact of proposals upon the Listed Buildings should be fully assessed and
mitigation measures undertaken to avoid impact on their setting.

Any planning application should be accompanied by a full archaeological impact
assessment to ascertain the extent of such remains.

18
Page 64



.. "'ree Elm L

Hadlow Place

House
dlow Place. "%, '0 |Hadlow Place
farmhouse 7. arm,

X )‘ Site M13
"“; Stonecastle Farm
1| Quarry,
Hadlow,
| Tonbridge & Malling
E’; e 7 I
IREITA: / h
.: i ayse Farmr
v: Easterfu?lda A %

Tahew
)

.

,«

™

e,

/.
Goldhill Hous:

" >
b

:

N
¥ / Lclzh Court

i 2 ) \\\ 3 S

§ \ S

> S
> | Colts Hill3/53

S:Ilstead
-_ Farm

‘,BS .

The Alders ‘

"_Sluice "

m| Site Access
| onto A228

o3,

%,

X

1:20,000

|Metres © Crown Copyright and database right 2018.

Ordnance Survey 100019238
960



Moat Farm, Capel, Tonbridge

Site Location: Five Oak Green, Capel, Tonbridge
Grid reference: Eastings 564578 Northings 146400
District/Borough Council: Tonbridge and Malling
Parish: Capel

Site Area: 38.2 hectares

Estimated Mineral Reserve: 1,500,000 tonnes
Existing Land Use: Agriculture

Proposed Development: Extraction of sharp sands and gravel (Sub-alluvial River Terrace
Deposits)

Proposed Restoration: Phased wetland restoration

Development Management Criteria:
The Moat Farm site is acceptable in principle for mineral development, subject to
compliance with the development management considerations, with particular reference to:

Transport

» A detailed transport assessment to demonstrate compliance with KMWLP Policy
DM13.

» Mineral must be removed from the site via the Stonecastle Farm site to the north
such that access onto the highway network is achieved using the existing and
approved access for the Stonecastle Farm Quarry.

» The site shall only be worked sequentially to the permitted phases at Stonecastle
Farm Quarry or the Moat Farm Quarry (should planning permission be granted for
this latter site).

» To avoid unacceptable impacts on the local highway network, the Stonecastle Farm
Extension, the Moat Farm Site and the permitted Stonecastle Farm Quarry shall not
be worked concurrently.

» Proposals for the diversion for PROW will be required which show how connectivity
of the surrounding PROW network will not be lost.

Water Resources

» A 16 metre buffer should be provided between extraction and nearby watercourses to
alleviate flood risk in the area. Furthermore, should the Alder Stream require
diversion, this should be subject to EA approval and hydraulic modelling must be
undertaken to inform the diversion route and the potential impact on flood risk
elsewhere.

» Any restoration works should not include raising the ground levels over existing
levels as this will have an adverse impact on flood risk. Wetland restoration is
preferable.

20
Page 66



Biodiversity

» Any proposal would need to be accompanied by a detailed ecological appraisal
setting out any mitigation measures needed to ensure there are no unacceptable
impacts on Kent's biodiversity assets

» Any operations should exclude the Ancient Woodland and a suitable buffer should be
employed as to not impact on the designation directly or indirectly.

Health and Amenity

» Compliance with policy DM11 of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan in respect
of health and amenity.

> A lighting, noise, dust, and vibration management plan should be completed, setting
out how unacceptable impacts will be avoided. A detailed dust assessment and
management plan should be submitted which follows best practice and any national
Government guidance (e.g. Planning Practice Guidance).

Heritage

» There is potential for Palaeolithic remains within the site. Therefore, any planning
application should be accompanied by a full archaeological impact assessment to
ascertain the extent of such remains.

21
Page 67



|

_E‘_W F VAN tent House ,-
g’ a'r.n.l. . ool
]  Site M10
~  Moat Farm,

Five Oak Green,
Capel,
Tunbridge Wells

- y
3 ) nce T
\ A/ : :
/&EE(-Y\T\E;"'“.. - ‘/\

. Green
dhill Hous

~7 Ty’ S b

T /QBrook Farm
A SES

Ty T3Fes oA

t Edst Lock
[}

1l
L
\

| site Access 7

| onto A228 | %‘Le
A Y

" -neet_
Farm 9
o\

(A2
6. 07En

7 Ssbars)

>

£

A

[ )

\ £
o
Hill

lace ,

o
ace SO
B

D LR

1:20,000




Soft Sand

M3: Chapel Farm, Lenham (Western Site)

Site Location: Lenham, Maidstone

Grid reference: Eastings 590223 Northings 150704

District/Borough Council: Maidstone

Parish: Lenham

Site Area: 35.4 hectares

Estimated Mineral Reserve: 3,200,000 tonnes

Existing Land Use: Agriculture

Proposed Development: Extraction of soft sand (Sandstone: Folkestone Formation)
Proposed Restoration: Lower level agriculture

Development Management Criteria:

The Chapel Farm, Lenham (Western Site) (M10) is acceptable in principle for mineral
development, subject to compliance with the development management considerations, with
particular reference to:

Biodiversity

» At least a 15 metre buffer to be maintained around the Ancient Woodland at all times

» Lenham Quarry SSSI is approximately 800m from the site and Hart Hill SSSI is
2.5km away; both are designated for their geological interest. Lenham Heath &
Chilston Park and Bull Heath Pit Local Wildlife Sites (LWS) are adjacent to the
proposed site. Evidence to be submitted with any planning application to confirm that
the LWS and SSSis will not be adversely impacted

» Woodland copse to the north-west corner of the site must be maintained

Landscape

> Detailed information setting out proposed mitigation of visual impacts and
demonstrating that the setting of the Kent Downs AONB will not be adversely
impacted

Heritage

» Nearby listed buildings include Royton Manor (Grade 11*) and Chapel Mill (11), Vine
House (II) and Mount Castle Farm Cottage (ll). Consideration and mitigation of
impacts on heritage assets including listed buildings is required.

23
Page 69



Water Resources

>

>

Any application will need to be accompanied by an EIA with particular emphasis on

the site’s relationship and impact on the Great Stour

Appropriate mitigation measures and monitoring will need to be implemented as per

the request of the Environment Agency, to demonstrate the following:

o] Hydraulic continuity between those reaches of the Great Stour and
associated tributaries, if proven to be in part dependent on groundwater
baseflow originating from the adjoining aquifer (Folkestone Formation).

o] The hydraulic integrity of the river is not compromised. In particular, the
proposed plans will need to recognise the function of the foremost transient
reaches of the Great Stour, which are dependent on both chalk escarpment
seepage and surface runoff contributions, where underlain by Gault Clay to
the immediate north of Chapel Farm. Any submission will need to account for
this ‘contribution’, and the plans cannot allow the Great Stour to become
hydraulically ‘isolated’ from its headwaters, irrespective of whether those
watercourses are quantified as ephemeral.

0 The underlining Sandgate Formation is not compromised, especially if the
Formation is shown to be acting as an aquiclude at Chapel Farm, and within
the immediate vicinity. Such a response is required to protect the Hythe
Formation, which is classified as a major water resources aquifer unit.

Transport and Access

A detailed transport assessment to demonstrate compliance with KMWLP Policy
DM13.

The Transport Assessment should consider ability to access the site via rail, impacts
on the A20 and the Maidstone AQMA and show how any potential adverse impacts
on this AQMA will be mitigated.

Utilities

Demonstration that sensitive receptors such as sewage lines, electricity pylons and
the railway lines will not be affected by land instability caused by the development.
The functioning of the Lenham WWTW and other sewerage infrastructure must not
be adversely impacted

Health and Amenity
» Compliance with policy DM11 of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan in respect

of health and amenity.

» A lighting, noise, dust, and vibration management plan should be completed, setting

out how unacceptable impacts will be avoided. A detailed dust assessment and
management plan should be submitted which follows best practice and any national
Government guidance (e.g. Planning Practice Guidance).

24
Page 70



L% AN _/

Site M3
Chapel Farm
Lenham,
Maidstone

&
Tophill Farm

. | ¥ ‘,.‘ ‘ 48 AN ) Stoneb "-me )
000 I S ey W'Y L
0 240 480 720 960
25

Page 71




This page is intentionally left blank



| Kent

County
Council

kent.gov.uk

Kent Mineral Sites Plan

Mineral Site Assessment 2018

Page 73 1



Contents

1

2
3
4
5

3T T L1 Tt o o N 3
Site Selection MethodoIOgY .........cciiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiniiiinieiesse e ssssssessessssssessssssesssssssessnsasesss 4
INitial SIt@ ASSESSIMENT.....ccciiiiiiiiiiititiie i s sa s s s s s e s s s s s sa e s b e s a e saaesane 9
Nominated Sites Eliminated at Initial Site Assessment STAge .......cccccccceereerreerrcrsnerrerssnersesssnessessnensessnns 42
Detailed Technical Assessment of Mineral Site Options........cccceecceerrerrceerrersseereessseeesesseersesssesssssnnensessnns 49
M3: Chapel Farm, LENNAM ..ottt sttt e e st ee e e s st e e e s sabee e e e abeeeeesabeeeeesaseeesennsees 52
M8: West Malling Sandpit, RYArsh ......ccocuiiiiiiiiiiciee ettt et e s e ree e e s sbee e s e sbae e s e nanes 68
M2: Lydd Quarry/Allen’s Bank EXtENSIion, LYAd .......cceeiieiiiiiiieenieecie ettt et er e re et e saeesane e e 86
M7: Land at Central Road, Dartford ........cooooviiiiiiiiiiii 100
M10: Moat Farm, Five Oak Green, CAPE| ......cccuueieicciiiee ettt ettt e et e e e e ctte e e e ebte e e e erteeessaraeeeeenns 112
M11: Joyce Green Farm Quarry Extension, Dartford - Sharp Sand and Gravel .........ccccocvveeviciieeiiciiennnns 123
M12: Postern Meadows, TONDIIOZE .....cccuuiiiiiiiiee ittt e st e e s s b re e e e sbeee e e sbeeeessnsaeeesans 139
M13: Stonecastle Farm Quarry Extensions, Hadlow/Whested...........ccceovveeieeiiieieeeer e 149
M9 The Postern, Capel - Sharp Sand and Gravels ..........ccveeeeeiiiee ettt e e eree e 162
(00T ol TF T T o 163
Appendix 1 — Initial Site Assessment - RAG Sensitivity SCoring Criteria ........coceeeeevieeeeeciee e 165
Appendix 2 - Green Belt Considerations — West Malling Sandpit (M8) .......ccceeevveeiiieciieciie e 175
Appendix 3 - Ryarsh Protection Group representation to Kent County Council, November 2018 - West
MalliNg SANAPIT (IM8) ..eiieee ettt ettt e et e e e et e e e e e bt e e e e eebteeeeebteeaesbeeeeeestaeeeanssaeeeessesessssnaananns 191
Appendix 4 — Natural England’s Advice to KCC - Lydd QUarry (M2).....ccuueeeeecieeeeciiee et 210

Appendix 5 - Alternative Supply of Aggregates and Socio-economic Considerations — Lydd Quarry (M2)216

First Draft for Publication

V1 November

2018

Page 74 2



1 Introduction

The adopted Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30 (KMWLP) is part of the Development
Plan for planning purposes. It sets out the overarching framework for the strategy and planning
policies for sustainable minerals extraction, importation and recycling, and the management of
all waste streams that are generated in Kent, together with their spatial implications. This includes
consideration of the economic, social and environmental aspects of strategic minerals and waste
planning within the county. The Plan was formally adopted by the County Council in July 2016.

Whilst the adopted Plan provides the strategy and policy framework for minerals and waste
proposals to be considered against, it does not allocate specific sites suitable for development
(except for two strategic sites for cement production at Holborough in the Medway Valley, and
hazardous waste disposal at Norwood Quarry on the Isle of Sheppey). The adopted KMWLP
identifies that suitable sites will be allocated in separate subsequent Kent Minerals and Waste
Sites Plans. Some work was previously undertaken on preparation of the Sites Plans that led to a
Preferred Options Consultation (for waste and minerals) in May 2012. To enable a more
up-to-date appraisal of site suitability and deliverability it was considered necessary to
undertake a second ‘Call for Sites’ exercise and this commenced in late 2016, continuing into
2017. To inform the process of site selection the County Council also published a ‘living draft’
methodology for site selection which was subject to public consultation. The Site Plan work has
followed the methodology as set out in the Kent Mineral Sites Plan - Methodology for Site
Selection 2018.

During 2017 a re-assessment of waste management capacity was undertaken that identified that
there is no need for the allocation of specific waste sites in a separate Waste Sites Plan and so
this document is concerned solely with the identification of mineral sites.

This document sets out a summary of the methodology, the initial assessment conclusions and
the detailed technical assessment conclusions for those sites promoted following the second Call
for Sites. An earlier document, Site Selection Methodology Initial Screening RAG Scores v 2
2017 set out the position at the initial screening assessment stage. The details are reproduced in
this document for ease of reference.

Page 75 3



2 Site Selection Methodology

The County Council proposes a robust site selection process to determine which sites should be
progressed to allocations for minerals development in the Minerals Sites Plan. This was
originally set out in the living draft Site Selection Methodology (published in October 2016) and
included checking alignment with the scope of the Sites Plans, initial screening (as detailed in this
document), identification of reasonable alternatives and detailed technical assessments.

In undertaking the work, a change was introduced into the assessment process which relates to
the provision of an early opportunity for public engagement on potential sites. It is considered
that there is benefit in seeking early views from stakeholders as this provides an opportunity for
local knowledge and specialist information held by stakeholders to be considered as the plan
emerges. As such the views of stakeholders will benefit the subsequent detailed technical
assessment stage. Public engagement is also generally considered to be an important part of
the plan-making process. The revised living draft Site Selection Methodology (revised November
2017) included alignment with the objectives of the adopted KMWLP and scope of the sites plan,
initial screening, consultation on the site options and detailed technical assessment of the site
options.

Stage 1 — Alignment with the objectives of the adopted KMWLP and scope of the
Sites Plan

Those sites not falling within the scope of the adopted KWMLP, and modifications proposed
by the partial review, which do not identify the need for the allocation of such a site, were
eliminated at this stage. These sites are listed in Section 4 of this report.

Stage 2 - Initial Screening

At the initial screening stage, it was considered beneficial to consider all sites that had been
promoted through the Call for Sites which were in alignment with the objectives of the KMWLP
and the scope of the Sites Plan. This has provided comparable information for all promoted sites,
should it be required at a later stage in the plan making process.

This initial screening of the sites utilises a refined ‘traffic light' system based on a Red, Red-
Amber, Amber, Amber-Green and Green (RAG) scoring methodology (See Table 1) to determine
which sites will be published for consultation and go forward to the Detailed Technical
Assessment stage. The RAG process acts as a scoping stage to highlight sites which might
cause significant impacts, alone or in combination. It is primarily a desk-based procedure,
supported by site visits.

Each site was RAG assessed against the following criteria:

e Landscape designations and potential visual impacts upon such designations
o Nature conservation interests and geodiversity

e Historic environment;

e Green Belt

o Water environment including flooding;

Page 76 4



Air quality;

Soil quality;

Public Rights of Way (PRoW);

Transport (including access);

Services and utilities;

Health and Amenity i.e. noise, dust, odour, vibration impacts etc.
Cumulative impacts; and

Airport safeguarding

Page 77



8/ abed

Table 1: Summary of the General RAG Assessment Methodology

Sensitivity Score

GREEN- AMBER

Description

Possible Mitigation

The impact or issue is so severe that it would be unlikely to be
adequately mitigated and no evidence has been provided on the
potential mitigation and/or, in the case of sites within AONB existence
of any relevant exceptional circumstance demonstrating it to be in the
public interest. It is considered that the site is unlikely to be able to
proceed

Mitigation in order to make the site acceptable
is unlikely

There is a major impact or issue which may be made acceptable by
mitigation

Likely to require high levels of mitigation in
order to make the site acceptable

There is a moderate impact or issue which may be made acceptable
by mitigation

Likely to require medium levels of mitigation
in order to make the site acceptable

There is a minor impact or issue which may be made acceptable by
mitigation

Likely to require low levels of mitigation in
order to make the site acceptable

There are no impacts or issues relating to the criteria being assessed
that require mitigation

Likely to require negligible to no mitigation in
order to make the site acceptable




The way in which the RAG score is applied to each assessment criteria is detailed in the RAG
Sensitivity Scoring Criteria, as appended at Appendix 1. In practice, the degree to which individual
sites score on the Amber, Amber-Green and Green spectrum will determine the more sustainable
solutions likely to progress to the next stage, consultation on the site options. Sites that received a
Red score in the assessment were more likely to be ruled out at Stage 2 on the basis that
they raise issue(s) of such severity that they are unlikely to be able to be adequately
mitigated. This assessment process does not, however, automatically exclude sites that are
assessed as red-amber from Stages 3 and 4, on the basis that suitable mitigation may be
achievable. However, where a site scores Red-Amber against a number of criteria it was
considered that it was less likely to progress to the next stages as it is more likely that the overall
impacts and extent of mitigation required to make the site acceptable is so great that it would be
likely to be undeliverable. The RAG scoring methodology is therefore intended to provide an
‘indication’ of a site’s suitability or unsuitability.

Section 3 of this report details the RAG assessment for the sites that were promoted to the County
Council as a consequence of the ‘Call for Sites’ exercise and not eliminated at Stage 1 above -
alignment with the Plan.

Stage 3 - Consultation on Options

The sites which represented potentially sustainable options for minerals developments were
identified via the RAG initial screening and went forward to Stage 3 as the Options for
Consultation. These were set out in the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30 Mineral
Sites Plan Options Consultation Document November 2017. The document and supporting
evidence were subject to public consultation between December 2017 and March 2018. Views
were sought from a variety of stakeholder interests, including an early view from local
communities in the vicinity of the sites. The views received have been taken into consideration in
the Detailed Technical assessment phase. This work has also informed the sustainability
appraisal and Habitat Regulation Assessment.

In addition to the RAG considerations, for a site to be considered as a Mineral Site Option it also
had to:

¢ Align with the Objectives of the KMWLP - (Stagel above);
o Be justified
o Be deliverable

Stage 4 - Detailed Technical Assessment to Ildentify the Preferred Options for
allocation in Mineral Sites Plan

The site options which were identified as potentially suitable from the Initial Screening and RAG
assessment work were subject to more rigorous detailed technical assessment. As appropriate,
this included assessment in respect of a range of environmental impacts including landscape and
visual impact, amenity, highways and transportation, biodiversity, historic environment, water
resources and flood risk, impact upon Public rights of way land stability and need. As appropriate it
also included assessment in respect of:

Page 79 7



Habitat Regulations

Green Belt

Requirements of National Planning Policy and Guidance
The Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30

O O O O

Where appropriate, additional information was provided by the promoter to aid the assessment
process and consider issues raised as a result of public consultation or by technical
consultees. The Detailed Technical assessment stage of the work has informed the Plan’s
Sustainability Appraisal.

In addition, to the above technical assessments, to ensure that the Sites Plan work is planning
for sufficient requirements, the Detailed Technical Assessment stage of the work has included
a review of the soft sand and sharp sand and gravel requirements for aggregates to be
provided for in the Mineral Site Plan. Policy CSM2 of the KMWLP requires the Site Plan to
allocate sites for soft sand and for sharp sand and gravel based upon the most recent
calculations of requirements set out in the Local Aggregate Assessment. This work has
identified a soft sand need of 2.5mt and a sharp sand and gravel need of 5.75mt. It should
however be noted that as sharp sand and gravel resources in Kent are rapidly depleting, Policy
CSM2 recognises that the sharp sand and gravel requirements only need to be met whilst
resources allow. Further details are set out in the Soft Sand and Sharp Sand and Gravels
Topic Papers 2018.

At the conclusion of this stage of the assessment process, those sites that are demonstrably
acceptable against the selection criteria will be identified as Preferred Options for allocation in
the Mineral Sites Plan.

In essence, for a site to be allocated it has to be where viable mineral resources are known to
exist; where landowners are supportive of mineral development taking place and where the
Mineral Planning Authority considers that planning applications are likely to be acceptable in
principle in planning terms having regard to planning policy and guidance.

The conclusion of the Detailed Technical Assessment work is set out in Section 6.

Page 80 8



3 Initial Site Assessment

This section of the report reproduces the conclusions of the earlier site assessment work. This was
previously set out in Kent Minerals Sites Plan — Mineral Site Selection — Initial Assessment November
2017. A summary of these finding is also set out in the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30
Minerals Sites Plan Options Consultation Document, November 2017.

RAG Scoring Mineral Sites

Abbreviations:

¢ AONB - Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty

o AQMA — Air Quality Management Area

¢ BAP — Biodiversity Action Plan

e GSPZ - Groundwater Source Protection Zone
e GVZ — Groundwater Vulnerability Zone

e KMWLP — Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan
e LWS — Local Wildlife Sites

¢ PRN - Primary Route Network

¢ PROW - Public Right of Way

e SSSI - Site of Special Scientific Interest

Page 81



28 abed

Chapel Farm, Lenham (Ref. M3)

Address: Chapel Farm, Ashford Road, Lenham, Kent, ME17 2DP

Soft sand extraction, 4,000,000 tonnes over a period of 26 years at a rate of 150,000 tpa. Site is 58.67ha. Restoration: it is proposed to restore the
site to a lower level by infilling and return the site back to an agricultural after use.

Consideration

RAG Outcome

Reason

Landscape
Designations/Visual
Impact

Amber

Although the site does not fall within the Kent Downs AONB, it is considered to be within its setting
and so potentially could have a moderate adverse visual impact on views towards the site from
within the AONB that may require mitigation/appropriate screening. This matter would be subject to
further detailed technical assessment.

Nature Conservation
and Geodiversity

Amber

Lenham Quarry (SSSI) is within 1km of the site, although it is unlikely to be adversely affected by
the site.

Ancient Woodland, notably Roughetts Shaw is situated onsite, although this woodland has a felling
license.

A number of BAP Priority Habitats and LWSs are located adjacent to the site; mitigation would need
to be considered to prevent adverse impacts on these designations from the site.

Historic Environment

Water Environment

Air Quality

Soil Quality

Amber

There are a number of listed buildings within 250m of the site, notably: Chapel Farm (Grade II),
Royton Manor (Grade I1*¥), Mount Castle Farm Cottage (Grade Il), Chapel Mill (Grade Il), Vine
House (Grade Il), The Forstal (Grade Il). Chapel Farm and Royton Manor both lie within 2700m of
the site. Chilston Park (Grade II) Historic Garden lies adjacent to the site.

A number of archaeological sites have been identified within the site.

Mitigation is likely to be necessary to prevent adverse impacts on Kent’s heritage assets and/or
their setting.

The site is in Flood Zone 1. Part of the site is within GSPZ 3. A large part of the site is situated on a
Major Aquifer Intermediate.

Sand and gravel workings are classed as water compatible development and would therefore have
no unacceptable impact on water resources.

The site is not within, or located near to an AQMA and poses low or no risk of adverse impacts to
AQMAS or air quality.

Amber-Green

The site contains Grade 3 quality soil — Good to Moderate. The soil may be impacted, although
opportunities for restoration to agricultural after use have been proposed which may mitigate any
impacts in the long term.

10



£g abed

Public Rights of Way
(PROW)

-

There are a number of footpaths that are located within the site, or in close proximity, notably:
KH397, KH398, KH408, KH409, KH409B and KH428. Given the proposed 26-year operations of
the site, impacts on these footpaths would require mitigation which would include diversion.

Transport

Amber-Green

It is proposed to provide a new access route adjoining the site to the A20 (PRN). The route would
initially follow an existing (unclassified) agricultural track before adjoining the planned access route
(cutting through agricultural land).

The site could have a minor adverse impact on transport and access in the absence of mitigation,
which could be provided through planning obligations.

Services and Utilities

Amber-Green

Lenham sewage works are situated adjacent to the site and a sewer line cuts through the site.
Power lines also cross the western section of the site. Any adverse impacts on these
services/utilities would require mitigation.

Health and Amenity Amber There are a number of residential properties within 250m of the site. Given the close proximity of
residential properties, mitigation is likely to be required to ensure the site does not cause an
unacceptable impact on health and amenity (dust, noise, vibration, visual amenity etc.).

Cumulative Impact Amber The area immediately surrounding the site has been subject to extensive quarrying activity. The

accumulation of activity at the site with that of the quarrying activity in the surrounding area may
well have a cumulative impact on the environment and on the local community that would likely
require mitigation.

Airport Safeguarding
Zone

The site is not within, or near to an Airport Safeguarding Zone.

Green Belt

The site is not within the Green Belt.

Summary and
Outcome of Scoring
(including key issues
and constraints)

The site could make a significant contribution to the KMWLP requirements in the supply of soft
sand.

Overall, this assessment suggests that there are no constraints which cannot be overcome by
appropriate mitigation. This site should therefore be subject to consultation as an option as well as
further detailed technical assessment and Sustainability Appraisal.

Key findings of this assessment which may need further attention at the detailed assessment stage
are as follows:

e The site is within the setting of the Kent Downs AONB and appropriate mitigation measures
would be required.

e SSSiis located within 1km of the site, Ancient Woodland is situated on the site and a
number of BAP Priority Habitats and LW S are located adjacent to the site; mitigation

11



g8 abed

meagures would be required to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts on these designations.
There¢ are a number of listed buildings within 250m of the site; mitigation would be required to protect
theseg heritage assets and their setting.

Anu
requi

ber of archaeological sites have been identified within the site and a full investigation would be
red to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts and to preserve Kent’s heritage assets.

The gite contains Grade 3 quality soil (Good to Moderate). Appropriate consideration would be required to
reduge the impact on this interest.

A number of public footpaths are located within the site or in close proximity. Impacts on these footpaths
would require mitigation which would include diversion.

Over

head electrical power lines and sewer lines located within or adjacent to the site would require

appropriate consideration of rerouting and mitigation.

There are a number of residential properties within 250m of the site. Given the close proximity, mitigation
would be required to ensure there are no unacceptable adverse impacts on health and amenity.

The surrounding area has been subject to extensive quarrying activity for a number of years. The
cumylative impacts on the environment and local community, along with the impact on the highway

netwi

ork would need to be appropriately considered.

An appropriate transport and access arrangement to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts on local
amenity would also need to be considered.

12



Gg abed

Double Quick Farm, Charing (Ref. M14)

Address: Double Quick Farm Sawmill, Lenham Forstal Road, Lenham Heath, Kent, ME17 2BZ

Soft sand extraction, 1,000,000 tonnes over a period of 10 years at a rate of 100,000 tpa. Site is 3ha. Restoration: back fill with clean inert/re

topsoil.

Consideration

RAG Outcome

Reason

Landscape
Designations/Visual
Impact

Amber

The site is within 2km of the Kent Downs AONB (approximately 1.3km) with separation afforded by
the rail line and A20 to the north. The site is also within an area of open countryside. As such,
landscape assessment would be required to determine the extent of any impact and any mitigation
necessary to prevent any adverse impact on the open countryside and setting of the AONB.

Nature Conservation
and Geodiversity

The site would have no impact on international, national or local designations.

Historic Environment

Amber-Green

Individual listed buildings are located within 500m of the site, one of which is within 250m. The site
may have an impact on the nearby listed building within close proximity that could likely be
addressed through mitigation.

Water Environment

The site lies within GSPZ 3, GVZ Major Aquifer Intermediate and Principal Bedrock Aquifer. Given
the presence of the GSPZ, GVZ and Aquifer across the whole of the site, development may have a
major impact on vulnerable water bodies in the absence of mitigation.

Air Quality

The site is not within or near to an AQMA.

Soil Quality

Amber

Natural England’s Agricultural Land Classification Map states that the site contains Grade 3 (Good
to Moderate) quality soil which is likely to be impacted by the site activities. Opportunities for
mitigation/restoration exist in returning the site to agricultural use.

Public Rights of Way
(PROW)

Amber-Green

Footpaths AW11A and KH402 are both located within 90m of the site. The site would not require
the footpaths to be diverted, although mitigation/screening may need to be considered.

Transport

It is proposed for the site to adjoin Lenham Forstal Road (a narrow unclassified country lane) which
after approximately 2km adjoins the A20. There are severe impacts associated with accessing the
site in that the surrounding road network is considered unsuitable for HGVs.

Services and Utilities

There are no services or utilities near to or within the site.

Health and Amenity

The site is located within close proximity to the small village/hamlet of Lenham Heath. There are a
number of dwellings within 90m and adjacent to the site. The site could have major adverse impact
to health and amenity in the locality in terms of dust, noise, vibration, visual intrusion and traffic

13



9g abed

associated with operations at the site which would likely require mitigation.

Cumulative Impact The area surrounding the site has a longstanding history of quarrying activity which may well result

in an unacceptable adverse impact on environment and/or community that would require mitigation.

Airport Safeguarding
Zone

The site is not near to, or within an Airport Safeguarding Zone.

Green Belt | The site is not within the Green Belt.

Summary and

Outcome of Scoring e The site is within and area of open countryside and within 1.3km of the Kent Downs AONB,;
(including key issues appropriate mitigation measures would be required.

and constraints) e There are a number of listed buildings within 500m of the site; mitigation would be required

to protect these heritage assets and their setting.

¢ Mitigation would be required to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts on the aquifers
located within the site.

e The site contains Grade 3 quality soil (Good to Moderate). Appropriate consideration would
be required to reduce the impact on this interest.

¢ A number of public footpaths are located within the sit. Impacts on these footpaths would
require mitigation.

e There are severe impacts associated with accessing the site in that the surrounding road
network is considered unsuitable for HGVs.

e There are a number of residential properties within 100m of the site (including in close
proximity to the small village/hamlet of Lenham Heath). Given the close proximity,
mitigation would be required to ensure there are no unacceptable adverse impacts on
health and amenity.

e The surrounding area has been subject to extensive quarrying activity for a number of
years. The cumulative impacts on the environment and local community would need to be
appropriately considered.

It is considered that the transport impacts could not be overcome and so the site is not proposed as
an option for allocation in the Minerals Sites Plan.

14



/8 abed

Joyce Green Quarry, Dartford (Ref. M11)

Address: Joyce Green Lane, Dartford, Kent, DA1 5PN

Sand and gravel extraction, 1,500,000 tonnes over a period of 10 years at a rate of 150,000 tpa. Site is 55ha. Restoration: water bodies with
wetland edges to provide additional biodiversity and recreational use of parts of the site.

Consideration

RAG Outcome

Reason

Landscape
Designations/Visual
Impact

Amber

The site is not within the AONB. The site is not within an area of open countryside but does cover
an area of marsh grazing land within what is otherwise a predominantly industrialised/urbanised
area. Mineral extraction would temporarily compromise the open, natural landscape which would
require mitigation.

Nature Conservation
and Geodiversity

Amber

Inner Thames Marsh and Purfleet Chalk Farm (SSSI) both within 2km of the site. BAP habitat
Costal Saltmarsh and Mudflats adjacent to the site with half the site covered by BAP Coastal and
Floodplain Grazing Marsh habitat. The whole site is covered by LWS — Dartford Marshes. The
mineral extraction activities would result in the loss of the BAP Coastal and Floodplain Grazing
Marsh habitat with proposed restoration to wetland. The BAP Coastal Saltmarsh and Mudflats
adjacent to the site could also be adversely affected by mineral extraction at the site. The LWS
Dartford Marshes would also be impacted by extraction activities although this may be
appropriately addressed through the proposed wetland restoration. The impacts from development
of the site may be mitigated or compensated such that there is net benefit to biodiversity from the
proposed restoration.

Historic Environment

Amber-Green

The site is within an area of archaeological potential and investigative works would need to be
undertaken to ensure there are no adverse impacts to Kent’s heritage assets from development of
the site.

Water Environment

Amber

The site lies within Flood Zones 2 and 3, and an area benefiting from flood defence. The southern
extent of the site along with the permitted area of the site falls within GSPZ total catchment (zone
3). The site is also within Major Aquifer High Groundwater Vulnerability Zone. Sand and gravel
extraction is considered water compatible development in accordance with the Flood Zone
Vulnerability Classification Table, although the extraction activities may have a moderate adverse
impact on other vulnerable water bodies (the GSPZ and Aquifer) requiring mitigation.

Air Quality

Amber

The site is within the vicinity of Dartford AQMASs 1, 2, 3 & 4. Bexley AQMA borders the site to the
west. Given the proximity of the site to nearby AQMAs, the site may have an adverse impact on air
guality requiring mitigation.

15



8g abed

Soil Quality

Amber

Natural England’s Agricultural Land Classification Map states that the site contains Grade 3 (Good to
Moderate) quality soil. The soil is likely to be impacted by activities at the site, restoration
opportunities exist although it is proposed to restore the site to wetland habitat.

Public Rights of Way
(PROW)

Amber

Footpath DB1 and Darent Valley Path / London Loop run through the site and alongside the southern
site boundary. Footpaths DB2 and DB4 run alongside the eastern site boundary. The site is likely to
cause a moderate impact on the footpaths crossing the site and adjacent to the site which may
require diversion and mitigation. Opportunities to restore/reinstate the footpaths upon completion of
the mineral extraction and restoration exist.

Transport

Amber

The proposed access to the site would be via Joyce Green Lane (an unclassified rural lane) to the
roundabout junction onto Bob Dunn Way (A206). The site has good transport links to the
PRN/SRN. However, there may be issues with the site access in that Joyce Green Lane may not be
suitable for usage by HGVs and significant work may need to be carried out to make the proposed
access feasible.

Services and Utilities

There are no services or utilities near to, or within the site.

Health and Amenity

Amber-Green

The area around site is mainly coastal flood plain used for grazing with a recreational shooting range
in the east and commercial/industrial uses to the west. The quarry is unlikely to cause significant
amenity impacts. To the south of the site are two dwellings that are likely to see an increase in traffic,
vibration, noise and pollution and so mitigation is likely to be required.

Cumulative Impact

Amber-Green

The area has seen quarrying activity in the past, there is industrial activity to the north, east and west
and further activity at the proposed site may have a negative impact on the environment/locality.

Airport Safeguarding
Zone

oo

The site is not within an Airport Safeguarding Zone.

Green Belt

Amber-Green

The site is within the Green Belt. However, mineral extraction activity is not considered to be
inappropriate development within the Green Belt. Associated activities such as processing and
restoration may affect ‘openness’ and if proposed would need to demonstrate the existence of ‘very
special circumstances’ as set out in Green Belt policy.

16



68 abed

Summary and
Outcome of Scoring
(including key issues
and constraints)

The site could make a significant contribution to the KMWLP requirements in the supply of sharp
sand and gravel.

Overall, this assessment suggests that there are no constraints which cannot be overcome by
appropriate mitigation. This site should therefore be subject to consultation as an option as well as
further detailed technical assessment and Sustainability Appraisal.

Key findings of this assessment which may need further attention at the detailed assessment stage
are as follows:

e The site covers an area of marsh grazing land and appropriate mitigation measures would be
required.

e The entirety of the site is covered by LWS, SSSI is located within 2km of the site and BAP
Habitats are located adjacent to the site; mitigation measures would be required to prevent
unacceptable adverse impacts on these designations.

e The site is located within an area of Archaeological Potential and a full investigation would be
required to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts and to preserve Kent’s heritage assets.

e Mitigation would be required to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts on the aquifers located
within the site.

e The site is in close proximity to several AQMA’s. Mitigation would be required to prevent an
unacceptable adverse impact on the local air quality.

e The site contains Grade 3 quality soil (Good to Moderate). Appropriate consideration would be
required to reduce the impact on this interest.

e The site is within the Green Belt, appropriate consideration would be required to consider the
potential impact upon ‘openness’.

¢ A number of public footpaths are located within the site or in close proximity. Impacts on these
footpaths would require mitigation which would include diversion.

¢ Nearby road networks may be incapable of accommodating HGVs; mitigation would be
required to ensure that the impact upon the local road infrastructure is reasonable.

e There are a couple of residential properties in close proximity to the site. Given the close
proximity, mitigation would be required to ensure there are no unacceptable adverse impacts
on health and amenity.

e The surrounding area has been subject to extensive quarrying activity for a number of years.
The cumulative impacts on the environment and local community would need to be
appropriately considered.

17



06 abed

Central Road, Dartford (Ref. M7)

Address: Central Road, Dartford, Kent, DA1 5AH

Sand & gravel extraction, 900,000 tonnes over a period of 10 years at a rate of 90,000 tpa. Site is 23.2ha.

Consideration

RAG Outcome

Reason

Landscape
Designations/Visual
Impact

Amber-Green

The site does not fall within the AONB. However, the site is within an area of open land that would
be readily visible from the surrounding area, particularly the residential properties to the east and
the A206 to the north — this may have a minor adverse impact requiring mitigation.

Nature Conservation
and Geodiversity

Amber

The site is listed within the Priority Habitat Inventory for Coastal and Flood Plain Grazing Marsh
with the site situated on LWS Dartford Marshes. The site is likely to have a significant effect on the
local designation; potential mitigation measures have not been included in the proposal.

Historic Environment

Amber-Green

There are no listed buildings within close proximity to the site. However, the site is in an area of
archaeological potential which would need to be addressed and potentially mitigated.

Water Environment

Amber-Green

The site falls within Flood Zone 2 and 3, GSPZ 2 (Outer Zone), an area of a Major Aquifer High
Groundwater Vulnerability Zone and within an area of Secondary A and Secondary
(undifferentiated) aquifers. The site also falls within an Area Benefitting from Flood Defence.
Although the site is in an area of high flood risk, the proposed sand and gravel extraction is
considered water compatible development in accordance with the Flood Risk Vulnerability
Classification Table. The aquifer present may require consideration, and potentially mitigation, to
prevent adverse impacts.

Air Quality Amber The site is near to 3 AQMAS, within 90m of the Dartford Town Centre AQMA. It is not specified
how many vehicle movements would arise from operations at the site. The site could have an
impact on air quality should traffic from the site pass through an AQMA that would require

Soil Quality Amber The soil quality is stated as in part Grade 2 (Very Good) and Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) on

Natural England’s Agricultural Land Classification Map. Proposed restoration/after use is not stated
and it is therefore possible that the Grade 2/3 quality soil may be lost without appropriate
mitigation.

Public Rights of Way
(PROW)

Amber-Green

The site is bordered by public footpath DB1 and bridleway DB4 to the west and to the east, both of
which run in a north-south direction. Although the site is unlikely to require the two PROWs
highlighted to be diverted, mitigation/screening may be required.

Transport

Amber-Green

Although access arrangements for the site aren’t specified, the site adjoins Central Road (SRN)

18



T6 abed

which is in close proximity to the A206 (PRN). Given that the site is located in a heavily
industrialised area, mitigation may be required to prevent impacts resulting from an increase in
vehicular movements in the area/associated with the site.

Services and Utilities

Amber

Powerlines are located within the site. These powerlines would require consideration and mitigation
if extraction were to take place on site.

Health and Amenity

Amber

Residential properties are situated to the east and west of the site beyond Central Road and the
River Darent with properties having views that look out on to what is currently undisturbed
marshland. Mineral activities at the site would potentially result in a number of adverse impacts on
health and amenity in the locality, notably dust, noise, vibration and visual intrusion that would
require adequate mitigation.

Cumulative Impact

Airport Safeguarding
Zone

Green Belt

Summary and
Outcome of Scoring
(including key issues
and constraints)

Amber

The site is located in an industrial area with substantial residential development taking place in the
nearby vicinity. The nearby AQMA also suggests significant traffic movements nearby. These
factors suggest that mitigation may be necessary to prevent adverse impacts on the local
environment/community.

London City Airport is located approximately 11.4km from the site. While this is within the 13km
Aerodrome Safeguarding Area radius it is not considered likely that operations at the site would
result in an increased risk of bird-strike to aircraft.

The site is not within the Green Belt.

The site could make a significant contribution to the KMWLP requirements in the supply of sharp
sand and gravel.

Overall, this assessment suggests that there are no constraints which cannot be overcome by
appropriate mitigation. This site should therefore be subject to consultation as an option as well as
further detailed technical assessment and Sustainability Appraisal.

Key findings of this assessment which may need further attention at the detailed assessment stage
are as follows:

e The site is situated within the LW S Dartford Marshes and is likely to have a significant
impact on the designation. Mitigation measures would be required to prevent unacceptable
adverse impacts on this designation.

e The site is located within an area of Archaeological Potential and a full investigation would
be required to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts and to preserve Kent’s heritage
assets.

e Mitigation would be required to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts on the aquifers

19



26 abed

located within the site.
The gite is in close proximity to three AQMA’s. Mitigation would be required to prevent an unacceptable
adverse impact on the local air quality.

e The site contains Grade 2 (Very Good) and Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) quality soil.
Appropriate consideration would be required to reduce the impact on this interest.
The gite borders a public footpath and bridleway. Impacts on these would require mitigation which could
include diversion.
An appropriate transport and access arrangement to prevent adverse impacts on local amenity.
Overhead electrical power lines located within the site would require appropriate consideration of
rerouting and mitigation.
Ther¢ are a number of residential properties to the east and west of the site. Given the close proximity,
mitigation would be required to ensure there are no unacceptable adverse impacts on health and amenity.
Substantial residential development is taking place in the nearby vicinity. Significant traffic movements
need|to be considered and appropriately mitigated, including the impact on the
AQM

20



€6 abed

Moat Farm, Five Oak Green, Capel (Ref. M10)

Address: Moat Farm, Five Oak Green, Tonbridge, Kent, TN12 6RR

Sand and gravel extraction, 1,500,000 tonnes over a period of 15 years at a rate of 100,000 tpa. Site is 40.3ha and currently used for agriculture.

Restoration: wetland habitat restoration using limited quantities of inert material.

Consideration

RAG Outcome

Reason

Landscape
Designations/Visual
Impact

Amber

The High Weald AONB is located approximately 1.8km to the north of the site and may therefore
have some degree of adverse impact on its setting that may require mitigation. The site is also
located within an area of open countryside which may require appropriate mitigation e.g. screening.
A landscape assessment is required.

Nature Conservation
and Geodiversity

Amber-Green

The site is bordered to the north-west by Ancient Woodland with further Ancient Woodland within
500m of the site to the south-west. Mitigation may be necessary to prevent any adverse impact on
the Ancient Woodland.

Historic Environment

Amber-Green

The site is adjoined on its southern boundary by Moat Farm Listed Building. A number of other
Listed Buildings are located within 1km to the east of the site in the village of Whetsted. Mitigation
may be required to prevent adverse impact and to preserve the setting of Moat Farm.

Water Environment

Air Quality

Soil Quality

Public Rights of Way
(PROW)

Transport

Amber

The site is within Flood Zones 2 and 3. The site predominantly falls within GSPZ 2 with parts of the
site falling in GSPZ 1. The site is partly within a Secondary Superficial Aquifer and Secondary
(undifferentiated) aquifer, in addition GVZ - Minor Aquifer High covers the whole site. The sand
and gravel extraction activities are considered water-compatible development in the Flood Risk
Vulnerability Classification Table. Mitigation may be required to prevent adverse impact on the
aquifers located within the site.

The site is not within, or near to an AQMA.

Natural England’s Agricultural Land Classification states that the soil is of Grade 3 (Good to
Moderate) quality. The proposed restoration is to wetland habitat and therefore the agricultural land
would be lost. Opportunities for mitigation/restoration to agricultural land exist.

Amber

Footpaths WT159 and WT158 cross the western extent of the site, with footpath WT169 runs along
the southern boundary of the site. The two footpaths located on site would likely require extensive,
and potentially permanent diversion with the proposed site restoration being wetland habitat.

Access to the site is proposed via a purpose-built private road from Stonecastle Farm Quarry

21



v6 abed

Services and Utilities

Health and Amenity

joining onto the A228 (Whetsted Road, PRN). The site would therefore utilise the existing access
serving Stonecastle Farm Quatrry.

There are no services or utilities near to, or within the site.

There are residential properties within 1km of the site to the south in the village of Five Oak Green
and to the east in the village of Whetsted, although only Moat Farm itself is located within 250m of
the site. Given the sites proposed access and transport route via the existing Stonecastle Farm
Quarry, the increase in traffic movements could potentially have a moderate adverse health and
amenity impact in terms of traffic, noise etc. on properties in Whetsted and those located on or near
to the A228 which would require mitigation.

Cumulative Impact

Amber

Airport Safeguarding
Zone

Green Belt

Amber-Green

There has been a significant amount of quarrying activity in the area, notably with Stonecastle
Farm Quarry to the east. The accumulation of activity at the proposed site and existing nearby
guarry site may have a moderate adverse impact on the environment and/or community that would
require mitigation.

The site is not within an Airport Safeguarding Zone.

The site is within the Green Belt. However, mineral extraction activity is not considered to be
inappropriate development within the Green Belt. Associated activities such as processing and
restoration may affect ‘openness’ and if proposed would need to demonstrate the existence of
‘very special circumstances’ as set out in Green Belt policy.

22



G6 abed

Summary and
Outcome of Scoring
(including key issues
and constraints)

The site could make a significant contribution to the KMWLP requirements in the supply of sharp
sand and gravel.

Overall, this assessment suggests that there are no constraints which cannot be overcome by
appropriate mitigation. This site should therefore be subject to consultation as an option as well as
further detailed technical assessment and Sustainability Appraisal.

Key findings of this assessment which may need further attention at the detailed assessment stage
are as follows:

The site is within 1.8km of the High Weald AONB and appropriate mitigation measures would
be required.

Ancient Woodland borders the site; mitigation measures would be required to prevent
unacceptable adverse impacts on this designation.

A listed building borders the site and a number of others are within 1km of the site; mitigation
would be required to protect these heritage assets and their setting.

Mitigation would be required to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts on the aquifers
located within the site.

The site contains Grade 3 quality soil (Good to Moderate). Appropriate consideration would
be required to reduce the impact on this interest.

A number of public footpaths are located within the site or in close proximity. Impacts on
these footpaths would require mitigation which would include diversion.

There are a number of residential properties within 1km of the site. Given the close
proximity, mitigation would be required to ensure there are no unacceptable adverse impacts
on health and amenity.

The site is within the Green Belt, appropriate consideration would be required to consider the
potential impact upon ‘openness’.

The surrounding area has been subject to extensive quarrying activity for a number of years.
The cumulative impacts on the environment and local community, along with the impact on
the highway network would need to be appropriately considered.

An appropriate transport and access arrangement to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts
on local amenity.

23



96 abed

Lydd Quarry and Allens Bank Extension, Lydd (Ref. M2)

Address: Jury's Gap Road, Lydd, Kent, TN29 9JW

Sand and gravel extraction, 3,100,000 tonnes over a period of 12.3 years at a rate of 250,000 tpa. Site is 38.07ha. Restoration: it is proposed to
restore the site to open water bodies.

Consideration

RAG Outcome

Reason

Landscape
Designations/Visual
Impact

Amber

The site is not within the AONB. It is within the open countryside and is a proposed extension to the
existing Lydd Quarry and Allens Bank. Upon completion of mineral extraction at the site it is
proposed to restore the site to open bodies of water. This would change the intrinsic character of
the countryside in this locality although there are existing extensive areas of mineral workings
including restored to open water/wetland in this immediate area.

Nature Conservation
and Geodiversity

The site is within the Dungeness, Romney Marsh and Rye Bay SSSI, adjacent to the Dungeness,
Romney Marsh and Rye Bay Ramsar, SPA and SAC within 1km. BAP Priority habitat Coastal
Vegetated Shingle is within and adjacent to the site with a number of other BAP habitats (Coastal
and Floodplain Grazing Marsh, Deciduous Woodland, Traditional Orchard) within 1km of the site.
The proposed site is likely to have a significant to moderate impact on the designations as the site
is located within national designations, adjacent to international designations and within and in
close proximity to local designations.

The SSSI designation doesn’t preclude extraction and may be acceptable if the geomorphological
formations are widespread. There is also the possibility of enhancement through the creation of
open water bodies through restoration.

Historic Environment

There are a number of Listed Buildings within 250m of the site, notably Tourney Hall (Grade I1)
adjacent to the site. The site is also located within an area of Archaeological Potential. Mitigation
may be required to preserve the Listed Buildings and their setting; archaeological investigative
works may also be necessary on the site before any extraction activity.

Water Environment

The site is within Flood Zone 3 and benefits from flood defence. The site is within the Secondary
Aquifer & Groundwater Vulnerability Zone notation for the area and the Minor Aquifer High notation
that covers the whole site. Mineral extraction activities at the site would not have an unacceptable
adverse impact on water resources.

Air Quality

There are no AQMAs on, or within close proximity to the site.

Soil Quality

oo

Natural England’s Agricultural Land Classification Map states the site contains Grade 4 (Poor)
guality soil. Mineral extraction at the site would not result in the loss of good/very good quality soil.

24



16 abed

Public Rights of Way
(PROW)

Amber

Footpath HL26 borders and crosses the site, HL27 crosses the northern part of the site; HL48
borders the south of the site. It is likely that the footpaths highlighted would require temporary
diversion. The stated proposed restoration is to open water bodies, although opportunities to
restore the footpaths do exist.

Transport

Amber

Access to the site is via the Jury’s Gap Road part of the SRN which serves the existing Lydd
Quarry site, the PRN (A259) is some distance away (approximately 5km) past Lydd towards New
Romney. There may be moderate transport impacts in that the access to the PRN would likely be
via the town of Lydd, the road infrastructure may not cope with the increase in HGV movements,
mitigation would be necessary.

Services and Utilities

Amber

Health and Amenity

Overhead electrical line route cuts through ‘area 22’ in the western extent of the site, adjacent to
the existing Lydd quarry and sewage works. Sewer line runs through ‘area 22’ and ‘area 23’ of the
site. The services and utilities highlighted could require consideration to affect any necessary re-
routing or other mitigation.

Cumulative Impact

The town of Lydd lies adjacent to the south of the proposed site extensions, sharing a boundary
with two areas of the site. A number of other residential properties are within close proximity to
various areas of the site. Given the extensive area the site covers, the site could cause major
adverse impacts (dust, noise, vibration, visual intrusion, traffic) to the health and amenity of the
locality in the absence of mitigation.

Amber

There are several restored mineral sites within the area, as well as the operational ones on which
the extension is proposed. The site relates to multiple areas of extraction. The accumulation of the
guarry extension with the existing quarry site may have a moderate adverse impact on the
community and/or environment for which mitigation may be necessary.

Airport Safeguarding
Zone

Amber-Green

Green Belt

The site is within 2.3km of Lydd Airport. It is not anticipated that the activities at the site would
result in an increased risk of bird strike to aircraft.

Summary and
Outcome of Scoring
(including key issues
and constraints)

The site is not within the Green Belt.

The site could make a significant contribution to the KMWLP requirements in the supply of sharp
sand and gravel.

Overall, the assessment suggests that there are no constraints which cannot be overcome by
appropriate mitigation. This site should therefore be subject to consultation as an option as well as
further detailed technical assessment and Sustainability Appraisal.

Key findings of the assessment which may need further attention at the detailed assessment stage
are as follows:

25



86 abed

The quarry extension areas are located within SSSI, adjacent to Ramsar/SPA and within

1km pf SAC. BAP Priority Habitat is located within the site as well as the surrounding area. Mitigation
meagures would be required to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts on these designations.

Subject to a study of the geological and geomorphological interests of the site, restored quarry water
habitat areas could contribute to the value of the designated areas.

Ther¢ are a number of listed buildings within 250m of the site; mitigation would be required to protect
these heritage assets and their setting.

The gite is located within an area of Archaeological Potential and a full investigation would be required to
prevent unacceptable adverse impacts and to preserve Kent’s heritage assets.

A number of public footpaths are located within the site or in close proximity. Impacts on these footpaths

woulg
Giver
mitig
not a
Over
apprc
The t
requi
The s
cumd
netw

| require mitigation which would include diversion.

1 the sites’ distance from the Primary Route Network PRN (approximately 5km)

ation would be required to ensure that the local road infrastructure (in particular the town of Lydd) is
dversely impacted.

head electrical power lines and sewer lines located within or adjacent to the site would require
priate consideration of rerouting and mitigation.

own of Lydd lies adjacent to the site boundary. Given the close proximity, mitigation would be
red to ensure there are no unacceptable adverse impacts on health and amenity.

urrounding area has been subject to extensive quarrying activity for a number of years. The
lative impacts on the environment and local community, along with the impact on the highway
ork would need to be appropriately considered.

26



66 abed

Postern Meadows, Tonbridge (Ref. M12)

Address: Postern Meadows, Postern Lane, Tonbridge, Kent, TN9 1SW

Sand and gravel extraction, 230,000 tonnes over a period of 3 years at a rate of 75,000 tpa. Site is 7.2ha. Restoration: to landscaped lake without

any infilling and restoration to amenity, nature conservation and recreational use.

Consideration

RAG Outcome

Reason

Landscape
Designations/Visual
Impact

Amber-Green

The site is not within an area of open countryside, the site is bounded by industrial development to
the south, west and north-west and the River Medway to the north and to the east. The site does
not fall within the AONB although may be considered to fall within the High Weald AONBSs setting,
any potential minor impact could be addressed through mitigation.

Nature Conservation
and Geodiversity

Amber-Green

There is an area of Ancient Woodland approximately 300m to the east of the site. BAP Habitat
(traditional orchard) approximately 600m to the south east. An area of deciduous woodland
approximately 500m to the west of the site. The site may have a minor adverse impact on the
nearby local designations highlighted, although this could be addressed through mitigation and
potentially enhanced in the future following restoration.

Historic Environment

Amber-Green

There are listed buildings within 500m of the site to the west and to the southeast, although it is
unlikely that activities at the site would have an adverse impact on the listed buildings. The site is
within an area of archaeological potential, prior investigative work may be required to ensure the
preservation of any archaeological assets on or near to the site.

Water Environment

Amber

The site is within Environment Agency Flood Zones 2 and 3, GSPZ 3 (total catchment), Minor
Aquifer High Groundwater Vulnerability Zone. The sand and gravel extraction at the site is
considered water compatible development in the Flood Risk Vulnerability Classification Table. The
site may have some impact on the GSPZ/Minor Aquifer that may require mitigation.

Air Quality

The site is not within an AQMA. Tonbridge High Street AQMA is approximately 1km away although
it is considered that the site would have an impact on the AQMA.

Soil Quality

Amber

Natural England’s Agricultural Land Classification states that the soil is of Grade 3 (Good to
Moderate) quality. The proposed restoration is to landscaped lakes and therefore the agricultural
land would be lost. Opportunities for mitigation/restoration to agricultural land exist.

Public Rights of Way
(PROW)

Amber

Footpath MU33 runs adjacent to the southern boundary of the site. Footpaths MU32 and MU34
are both within 90m of the site. Wealdway and Medway Valley Walk lies within 90m of the site.
Footpath MU33 is currently well screened, however further mitigation/screening may well be

27



00T abed

necessary for the other footpaths listed to ensure there are no negative impacts.

Transport

Amber-Green

Access to the site would be created through the industrial site to then adjoin the A26 (Vale Road,
PRN). Mitigation may need to be considered in creating the dedicated access and preventing
increased traffic with regard to the industrial site.

Services and Utilities

There are no services or utilities near to or within the site.

Health and Amenity

Amber

The site is located within a predominantly commercial/industrial area. Individual properties are
located within 250m of the site which may be moderately impacted by the site in terms of health
and amenity — noise, dust, vibration, and mitigation may be required to address these potential
impacts.

Cumulative Impact

Amber-Green

Given that the site is within a commercial/industrial area and the proposed access would be located
through the industrial site there may be some cumulative impact in terms of increased traffic
movements associated with the site.

Airport Safeguarding
Zone

The site is not within or near to an Airport Safeguarding Zone.

Green Belt

Amber-Green

The site is within the Green Belt. However, mineral extraction activity is not considered to be
inappropriate development within the Green Belt. Associated activities such as processing and
restoration may affect ‘openness’ and if proposed would need to demonstrate the existence of
‘very special circumstances’ as set out in Green Belt policy.

28



TOT abed

Summary and
Outcome of Scoring
(including key issues
and constraints)

The site could make a contribution to the KMWLP requirements in the supply of sharp sand and
gravel.

Overall, this assessment suggests that there are no constraints which cannot be overcome by
appropriate mitigation. This site should therefore be subject to consultation as an option as well as
further detailed technical assessment and Sustainability Appraisal.

Key findings of this assessment which may need further attention at the detailed assessment stage
are as follows:

e The site is within the setting of the High Weald AONB and is bounded by industrial
development; appropriate mitigation measures would be required.

e Ancient Woodland is located within 300m of the site, deciduous woodland within 500m and
BAP Habitat within 600m; mitigation measures would be required to prevent unacceptable
adverse impacts on these designations.

e There are a number of listed buildings within 500m of the site; mitigation would be required
to protect these heritage assets and their setting.

e The site is located within an area of Archaeological Potential and a full investigation would be
required to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts and to preserve Kent’s heritage assets.

e Mitigation would be required to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts on the aquifers
located within the site.

e The site contains Grade 3 quality soil (Good to Moderate). Appropriate consideration would
be required to reduce the impact on this interest.

e The site is within the Green Belt, appropriate consideration would be required to consider the
potential impact upon ‘openness’.

¢ A number of public footpaths are located in close proximity to the site. Impacts on these
footpaths would require mitigation which would include diversion.

¢ Increase in vehicular movements on nearby road networks would require mitigation to
ensure that the local road infrastructure is not adversely impacted.

e There are a number of properties within 250m of the site. Given the close proximity,
mitigation would be required to ensure there are no unacceptable adverse impacts on health
and amenity.

e Cumulative impacts in terms of increased traffic movements would need to be considered
and appropriately mitigated.

29



20T abed

Stonecastle Farm, Hadlow/Whetsted (Ref. M13)

Address: Stonecastle Farm Quarry, Whetsted Road, Whetsted near Tonbridge, Kent

Sand and gravel extraction, 1,000,000 tonnes over a period of 7 years at a rate of 200,000 tpa. Actual yield may be less due to quality issues. Site
is 27.8ha. Restoration: phased restoration to follow after extraction - lakes, complex of vegetated/bare islands, trees kept back from lake edge.

Consideration

RAG Outcome

Reason

Landscape
Designations/Visual
Impact

Amber

The site is not within the AONB (the High Weald AONB is approximately 3km to the south west).
The site is within an area of open countryside, the landscape of which would be considerably
altered by the mineral extraction activities and proposed lake restoration — although this could
enhance the landscape of the area.

Nature Conservation
and Geodiversity

Amber

There is Ancient Woodland adjacent to the site. The site contains BAP habitat Deciduous
Woodland. Although the adjacent woodland is likely to be maintained, sufficient mitigation would be
necessary to ensure this. The BAP woodland is shown as lost on the restoration plans, but this
could be offset or amended by restoration that includes replacement woodland.

Historic Environment

Amber-Green

There are individual Listed Buildings within 250m of the site. Although it is unlikely, the site may
cause a minor adverse impact to the Listed Buildings that would require mitigation.

Water Environment

Amber

Air Quality

The site lies within Flood Zones 2 and 3. GSPZ zone 2 and partly 3 Secondary A Superficial
Aquifer and GVZ - Minor Aquifer High. The nature of operations at the site (sand and gravel
extraction) is considered water compatible development. However, the site could have a moderate
adverse impact on GSPZ/vulnerable water bodies in the absence of mitigation.

Soil Quality

The site is not within, or in close proximity to AQMA.

Amber

Natural England’s Agricultural Land Classification Map states that the site contains Grade 3 (Good
to Moderate) quality soil. The sail present although not of the highest quality, would be impacted by
the mineral activity at the site. Although the proposed restoration is to lakes and vegetated/bare
islands, opportunities for mitigation/restoration exist.

Public Rights of Way
(PROW)

Amber-Green

Transport

PROW MT 160 runs along the northern edge of the River Medway, just north of the site (approx.
75m). PROW WT 168 is on the western boundary of the site which runs south from Hartlake
Road. The two PROWSs highlighted may be affected in their setting and require mitigation e.g.
screening.

It is proposed that the site would use the established access for the existing quarry. This site

30



€0T abed

Services and Utilities

Amber-Green

access adjoins directly on to the A228 (SRN). The site would not give rise to adverse impacts on
transport and access to the PRN/SRN.

There are overhead power lines that cross a small area of the south-western portion of the site.
The power lines highlighted may require consideration and mitigation.

Health and Amenity

Amber-Green

There are individual residential properties within 1km of the site although they are unlikely to be
adversely impacted by the proposal. The main impact on the locality would be the continuation of
HGV movements at the established access and along the A228. Though this is unlikely to result in
unacceptable levels of impact.

Cumulative Impact

Airport Safeguarding
Zone

Green Belt

Amber-Green

Amber-Green

The proposed site is an extension to the existing Stonecastle Quarry site and as such there may be
an adverse impact on the environment/locality from the continuation of extraction operations at
the site.

The site is not within an Airport Safeguarding Zone.

The site is within the Green Belt. However, mineral extraction activity is not considered to be
inappropriate development within the Green Belt. Associated activities such as processing and
restoration may affect ‘openness’ and if proposed would need to demonstrate the existence of
‘very special circumstances’ as set out in Green Belt policy.

31



0T abed

Summary and
Outcome of Scoring
(including key issues
and constraints)

The site could make a contribution to the KMWLP requirements in the supply of sharp sand and
gravel.

Overall, this assessment suggests that there are no constraints which cannot be overcome by
appropriate mitigation. This site should therefore be subject to consultation as an option as well as
further detailed technical assessment and Sustainability Appraisal.

Key findings of this assessment which may need further attention at the detailed assessment stage
are as follows:

The site is within 3km of the High Weald AONB and appropriate mitigation measures would
be required.

The site contains BAP Habitat Deciduous Woodland with Ancient Woodland adjacent to
the site; mitigation measures would be required to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts
on these designations.

There are a number of listed buildings within 250m of the site; mitigation would be required
to protect these heritage assets and their setting.

Mitigation would be required to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts on the aquifers
located within the site.

The site contains Grade 3 quality soil (Good to Moderate). Appropriate consideration would
be required to reduce the impact on this interest.

The site is within the Green Belt, appropriate consideration would be required to consider the
potential impact upon ‘openness’.

A number of public footpaths are located in close proximity to the site. Impacts on these
footpaths would require mitigation which would include diversion.

Overhead electrical power lines located within the site would require appropriate
consideration of rerouting and mitigation.

There are a number of residential properties within 1km of the site. Given the close
proximity, mitigation would be required to ensure there are no unacceptable adverse impacts
on health and amenity.

The surrounding area has been subject to extensive quarrying activity for a number of years.
The cumulative impacts on the environment and local community would need to be
appropriately considered.

An appropriate transport and access arrangement to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts
on local amenity.

32



GOT abed

The Postern, Capel (Ref. M9)

Address: The Postern, Postern Lane, Tonbridge, TN11 OQU

Sand and gravel extraction, reserve estimate of 600,000 tonnes to be confirmed, 5-year extraction is suggested. Site is 12ha. Restoration:
proposed lakes following extraction.

Consideration

RAG Outcome

Reason

Landscape
Designations/Visual
Impact

Amber-Green

The site lies approximately 1km to the north of the High Weald AONB, although it could be
considered to have a minor adverse impact on the AONBs setting which could be addressed
through mitigation. In addition, the site lies within an area of open countryside which may also
require mitigation to prevent adverse impacts. A landscape assessment is required.

Nature Conservation
and Geodiversity

Amber-Green

BAP Traditional Orchards occupy a small part of the site although mitigation would be possible to
preserve this habitat. An area of Ancient Woodland lies within 500m to the west of the site although
is unlikely to be affected by activity at the site.

Historic Environment

Amber-Green

Three listed buildings are within 250m of the site, with two Archaeological Sites also within 250m of
the site. Mitigation may be required to ensure there are no adverse impacts on the setting of the
Listed Buildings and Archaeological Sites from activities at the site.

Water Environment

Air Quality

Soil Quality

Public Rights of Way
(PROW)

Transport

Amber

Amber

Amber

The site is within Flood Zones 2 and 3, GSPZ 3. The site is also located in area containing
Secondary (undifferentiated) superficial aquifer and Minor Aquifer Intermediate. The sand and
gravel extraction activities are considered water-compatible development in the Flood Risk
Vulnerability Classification Table. Mitigation may be required to prevent adverse impact on the
aquifers located within the site.

The site is not within or near to an AQMA.

Natural England’s Agricultural Land Classification states that the soil is of Grade 3 (Good to
Moderate) quality. The proposed restoration is to landscaped lakes and therefore the agricultural
land would be lost. Opportunities for mitigation/restoration to agricultural land exist.

The site would have no effect on PROWSs/Kent’s Long Distance Trails.

Access information to the site has not been provided with the site nomination and so details are
unclear. Postern Lane lies within 500m to the south of the site and adjoins the A26 (PRN) within
1km to the West in Tonbridge, although this lane would unlikely be capable of accommodating
HGVs given the fact it is harrow, and therefore would require widening/making suitable for HGVs.

33



90T abed

Should the site be accessed to the north, both a dedicated access and a route of transport
connecting to the A26 would be required. The site presents issues in terms of access/egress to the
site as well as accessing the PRN and mitigation would therefore be necessary as well as potential
planning obligations.

Services and Utilities

Amber

High Pressure Gas Pipelines cross the site. The sites promoter has stated that these pipelines
would need to be avoided during extraction/restoration rather than being rerouted and as such
would require mitigation.

Health and Amenity

Amber-Green

There are a small number of residential dwellings within 250m of the site with the majority of nearby
land use being industrial/agricultural. The issues associated with transport/access to the
site would likely have an adverse impact on health and amenity in terms of traffic, noise, odour etc.

Cumulative Impact

There are no concerns of cumulative impact resulting from development at the site.

Airport Safeguarding
Zone

il

The site is not within or near to an Airport Safeguarding Zone.

Green Belt

Amber-Green

The site is within the Green Belt. However, mineral extraction activity is not considered to be
inappropriate development within the Green Belt. The submission indicates that the resource would
be processed elsewhere, and this location has not yet been determined. Any processing and
additional plant may affect ‘openness’ and would need to demonstrate ‘very special circumstances’
as set out in Green Belt policy.

34



/0T abed

Summary and
Outcome of Scoring
(including key issues
and constraints)

The site could make a contribution to the KMWLP requirements in the supply of sharp sand and
gravel.

Overall, this assessment suggests that there are no constraints which cannot be overcome by
appropriate mitigation. This site should therefore be subject to consultation as an option as well as
further detailed technical assessment and Sustainability Appraisal.

Key findings of this assessment which may need further attention at the detailed assessment stage
are as follows:

e The site is within 1km of the High Weald AONB and appropriate mitigation measures would
be required.

e BAP Traditional Orchards occupy a small part of the site and Ancient Woodland is within
500m of the site; mitigation measures would be required to prevent unacceptable adverse
impacts on these designations.

e There are a number of listed buildings within 250m of the site; mitigation would be required to
protect these heritage assets and their setting.

e A number of archaeological sites have been identified within 250m of the site and a full
investigation would be required to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts and to preserve
Kent’s heritage assets.

e Mitigation would be required to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts on the aquifers
located within the site.

e The site is within the Green Belt, appropriate consideration would be required to consider the
potential impact upon ‘openness’.

e The site contains Grade 3 quality soil (Good to Moderate). Appropriate consideration would
be required to reduce the impact on this interest.

¢ Nearby road networks are unlikely to be capable of accommodating HGVs; mitigation would
be required to ensure that the impact upon the local road infrastructure is reasonable.

e High Pressure Gas Pipelines which cross the site would require appropriate consideration of
rerouting and mitigation.

e There are a number of residential properties within 250m of the site. Given the close
proximity, mitigation would be required to ensure there are no unacceptable adverse impacts
on health and amenity.

35



80T abed

West Malling Sandpit, Ryarsh (Ref. M3)

Address: Land at the Roughetts, Roughetts Road, Ryarsh, West Malling, Kent, ME19 5LA

Soft sand extraction, 3,100,000 tonnes over a period of 24 years at a rate of 130,000 tpa. Silica sand extraction, 500,000 tonnes over a period of
24 years at a rate of 20,000 tpa. Site is 12ha. Restoration: 5-year restoration to be returned to agricultural land (as existing).

Consideration

RAG Outcome

Reason

Landscape
Designations/Visual
Impact

Amber

The Kent Downs AONB lies immediately to the north of the site (separated by the M20) and the site
is within an area of open countryside. It is likely that the site would require mitigation/screening to
prevent any adverse impacts on the setting of the AONB and the open countryside. A landscape
assessment would be required.

Nature Conservation
and Geodiversity

Amber-Green

There are a number of international, national and local designations within close proximity to the
site, notably: Trottiscliffe Meadow (SSSI, within 1.8km of the site), Ancient and Semi-Natural
Woodland is located within the southern part of the site and surrounding the site, BAP Deciduous
Woodland is located within the southern/western part of the site and surrounding the site. The site
is unlikely to have an adverse impact on the SSSI highlighted. The proposed extraction intends to
leave the Ancient Woodland and BAP Woodland intact, although mitigation would be necessary to
ensure this.

Historic Environment

Amber-Green

There are a number of listed buildings within 500m of the site, 3 of which are within 260m of the
site. In addition, there are a number of Scheduled Monuments within 1km of the site (Addington
Long Barrow, within 960m and the Chestnuts Long Barrow within 1km), and Conservation Areas
within 1km (Addington within 600m, Ryarsh Village within 640m and Offham Church within 800m).
Mitigation may need to be considered to preserve Kent’s heritage assets, particularly the listed
buildings within close proximity to the site.

Water Environment

Amber-Green

The site is not located within Flood Zones 2 or 3. The site is located within GSPZ 3, is within Major
Aquifer Intermediate Groundwater Vulnerability Zone, and Principal Bedrock Aquifer. The presence
of the aquifer would require consideration prior to extraction and potentially mitigation.

Air Quality

The site is not within, or in close proximity to an AQMA.

Soil Quality

Amber-Green

Natural England’s Agricultural Land Classification Map states that the site contains Grade 3 (Good
to Moderate) soil.

Public Rights of Way
(PROW)

Amber

Footpaths MR152 and MR153 run through the site in an east-west direction. The two footpaths
would require diversion/mitigation during the lifespan of the site, although there is potential to

36



60T abed

reinstate the footpaths during the restoration of the site as it is proposed to be returned to
agricultural land (as existing).

Transport

Amber-Green

The proposed access to the site would be via Roughetts Road (Unclassified) which adjoins the site
to the east. It is proposed that vehicles accessing the site would do so via the A20 (PRN) within
500m of the site to the south. There are individual properties along Roughetts Road which would
need to be considered and potentially mitigated through planning obligations.

Services and Utilities

Amber-Green

Although no services or utilities are located on the site/area of extraction, a number of which have
been identified as in close proximity to the site, including: Openreach/Telecom, Plancast/Telecom,
SGN/Gas, South East WaterMWater, Southern WaterMWater and Sewage, UKPN/Electricity,
Vodafone/Telecoms. Potential adverse impacts to these services and utilities may require

Health and Amenity

Cumulative Impact

Airport Safeguarding
Zone

Green Belt

Amber

Amber-Green

There are a number of properties within 500m of the site, with the village of Addington within 500m
to the west. The nearest properties are approximately 200m from the site, some of which are
located along Roughetts Road (the proposed transport/access route). Due to the close proximity of
residential properties potential impacts to health and amenity in the locality in terms of noise, dust,
traffic, vibration and visual intrusion would need to be assessed and mitigation measures proposed.

Wrotham Quarry is located approximately 800m from the site with a former quarry approximately
100m away. Given the history of quarrying activity in the area past and present and the site being
located proximate to the AONB, cumulative impact would be expected in terms of additional traffic
in the area and the adverse impact associated with quarrying activity more generally, and the effect
this would have on the community and the environment.

The site is not within or near to an Airport Safeguarding Zone.

The site is within the Green Belt. However, mineral extraction activity is not considered to be
inappropriate development within the Green Belt. Associated activities such as processing and
restoration may affect ‘openness’ and if proposed would need to demonstrate the existence of
‘very special circumstances’ as set out in Green Belt policy.

37



0TT abed

Summary and
Outcome of Scoring
(including key issues
and constraints)

The site could make a significant contribution to the KMW LP requirements in the supply of soft

Overall, the assessment suggests that there are no constraints which cannot be overcome by
appropriate mitigation. This site should therefore be subject to consultation as an option as well as
further detailed technical assessment and Sustainability Appraisal.

Key findings of this assessment which may need further attention at the detailed assessment stage
are as follows:

The site is within the setting of the Kent Downs AONB and appropriate mitigation measures
would be required.

SSSl is located within 1.8km of the site, Ancient Woodland and BAP Deciduous Woodland
are located within the site and the surrounding area; mitigation measures would be required
to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts on these designations.

There are a number of listed buildings within 500m of the site; mitigation would be required
to protect these heritage assets and their setting.

A number of Scheduled Monuments and Conservation Areas are within 1km of the site and
a full investigation would be required to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts and to
preserve Kent's heritage assets.

Mitigation would be required to prevent unacceptable adverse impacts on the aquifers
located within the site.

The site contains Grade 3 quality soil (Good to Moderate). Appropriate consideration would
be required to reduce the impact on this interest.

The site is within the Green Belt, appropriate consideration would be required to consider
the potential impact upon ‘openness’.

Two public footpaths are located within the site. Impacts on these footpaths would require
mitigation which would include diversion.

There are a number of residential properties within 500m of the site (including the village of
Addington). Given the close proximity, mitigation would be required to ensure there are no
unacceptable adverse impacts on health and amenity.

The surrounding area has been subject to extensive quarrying activity for a number of
years. The cumulative impacts on the environment and local community, along with the
impact on the highway network would need to be appropriately considered.

An appropriate transport and access arrangement to prevent unacceptable adverse
impacts on local amenity.

38




TTT abed

Wrotham Quarry Extension, Addington/Trottiscliffe (Ref. M5)

Address: Wrotham Quarry, Addington, West Malling, Kent, ME19 5DL

Soft sand extraction, 790,000 tonnes over a period of 16 years at a rate of 50,000 tpa. Silica sand extraction, 1,570,000 over a period of 16 years
at a rate of 100,000 tpa. Site is 17.5ha. Restoration: restoration would be back to agricultural land at original ground levels following infilling with

inert waste materials.

Consideration

Landscape
Designations/Visual
Impact

Nature Conservation
and Geodiversity

Amber-Green

RAG Outcome

Reason

The site is located proximate to the M20 but in an area of open countryside within the Kent Downs
AONB and would likely have a detrimental effect on the landscape setting. Para 116 expects that
major development should not be allowed within AONBs unless there are exceptional
circumstances.

Trottiscliffe Meadows (SSSI) lies within 250m (approximately 100m) to the west of the site
boundary. Halling to Trottiscliffe Escarpment (SSSI) is located approximately 1.2km away. Ryarsh
Wood (Ancient Woodland) lies immediately adjacent to the site to the north east. BAP Habitat —
Woodland Priority Habitat Network lies within the site with BAP Habitat - Lowland Meadows lies
approximately 100m from the site. The Trottiscliffe Meadows SSSI is designated for its floral
importance which reduces the potential impact of the quarry. It is also already bordered by an
existing quarry. The Ancient Woodland is unlikely to be impacted by the proposal, restoration
measures also include extending Ryarsh Wood allowing for potential enhancement.

Historic Environment

Amber-Green

Woodgate Farmhouse and Woodgate Cottage Listed Buildings lie within 90m of the site. A number
of Archaeological Sites lie within 90m of the proposal. Addington and Trottiscliffe Conservation
Areas are both approximately 500m distance from the site. A recent extension to Wrotham Quarry
has been permitted in closer proximity to the Listed Buildings highlighted than the proposal;
however, consideration and potential mitigation may still need to be given to preserve the Listed
Buildings. Although there are no Archaeological Sites within the proposed site, the quantity of sites
in the surrounding area suggest a potential for archaeological finds within the site, prior
investigative work could clarify this to prevent adverse impacts on Kent's Heritage Assets.

Water Environment

Amber-Green

The site falls within GSPZ 3 and GVZ — Major Aquifer Intermediate. The site is not at significant risk
of flooding; however, consideration/mitigation may need to be given to the Major Aquifer
present on site to prevent impacts to water sources.

39



21T abed

Air Quality

Amber

Although the site itself does not lie within an AQMA, the nearest AQMAs are the M20 (1)
approximately 5.7km away, TMBC 7 - Borough Green approximately 4.34km away, Larkfield
AQMA approximately 4.73km away and the M20 approximately 4.86km away. Therefore, whilst the
site is not within an AQMA the main access routes on the PRN and SRN contain several AQMAs
with the exception of the A228 which may adversely impact on Air Quality within the AQMAs.

Soil Quality

Amber-Green

Natural England’s Agricultural Land Classification Map states that the soil present on the site is of
Grade 3 (Good to Moderate) quality. As such, agricultural land would be lost as a result of mineral
extraction at the site. However, restoration measures include returning the site back to agricultural
land which may improve the quality of soil present at the site.

Public Rights of Way Amber The Weald Way (PROW) crosses the eastern part of the site in a northerly direction. Two further

(PROW) PROWSs cross the site to the west. These PROWs would require diversion for the duration of
mineral extraction at the site. There are opportunities for the diverted PROWSs to be reinstated
following restoration at the site.

Transport Amber Access to the site would be via the existing quarry and private access. Access to the site from the

Services and Utilities

existing quarry would be via a tunnel beneath Addington Lane. Access would be from the A20
(PRN) to the west via Ford Lane and a private 1.2km access road. The A20 lies within 1km of the
existing quarry access. Junction 2a of the M26 (SRN) lies within 5km. Potential issues exist in
using Ford Lane as this route is not necessarily a suitable road to accommodate quarry traffic,
especially when taking into account the cumulative impacts with the existing quarries in the area.

There are no services or utilities near to, or within the site.

Health and Amenity Amber Land use in close proximity to the site is mainly agricultural or existing quarry works meaning the
potential for sensitive receptors is low. However, residential areas in Addington and Trottiscliffe
are approximately 500-600m from the site, residents may experience issues relating to noise, dust
and pollution from HGVs travelling to and from the site.

Cumulative Impact Amber This area is currently being extensively quarried and restored meaning there is intensive quarrying

Airport Safeguarding
Zone

activity for a significant period of time, as such a large number of HGVs would be using the access
roads. The restoration of the southerly quarry site and the opening up of the proposed site would
intensify mineral extraction and associated operations in the locality.

Green Belt

The site is not within, or near to an Airport Safeguarding Zone.

Amber-Green

The site is within the Green Belt. However, mineral extraction activity is not considered to be
inappropriate development within the Green Belt. Associated activities such as processing and
restoration may affect ‘openness’ and if proposed would need to demonstrate the existence of
‘very special circumstances’ as set out in Green Belt policy.

40



€17 abed

Summary and
Outcome of Scoring

It is not proposed that this site form an option for consultation as it is located within the Kent Downs
AONB. Other sites have been identified as options for meeting the need for supplying soft sand

(incruding key
issues and
constraints)

which are located outside of the AONB. Allocation of the site would therefore be contrary to the
National Planning Policy Framework as it would be possible to maintain an adequate landbank for
soft sand outside of the AONB through other allocated sites — as long as these are developed.
There is no expectation within the KMWLP that a site should be allocated for meeting requirements
for silica sand.

41



yTT abed

4 Nominated Sites Eliminated at Initial Site Assessment Stage

The following sites were nominated and eliminated at Initial Site Assessment Stage on the basis that the adopted Kent Minerals and Waste
Local Plan, and modifications proposed by the partial review, do not identify the need for the allocation of such a site.

Name of Site

Address of Site

Purpose of site nomination

Reason for elimination at Stage 1

Paradise Farm

Lower Hartlip
Road,
Sittingbourne, Kent,
ME9 7SR

Brickearth extraction, 885,900
tonnes over a period of 19
years at a rate of 46,600 tpa

Majority of nominated site has recently been granted planning
permission for brickearth extraction and the remaining areas would
not be viable.

The promoted site has and was the subject of a planning
application in 2016 (ref. SW/0277/2016 for 0.885mt of Brickearth to
be extracted over 19 years). This was permitted (January 2017)
with deletion of two working phases that were adjacent to
Newington (phases 16 and 17) and a minor area to the westerly
guadrant of the site. This reduced the permitted reserve to 0.75mt
to be extracted over 18 years. The un-permitted areas are
nominated for allocation in the Minerals Sites Plan. The total
reserve in Kent of Brickearth are 0.75mt at Paradise Farm, 0.15 mt
at Orchard Farm, an estimated 0.08mt at Hempstead House and
Jeffries, Claxfield Road that has an estimated reserve of

0.095mt. Overall the Kent Brickearth reserve is some 1.075mt.
Those reserves under the control of the promoter amount to
0.995mt of this and would provide for approximately 23-24 years,
almost for the required period of 25 years. The adopted Plan
requires sites to be identified for the supply of Brickearth to have
reserves of at least 25 years to support the level of actual and
proposed investment of existing plant and equipment. Furthermore,
the Brickearth resources that are still being promoted represent
areas that are considered too small to be sites in their own right
and may be unacceptable for material planning considerations.

42



GTT abed

Name of Site

Address of Site

Purpose of site nomination

Reason for elimination at Stage 1

Norwood Land adjacent to Engineering clay extraction, This site is identified in the Minerals Sites Plan though this site is
Quarry Norwood Quarry, 1,000,000m3 over a period of | an allocation in the adopted KMWLP. Further supply of clay for
(Engineering Lower Road, 22 years at a rate of engineering purposes has been promoted through the Call for Sites
Clay) Minster on Sea, 50,000m3. exercise, as an extension to this site. The site promoter wishes to
Sheppey, Kent, extract 1 million cubic metres of London Clay (at a rate of 50,000
ME12 3AJ cubic metres per annum) in three phases (1-3). Phase 3 and part
of Phase 2 is currently the identified in the KMWLP as the
strategic allocation for engineering clay extraction to meet needs
for the clay and to create void space for the disposal of residues
from Energy from Waste (EfW) processes in Kent. Thus, this
strategic allocation currently adopted underpins the waste strategy
needs of the KMWLP. The promoted site extension has a Phase 1
and the majority of a Phase 2. These areas, together with the
adopted strategic allocation, would release significantly more
engineering clay material than current need suggests is required.
The strategic allocation site is identified as an adequate clay
reserve up to 2030 in the adopted KMWLP. The NPPF does not
Richborough Ramsgate Road, Limestone extraction, A site providing this type of mineral is not required for allocation.
Road Richborough, 47,000,000 tonnes over a
Sandwich, Kent, period of 19 years at a rate of
CT13 2,500,000 tpa.
Wrotham Wrotham Quatrry, Silica sand extraction, A site providing this type of mineral is not required for allocation.
Quarry Addington, West 1,570,000 over a period of 16

Extension (Silica
Sand)

Malling, Kent, ME19
5DL

years at a rate of 100,000 tpa.

Silica sand is a mineral that has national importance due to its
limited distribution and its specialist application in industrial
processes such as glass manufacture and as a foundry sand
amongst others. In Kent the deposit is found in the Folkestone
Formation as parts of the geological unit with particular purity. The
NPPF states: Minerals planning authorities should plan for a steady
and adequate supply of industrial minerals by:

' 1 cubic metres of stiff wet clay has a mass of 1.826 tonnes

43



91T abed

Name of Site

Address of Site

Purpose of site nomination

Reason for elimination at Stage 1

providing a stock of permitted reserves to support the level of
actual and proposed investment required for new or existing plant
and the maintenance and improvement of existing plant and
equipment, as follows:

- at least 10 years for individual silica sand sites;

- at least 15 years for cement primary (chalk and limestone) and
secondary (clay and shale) materials to maintain an existing plant,
and for silica sand sites where significant new capital is required.

The adopted KMWLP states that the MPA will seek to permit sites
to meet the above requirements and that proposals will be
considered on their merits having regard to the policies of the
Development Plan as a whole, with consideration of the technical
matters and the husbanding of the material of high-grade (pure)
deposits for industrial end uses. The Plan does not require silica
sand sites to be allocated in the Mineral Sites plan and none have
been promoted.

Collarmakers
Quarry

Collarmakers
Quarry, Sandwich
Road, Ash,
Canterbury, Kent,
CT3 2AH

Sand extraction, 500,000
tonnes over a period of 10
years at a rate of 50,000 tpa.
Inert Waste. 100,000 tpa
capacity. Site is 10ha.

Geology includes part the complex Lambeth Group of sands, clays
and gravels. The formation has been quarried in the past (Upnor
Quarry in Medway where the outcropped is a fine to medium
grained clean sand to sandy clay that can be well graded, rounded
flint gravel is also present). The promoted site reserve is only
estimated (no bore hole data has been supplied) nor is there any
supporting technical evidence to demonstrate that the resource in
this location is capable of yielding a building sand aggregate.

44



/1T abed

Name of Site

Address of Site

Purpose of site nomination

Reason for elimination at Stage 1

Wey Street Wey Street Farm, Sand and gravel extraction, Geology includes part of the complex Lambeth Group of sands,
Quarry Wey Street, 2,000,000 tonnes over a period | clays and gravels. The formation has been quarried in the past
Hernhill, of 20 years at a rate of (Upnor Quarry in Medway where the outcropped is a fine to
Faversham, Kent, 100,000 tpa. Site is 20ha. Inert | medium grained clean sand to sandy clay that can be well graded,
ME13 9JB waste, 100,000 tpa rounded flint gravel is also present). The promoted site
capacity. reserve is only estimated (no bore hole data has been supplied)
nor is there any supporting technical evidence to demonstrate that
the resource in this location is capable of yielding a sand
and gravel aggregate.
Hegdale Quarry | Hegdale quarry, Chalk extraction, 1,500,000m3 | The nominated site is an extension to an existing quarry of the
Faversham Road,| over a period of 15 years ata | same name in the Kent Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
Baddlesmere near| rate of 50,000m3. (AONB), a planning application would only be successful if it could
Faversham, Kent,| Asbestos disposal, 100,000 tpa | be demonstrated that there were exceptional circumstances
ME13 0JX capacity. justifying the extraction of chalk in this sensitive landscape and it

was in the public interest. Assessment of the site suggests that
exceptional circumstances would not exist, and none have been
advanced by the site promoter. Moreover, the site has an
estimated 1.5 cubic million metres of chalk that would yield some
3.75mt of chalk and this reserve alone would last for 58 years at
the recorded 2011-14 average sales rate of extraction. The
indicated current chalk reserve position in Kent, that is sufficient for
the anticipated Plan period, also suggests that there

is no need to identify the promoted site in the Minerals Sites Plan at
this time. The recorded average per annum sales for the period
2011-14 is 69,955 tonnes. Assuming the same sales per annum for
the period 2015-16 (0.14mt in total) the 2014 reserves of 1.50 mt
would now be reduced to 1.37mt. Assuming that extraction has
remained at a level equivalent to the average of the 2011-14 period
(0.07mtpa) the current permitted reserves will be sufficient

for 22 years, if sales have been lower, closer to that recorded in
2014 (38,810 tonnes) then the permitted landbank could be
sufficient for some 39 years. The Minerals Sites Plan is anticipated
to be for the period 2019 to 20-30 a time of 11years. Therefore,
there are sufficient permitted reserves of engineering and

45



8TT abed

Name of Site

Address of Site

Purpose of site nomination

Reason for elimination at Stage 1

agricultural chalk in the county at this time for the anticipated plan
period.

Sites providing additional waste management capacity are not
required for allocation.

Blaise Farm Blaise Farm Organic, Composting and Sites providing additional waste management capacity are not
(Cranford) Quarry, West Anaerobic Digestion. required for allocation. See Partial Review of KMWLP consultation
Malling, Kent, ME19 documentation for more details.
4PN
Chilmington Mock Lane, Energy from Waste, Sites providing additional waste management capacity are not
Green Chilmington Green, | Gasification and Anaerobic required for allocation. See Partial Review of KMWLP consultation
Ashford, Kent, Digestion. 500,000 tpa documentation for more details.
TN23 3DS capacity.
Dunbrik Works | Land at Dunbrik Waste Transfer Station and Sites providing additional waste management capacity are not
Works, Main Road, | Household Waste Recycling required for allocation. See Partial Review of KMWLP consultation
Sundridge, Kent, Centre. documentation for more details.
TN14 6EP
Kemsley DS Smith Kemsley | Energy from Waste. 350,000 Sites providing additional waste management capacity are not
Mill, Kemsley, tpa capacity required for allocation. See Partial Review of KMWLP consultation
Sittingbourne, Kent, documentation for more details.
ME10 2TD
Lympne Enterprise Way, Gasification/Anaerobic Sites providing additional waste management capacity are not
Recovery Link Enterprise Digestion/Depolymerisation. required for allocation. See Partial Review of KMWLP consultation
Park, Lympne, Kent, | 500,000 tpa capacity. documentation for more details.
CT214LP
North Farm North Farm Lane, Energy from Waste, Sites providing additional waste management capacity are not
Lane Tunbridge Wells, Gasification and Anaerobic required for allocation. See Partial Review of KMWLP consultation

Kent, TN2 3EE

Digestion. 500,000 tpa
capacity.

documentation for more details.

Pedham Place

KCC Highways
Depot, Pedham
Place, London

Household Waste Recycling
Centre, Waste Transfer

Station. 100,000 tpa capacity.

Sites providing additional waste management capacity are not
required for allocation. See Partial Review of KMWLP consultation
documentation for more details.

46



61T abed

Name of Site

Address of Site

Purpose of site nomination

Reason for elimination at Stage 1

Road, Swanley,
Kent, BR8 8TJ

Richborough Kent County Household Waste Recycling Sites providing additional waste management capacity are not

HWRC Council Household | Centre, Waste Transfer required for allocation. See Partial Review of KMWLP consultation
Waste Recycling Station. 100,000 tpa capacity. | documentation for more details.
Centre, Ramsgate
Road, Richborough,
Sandwich, Kent,
CT13 9NW

Sevington Sevington Depot, Green Waste, Anaerobic Sites providing additional waste management capacity are not
Waterbrook Digestion/Energy from Waste, | required for allocation. See Partial Review of KMWLP consultation
Avenue, Ashford, Bio Treatment. 80,000 tpa documentation for more details.
Kent, TN24 0GB capacity.

Shelford Shelford Landfill Waste Transfer Station, Sites providing additional waste management capacity are not
Site, Shelford Farm | Commercial and Industrial required for allocation. See Partial Review of KMWLP consultation
Estate, Broad Oak | Waste. 40,000 tpa capacity. documentation for more details.
Road, Canterbury,
Kent, CT2 OPU

Springhead Station Road, Energy from Waste. 600,000 Sites providing additional waste management capacity are not
Springhead, tpa capacity required for allocation. See Partial Review of KMWLP consultation
Dartford, Kent, documentation for more details.
DA13

Stone Pits London Road, Landfill, Inert Waste. 186,000 | Sites providing additional waste management capacity are not
Dartford, Kent, DA9 | m3pa capacity. required for allocation. See Partial Review of KMWLP consultation
9LD documentation for more details.

The Forstal Kent County Household Waste Recycling Sites providing additional waste management capacity are not
Council, The Centre, Waste Transfer required for allocation. See Partial Review of KMWLP consultation
Forstal, Beddow Station. 30,000 tpa capacity. documentation for more details.
Way, Aylesford,
Kent, ME20 7BT

Tilmanstone Tilmanstone Landfill, Inert Waste. 100,000 | Sites providing additional waste management capacity are not
Colliery Tip tpa capacity required for allocation. See Partial Review of KMWLP consultation

47



02T abed

Name of Site

Address of Site

Purpose of site nomination

Reason for elimination at Stage 1

Regeneration, Pike
Road, Eythorne,
Dover, Kent, CT15
AND

documentation for more details.

Unit P Continental Energy from Waste, 150,000 Sites providing additional waste management capacity are not
Continental Approach and Car | tpa capacity. required for allocation. See Partial Review of KMWLP consultation
Approach Park, Margate, documentation for more details.
Kent, CT9 4JL
Westbere Island Road, Composting, Green Waste. Sites providing additional waste management capacity are not
Canterbury, Kent, 30,000 tpa capacity. required for allocation. See Partial Review of KMWLP consultation
CT20EZ documentation for more details.
Westenhanger Newingreen, Hythe, | Waste Transfer Station. Sites providing additional waste management capacity are not
WTS Kent, CT21 4HU 500,000 tpa capacity. required for allocation. See Partial Review of KMWLP consultation
documentation for more details.
Norwood Land adjacent to Inert waste landfill, Sites providing additional waste management capacity are not
Quarry (Waste) | Norwood Quarry, 1,000,000m3 capacity. required for allocation. See Partial Review of KMWLP consultation
Lower Road, Hazardous waste landfill, documentation for more details.
Minster on Sea, 100,000m3 capacity
Isle of Sheppey,
Kent, ME12 3AJ
Richborough Richborough Hall, Secondary and Recycled Sites already have benefit of full planning permission for waste
Hall Ramsgate Road, Aggregates. Permanent facility. | treatment activities that give rise to recycled aggregates from the
Richborough, Construction, Demolition and Excavation Waste stream. In this
Sandwich, Kent, regard the sites are fully operational and contributing to the current
CT13 9NW supply of recycled aggregates (844,946 tonnes in 2015 or 16.59%
of overall supply of aggregates). The sites were promoted as sites
Richborough Richborough Park, | Secondary and Recycled that could expand their waste role as waste facilities beyond
Park Ramsgate Road, Aggregates. Permanent facility. | current activities.

Richborough,
Sandwich, Kent,
CT13 9NW

Sites providing additional waste management capacity are not
required for allocation. See Partial Review of KMWLP consultation
documentation for more details.

48



5 Detailed Technical Assessment of Mineral Site Options

Section 2 of this report sets out the process of the Detailed Technical Assessment (DTA) phase.
At the conclusion of DTA stage of the assessment process, those sites that are acceptable
against the selection criteria will be identified as Preferred Options for allocation in the Mineral
Sites Plan.

In essence, for a site to be allocated it has to be where viable mineral resources are known to
exist; where landowners are supportive of mineral development taking place and where the
Mineral Planning Authority considers that planning applications are likely to be acceptable in
principle in planning terms having regard to planning policy and guidance.

Policy CSM2 of the KMWLP sets out the following criteria for selecting and screening the
suitability of sites for allocation in a Mineral Sites Plan:

(i) The requirement for the mineral;

(i) Relevant development management policies;

(i) Relevant policies in district local plans and neighbourhood plans;

(iv) Strategic environmental information, including landscape assessment and Habitat

Regulation Assessment as appropriate;
(v) Deliverability; and
(vi) other National planning policy and guidance

The policy also states that sites to be identified in a Mineral Sites Plan will generally be where
viable mineral resources are known to exist, where landowners are supportive of mineral
development taking place and where the Mineral Planning Authority considers that planning
applications are likely to be acceptable in principle in planning terms.

Those sites which were identified as potentially suitable for allocation subject to public
consultation and detailed technical assessment from the Initial Screening and RAG
assessment work have been subject to more rigorous detailed technical assessment. This
stage considered a range of environmental impacts including landscape and visual impact,
amenity, highways and transportation, biodiversity, historic environment, water resources and
flood risk, impact upon Public rights of way land stability and need. As appropriate it also
included assessment in respect of:

Habitat Regulations

Green Belt

Requirements of National Planning Policy and Guidance
The Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2013-30
Sustainability Appraisal for each site

O O O O O

The work has also included a review of the soft sand and sharp sand and gravel requirements to
be provided for in the Mineral Site Plan. Policy CSM2 of the KMWLP requires the Site Plan to
allocate sites for soft sand and for sharp sand and gravel based upon the most recent
calculations of requirements set out in the Local Aggregate Assessment. The review work has
identified a soft sand need of 2.5mt and a sharp sand and gravel need of 5.75mt. It should
however be noted that as sharp sand and gravel resources in Kent are rapidly depleting, Policy
CSM2 recognises that the sharp sand and gravel requirements only need to be met whilst

Page 121 49



resources allow. Further details are set out in the Soft Sand and Sharp Sand and Gravels Topic
Papers 2018.

In response to the Call for Sites, 19 mineral sites were promoted for consideration, nine of which
were selected as ‘Options,’ i.e. sites that were considered potentially suitable for allocation in the
Kent Minerals Sites Plan, subject to public consultation and detailed technical assessment work.
The Site Options subjected to detailed technical assessment (DTA) for soft sand were:

Site Soft Sand Sites Estimated reserve

Ref

M3 Chapel Farm, Lenham 3.2mt

M8 West Malling Sandpit, Ryarsh 3.1mt (and 0.5mt of silica
sand)

During the DTA stage, the promoter amended the Chapel Farm site to remove the eastern
parcel of the promoted site and minor revisions to the access route onto the A20. Further
information was also provided by the promoter of Site M8 indicating where the mineral would
be excavated.

Page 122 50



The Site Options for sharp sand and gravel were:

Site
Ref

M2

M7

M9

M11

M13

M12

M10

Sharp Sand and Gravel Sites

Lydd Quarry/Allen’s Bank Ext, Lydd

Central Road, Dartford

The Postern, Capel

Joyce Green Quarry, Dartford

Stonecastle Farm Quarry Ext, Hadlow/Whested
Postern Meadows, Tonbridge

Moat Farm, Five Oak Green, Capel

Estimated
reserve

3.1mt

0.9mt

0.6mt

1.5mt

1.0mt

0.23 mt

1.5mt

During the DTA stage, The Postern, Capel site (M9) was withdrawn from further
consideration by the site’s promoter.

Full details of the nine sites that progressed to the DTA stage and the assessment conclusions are
set out in the section below.

Page 123

51



M3: Chapel Farm, Lenham - Soft Sand

Initial Site Location Plan as Originally Promoted

0 260 520 Metres” N W= A

| | o \{tv Crown Copyright and database right 2047. Ordna ib001e238y, = )1 5.500

Site Location Plan as revised September 2018 - (Chapel Farm West,
Lenham)

Note that the eastern parcel has been withdrawn by the promoter

Page 124 52



Page 125

53



1.0 Matters addressed by Detailed Technical Assessment

Initial Assessment

As set out in section 3 of this report, the initial assessment of the site! identified a number of matters
which would require particular consideration, these were:
- Impact on landscape and particularly the Kent Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
(AONB)
- Impact on biodiversity
- Feasibility of new access and impact of this on the highway network
- Impact on heritage, both archaeology and historic built environment
- Impact on Public Rights of Way (PROWS)
- Loss of grade 3 quality soil
- Impact on services and utilities such as the railway line and the wastewater treatment works
(WWTW)
- Impact on local amenity
- Cumulative impact with other development in the area, including other quarrying operations
and developments planned by Maidstone Borough Council.

Matters Raised during the Options Consultation

The matters raised during the public consultation on this site are summarised below.

Views of Key Organisations

A summary of the responses from key organisations, including statutory consultees, is set out below
which sets out the nature and extent of the concerns of such consultees especially with regard to the
matters listed above. It should be noted that the views expressed were received prior to the
withdrawal of the eastern part of the promoted site and therefore relate to the site as originally
promoted.

Environment Agency (EA)

Any future application will need to be accompanied by an Environmental Impact Assessment with
emphasis towards demonstrating the relationship between the upper reaches of the Great Stour
(including its associated tributaries, both ephemeral and perennial) during the site’s operation and
subsequent restoration. Appropriate mitigation measures, substantiated through a detailed
programme of monitoring, will be necessary to demonstrate that the workings will not have a
detrimental impact on the following:

- Hydraulic continuity between those reaches of the Great Stour and associated tributaries, if
proven to be in part dependent on groundwater baseflow originating from the adjoining
aquifer (Folkestone Formation).

- The hydraulic integrity of the river is not compromised. In particular, the proposed plans will
need to recognise the function of the foremost transient reaches of the Great Stour, which are
dependent on both chalk escarpment seepage and surface runoff contributions, where

1 See Mineral Site Selection — Initial Assessment - Stages 1 and 2 of the Site Identification and Selection
Methodology, November 2017 and reproduced in section2 and 3 of this document

Page 126 >4



underlain by Gault Clay to the immediate north of Chapel Farm. Any submission will need to
account for this ‘contribution’, and the plans cannot allow the Great Stour to become
hydraulically ‘isolated’ from its headwaters, irrespective of whether those watercourses are
guantified as ephemeral.

- The underlining Sandgate Formation is not compromised, especially if the Formation is
shown to be acting as an aquiclude at Chapel Farm, and within the immediate vicinity. Such a
response is required to protect the Hythe Formation, which is classified as a major water
resources aquifer unit.

Other EA comments:

- Lenham WWTW is immediately upstream of the proposed workings, which has a potential
relevance given that the discharge will be dependent on flow.

- Alicence would be required from the Environment Agency should there be a requirement to
dewater the site.

Natural England — The site is in proximity to two SSSI’'s designated for their geological interest.
Their distance from the site means it is unlikely to have an impact however advice should be sought.

The proposed allocation is in close proximity to the Kent Downs AONB and the proposal should be
assessed carefully to determine whether the development would cause significant impact or harm.
Views of the AONB unit should be taken into consideration.

If the proposal will result in the loss of the Ancient Woodland and partial loss of deciduous woodland
habitat, it must be demonstrated that there are no alternative sources of the material from sites with
less environmental impacts.

Highways England

Some sections of the Strategic Road Network (SRN) within Kent are currently congested, particularly
during peak hours and at other times operate under considerable levels of stress. Accordingly, the
construction and operational impacts of the identified Minerals sites on the SRN need to be
considered, both individually and cumulatively in order to for us to be satisfied that the proposals will
not materially affect the safety, reliability and/or operation of the SRN (the tests set out in DfT C2/13
and DCLG NPPF para 32).

No specific comment on Chapel Farm.

Historic England
No specific comment on Chapel Farm. Advice should be sought from county council specialist
advisors.

Surrey County Council - Supports inclusion of two soft sand sites as this will give a surplus of soft
sand over the plan period and recognises that soft sand supplies in Kent are relatively abundant
whereas other parts of the southeast are constrained by protective designations such as AONBs and
National Parks.

East Sussex County Council (ESCC) - Paragraph 2.12 of the Kent Minerals Sites Plan (Options
document) recognises the role that Kent soft sand plays in the South East of England and states that
the proposed two soft sand sites would provide a surplus which may help meet increasing demand in
other areas and for exports. There is a shortage of soft sand within the South East, all of the soft

Page 127 55



sand within East Sussex is within the South Downs National Park which is highly constrained.

In the absence of sources to meet the constructional needs of East Sussex within East Sussex, it is
hoped imports of soft sand from Kent can continue. ESCC Strongly supports the two sites put
forward for allocation.

West Sussex County Council (WSCC) - pleased to note that two suitable sites have been identified
for allocation, which will meet the calculated shortfall of 1.9 million tonnes as set out in Kent's LAA.
The sites identified would provide around 7.1mt, therefore a surplus of around 5 million tonnes of soft
sand. A surplus allocation in Kent would provide some certainty that the shortfall in soft sand
supplies in West Sussex could be met from beyond West Sussex where the resource is constrained
by the South Downs National Park.

Due to the unique constraints in the South East, allocation of the two sites (Chapel Farm & West
Malling) would be justified as it would reduce reliance as a whole in the South East of extraction from
protected areas, such as the South Downs National Park. NPPF Paragraph 145 requires MPAs to
make provision, taking account of the advice of the AWP. The South East AMR shows that there are
supply issues in the South East, therefore it would be justified to consider allocating a surplus
through the Kent Mineral Sites Plan.

South Downs National Park (SDNPA) — The key issue is the provision of soft sand as the main
source of sand is within the SDNP and heavily constrained. SDNPA is keen to work with authorities
in the wider area to ensure that soft sand is identified and able to be worked in the most sustainable
locations.

In line with national policy and guidance, particularly NPPF paragraphs 114, 115 and 116 and the
additional guidance in the PPG, the SDNPA supports:
- the statements included in paragraph 2.12 about the relative abundance of soft sand within
Kent and the constraint on resources particularly within national parks; and
- the proposed allocation for two soft sand sites within the proposed options for the KCC
Minerals Plan.

Maidstone Borough Council — Maidstone BC identifies Lenham as a “broad location” for some
1000 dwellings to be delivered from 2021 onwards. Lenham Parish Council is also preparing a
Neighbourhood Plan which will include site specific allocations for development. Impact of traffic
movements on the A20 should therefore take account of the planned growth for the area.

The quarrying activities or the proposed haul road could be extremely detrimental to the Ancient
Woodland and impacts need to be assessed and avoided if possible including consideration of a
buffer. A felling licence for coppicing of East Lenham Roughett was granted in 2012 which indicates
that the woodland is currently being appropriately managed to optimise its biodiversity value and
longevity.

Lenham Heath & Chilston Park Local Wildlife Site (LWS) is adjacent to the proposed site, as is Bull
Heath Pit LWS. Proposals must be assessed for any adverse impacts on these wildlife sites,
including through disturbance caused by nose and traffic. There is also a stretch of trees within the
LWS which are subject to a Tree Preservation Order (TPO).

The nearby listed buildings include Royton Manor (Grade 11*) and Chapel Mill (1) (both situated
between the eastern and western segments of the site), Vine House (Il) (at the junction of Lenham

Page 128 56



Heath Rd and Bull Hill) and Mount Castle Farm Cottage (Il) (north of the site). If the extraction is
shallow, open—cast then this may not have necessarily permanent implications for the listed buildings
or their setting. Once extraction has been completed, the land in question may be backfilled and re-
cultivated and re-landscaped to a high standard, secured via a legal agreement. Any re-landscaping
should precisely attain the same contours in the land that exist today; improved biodiversity may also
eventually be secured.

Extraction must not extend into established property boundaries or curtilages and should be confined
to the interior spaces of the open fields only. Mature plantings or historic landscape features should
also be avoided and worked around. There is the prospect of an adverse impact on the remains of a
chapel which are denoted in the eastern field. The chapel site should remain untouched, and an
appropriate boundary for this will need to be established. The chapel is not just a stand-alone asset
and is very much linked to the adjacent properties, and to the significance of the landscape in which
it sits.

Disturbance to the adjacent listed buildings and their low-specification foundations due to quarrying
at the site should be considered as well as impacts caused by heavy lorries on footings and poorly
bonded masonry that often characterises vernacular buildings. Heavier machinery (30 tons) could be
accommodated within the site and away from properties, and a management agreement could be
drawn up to this end.

Both the eastern and western segments of the site are crossed by PROWSs which would require
diversion. The council’s records also show the land to be of Grade 3 agricultural quality and this may
require further site-specific assessment of its quality and the significance of any loss.

Lenham Parish Council

Concerns raised were those submitted in 2010 during an earlier consultation on mineral
development in this location which suggested there would be adverse impacts on the following:

- Kent Downs AONB

- Listed buildings and registered parks and gardens
- Feature of archaeological interest

- Public Rights of Way

- Ancient Woodland

- Agricultural land

- A Site of Nature Conservation Interest

Southern Water — Lenham WWTW is adjacent to the north boundary of the site, the access road
runs through the proposed site. Operational equipment at Lenham WWTW is in continual active use,
therefore it is essential to maintain unhindered access to the WWTW via its access road at all times.
Sewerage infrastructure also crosses the site which connects the southern areas of the catchment of
the WWTW and requires protection. Diversion may be possible at the operator’s expense, provided a
feasible route is available. Further engagement should be sought with Southern Water as the
development proposal progresses. Provided that appropriate policy provisions are made, this is not
considered to be a fundamental constraint.

Public Health England— Risk of crystalline silica (quartz) exposure to members of the public is
much lower than occupational exposure. Non-occupational exposure to quartz can occur through the
use of certain cosmetics, paints, pet litter, and other household or craft items.

Page 129 57



On mineral sites which are well managed with control measures in place to manage environmental
concentrations of particulate matter off-site, concentrations remain below those associated with long
or short-term impacts. However, additional detail would be needed (such as that which would be
available at planning application stage) before further, site specific comments can be made.

Kent Downs AONB Unit — The site is within the setting of the Kent Downs AONB. Views to the
south from the AONB were a principal reason for the designation and are a feature which merits
protection — this means the impact of proposals on views from the AONB need careful consideration.

The part of the site west of Chapel Farm and the proposed haul route is particularly prominent from
the AONB to the north, the North Downs Way national trail and other public rights of way and roads
to the north of the A20. Due to the topography of the land and intervening vegetation the eastern part
of the site is less prominent in views, although still partially visible.

A visual impact assessment should be undertaken prior to allocation to assess whether impacts can
be satisfactorily mitigated.

Any application should carefully consider mitigating the impact of the haul route in addition to the
area of minerals with careful consideration of method of working and phased restoration, to ensure
that a large area is not open at any one time.

British Archaeological Trust - There appear to be extensive multi-period archaeological remains
within the site and full investigations would be required at planning application stage and should
include trial trenching which could lead to full excavation on some or all of the site. Consideration
should also be given to the possibility that there might be archaeological deposits of sufficient
importance to justify preservation in situ.

British Horse Society — The site is located on an Other Route with Public Access (ORPA) (which
historic evidence suggests is an old road), it is adopted at each end but unadopted in the middle.
This particular route has strategic importance with regard to vulnerable road users as it would
provide one of the few safer links connecting the North Downs Way to the north with the lanes
network to the south. This part of the Weald is in extremely short supply of PROWSs so access to the
Downs is of key importance. It is suggested that the route be designated as a restricted byway. It is
understood that part of this route will form part of the quarry haul road, this is not ideal for leisure
users, but local arrangements could be made on site as and when the haul route is in operation.

CPRE - Object to the allocation of the site for the following reasons:
- Impact on the Kent Downs AONB
- Adverse impact on listed buildings
- Disruption to PROW network
- Loss of grade 1 and 2 agricultural soll
- Adverse impact on archaeology
- Need for the material has not been justified
- Impact on the water environment and specifically the River Stour

Kent Wildlife Trust — Object to the site in the absence of information to demonstrate there will be no
negative impact on the Ancient Woodland and the LWS “MA66 Lenham Heath and Chilston Park”.

Page 130 58



RSPB — The site will result in the direct loss of Local Wildlife Sites and therefore share the Kent
Wildlife Trust’s views on the site.

Forestry Commission — Site assessment has identified:
- Ancient Woodland is situated on the site
- Adjoining uses include nearby woodlands
- Ancient Woodland adjacent to the proposed route of the suggested haul road.

KCC Advisors

In undertaking this detailed assessment, advice has been sought from a range of technical
specialists who advise the County Council on planning matters. This includes advice on
biodiversity, Public Rights of Way, noise, air quality, landscape, heritage, water resources, stability
and highway and transportation interests. The views received have informed the assessment and
the discussion section below. Several related standalone specialist reports have been prepared and
have been published as background documents. The work has also been informed by the Project’s
Sustainability Appraisal work.

Views of Elected Representatives

Shellina Prendergast (County Member)
Considered that the site would result in adverse impacts affecting the following:
- Kent Downs AONB and wider landscape
- Local amenity due to noise and dust
- Highway — in particular the A20
- Ecology — in particular the River Stour
- Lenham Sewage Works
- Quality of agricultural land
- Heritage assets

Views of Local Residents
Concerns raised by local residents during the options consultation included:
- Impact on local amenity by way of noise, dust and vibrations
- Increased strain on local infrastructure such as the WWTW
- Impact on Ancient Woodland
- Impact on flora and fauna
- Significant archaeological remains within the site
- Proximity to listed buildings and Chilston Park (historic parks and gardens)
- Impact on equestrian activities
- Loss of the “Heaths Countryside Corridor” — a local community initiated and managed project
- Cumulative impact with other developments, Maidstone BC local plan has allocated housing
in Lenham and surrounding villages
- Proximity to Kent Downs AONB
- Impact on PROWSs, North Downs Way, Stour Valley Walk and Pilgrims Way.
- Loss of grade 2/3 agricultural soll
- Highways infrastructure not appropriate - should utilise rail sidings
- Impact on traffic congestion
- Impact on road safety for vehicles and pedestrians
- Unknown future demand of soft sand quantity and unknown quality of material
- Concerns over restoring land to lower level
- Impact on water environment including the Great Stour River

Page 131 59



2.0 Sustainability Appraisal

In accordance with statutory requirements a sustainability appraisal (SA) has been completed which
considers how well the site performs against certain sustainability objectives. The detailed results of
the SA are set out in a separate document.

3.0 Discussion

This section addresses matters raised above as well as those identified during the initial site
assessment which are key to assessing the suitability of the site for allocation in the Kent Minerals
Sites Plan.

Amenity

The promoted site has been assessed against policy DM11 of the KMWLP which requires that
mineral development should not generate unacceptable impacts from noise, dust, vibration, odour,
emissions, illumination, visual intrusion, traffic or exposure to health risks and associated damage to
the qualities of life and wellbeing to communities and the environment. Similar policy protection is
provided within the NPPF.

The location of the site is remote and rural and away from any Air Quality Management Areas
(AQMAS) and any significant area of residential development. There are a small number of
residential properties which surround the deallocated parcel of land to the east of Chapel Farm,
these are the properties on Lenham Heath Road, Bull Hill and Mount Castle Lane. The nearest
settlement is Lenham Heath which is a hamlet east of the allocation. The closest residential property
to the allocated site (the western parcel) is approximately 150m away and the distance from any
excavation would likely be further in light of the anticipated stand-offs surrounding the Chapel Farm
heritage feature.

The noise climate is likely to be heavily influenced by transportation noise, particularly from the M20
but also from Lenham Heath Road and the two railway lines. Therefore, ambient noise is likely to be
very low which makes mitigation more achievable.

Sources of air pollution are likely to be background dusts from agriculture, some transboundary air
pollution and NO2 particulates from the M20 and local road traffic. Public Health England have
raised no specific objection to the site, advising that on mineral sites which are well managed with
control measures in place to manage environmental concentrations of particulate matter off-site,
concentrations remain below those associated with long or short-term impacts. However, additional
detail would be needed (such as that which would be available at planning application stage) before
further, site specific comments can be made.

Properties could potentially be impacted by noise, dust and vibrations resulting from operations at
the site and HGV emissions but, with mitigation, it is considered that impacts will not reach
unacceptable levels. The level of impacts to receptors east of the site will be significantly reduced
due to the eastern parcel being removed from the allocation. In light of its distance from the site it is
considered unlikely that Lenham Heath will experience unacceptable impacts. Mitigation against any
adverse air quality impacts should be fully achievable, however the Maidstone AQMA (to the east of
Maidstone Town) could be a constraint depending on the type and number of HGVs that access it.

Page 132 60



The County Council’s assessment of the potential amenity impacts concludes that mitigation would
be achievable. It is therefore concluded that any amenity impacts associated with the operations of
the site can be satisfactorily mitigated in a manner similar to other quarrying operations in the vicinity
of residential development.

Highways and Transportation

The proposed site has been assessed against policy DM13 of the KMWLP which requires that
minerals development satisfy that the access arrangements are not detrimental to road safety, that
the highway network is able to accommodate the traffic flows and will not give rise to unacceptable
impact on the environment or local community and that emission control and reduction measures are
proposed, particularly within an AQMA. Similar policy support is provided for within the NPPF.

The site does not benefit from direct access to the highway network and requires a new access to be
created. This proposed access is shown in the site location plan; it spans north from the proposed
working area, across the railway line, and meets the A20 Ashford Road. In the initial site submission,
the access track was proposed to line the edge of the land in the control of the landowner. This was
deemed to be unacceptable as it did not allow sufficient room for visibility splays to be maintained.
The proposed access has been moved westward so that the visibility splays can be accommodated
by land in the control of the landowner. Utilisation of the railway is not considered practical by the site
promoter but this would require further more detailed consideration at the planning application stage.

The Local Highway Authority raises no objection to the principle of the development. It advises that
the A20 is part of the primary route network which is appropriate to accommodate HGV movements.
It is not considered that the level of additional vehicle movements would likely be very low and that
the A20 to accommodate the additional traffic without adverse impacts. A new access onto the A20
would require careful design with appropriate visibility splays. The new access directly onto the A20
will negate any need for access to the site via rural roads in the area.

In terms of cumulative impacts on the highway network with other planned development in the area
(For example, the village of Lenham and nearby Harrietsham are proposed to be expanded within
Maidstone Borough Council’s Local Plan (adopted October 2017)), it is considered that the
development would not result in the addition of significant vehicle numbers to the highway network.
Further information regarding forecasts and impact on the road network would be required and
assessed as part of a transport assessment in support of a planning application.

Although invited, no specific concerns have been raised by comments have been received from
Highways England on this site.

In light of the above, it is considered that the site can be operated in a way which would not cause an
unacceptable adverse impact on the highway network.

Biodiversity

The proposed site has been assessed against policy DM3 of the KMWLP which requires that
proposals do not result in unacceptable adverse impacts on Kent’'s important biodiversity assets and
SSSis. This policy was prepared in line with the NPPF which sets out similar criteria.

The site is predominately arable, and the fields are surrounded by hedgerows and there is a small
copse (with ponds) in the west of the site which is the feature of most ecological interest. An area of

Page 133 61



Ancient Woodland (Roughetts Shaw) sits to the north of the area of working next to the proposed
access track. The site is located within the upper reaches of the Great Stour. Lenham Quarry SSSI is
approximately 800m from the site and Hart Hill SSSI is 2.5km away; both are designated for their
geological interest. Lenham Heath & Chilston Park and Bull Heath Pit Local Wildlife Sites (LWS) are
adjacent to the proposed site. Trees within the LWS are subject to a Tree Preservation Order (TPO).

KCC Biodiversity officers advised that should the site boundary include the Ancient Woodland, and
should it be disrupted in anyway, this would afford the site a very high level of ecological constraint.
Other bodies such as Natural England, Maidstone Borough Council and Kent Wildlife Trust objected
or also raised concern about this matter. Given the concern, the Ancient Woodland has now been
removed from the site boundary. However, the haul road will run adjacent, so policy provision must
be made to ensure that no negative impacts occur as an indirect result of the development. This will
include maintaining a buffer of at least 15 metres. The woodland copse to the west of the site would
be similarly protected.

The Environment Agency objected to the site due to lack of information on how the operations will
impact the ecology of the River Stour. However, these comments were based on the eastern parcel
of the site still being included. Now that the eastern parcel has been removed, there will be no direct
impact on the River.

The nature of the SSSIs and their distance from the site means that they are unlikely to be adversely
impacted but this is a matter that will require further consideration if a planning application were to be
made.

A number of BAP Priority Habitats and LWSs are located adjacent to the site but these do not
present any major level of ecological concern that cannot be dealt with as part of the planning
application process.

The proposed low-level restoration of the site will provide an opportunity to create habitat and
enhance the biodiversity of the area.

Should an application come forward there will be a need for appropriate surveys of the ecology to be
carried out, and specialist advice will be sought with regard to working arrangements and restoration
proposals to ensure that features are not adversely impacted and, ultimately biodiversity
enhancements are secured. In principle, it is considered there to be no material reason to not
allocate the site due to adverse impacts on biodiversity.

Historic Environment

The proposed site has been assessed against policy DM5 of the KMWLP which requires that
there should be no unacceptable adverse impact on Kent's historic environment taking account of
mitigation and compensation and heritage assets be conserved in a manner appropriate to their
significance. This policy was prepared in line with the NPPF which sets out similar criteria.

Nearby listed buildings include Royton Manor (Grade II*) and Chapel Mill (1) (both situated between
the eastern and western segments of the site), Vine House (II) (at the junction of Lenham Heath Rd

and Bull Hill) and Mount Castle Farm Cottage (Il) (north of the site).

Cultural Heritage would need to be addressed through a multi-phased programme both desk-based
and field work, with mitigation fully informed and appropriate to the significance of the heritage

Page 134 62



assets affected. Taking account of the removal of eastern parcel from the allocation, it is considered
that mitigation is possible to ensure local heritage assets, particularly the listed buildings within close
proximity to the site, are protected from unacceptable impacts.

Archaeology

KCC Archaeological officers raised concern over the site as originally promoted as they consider that
the archaeological interest, is so significant that it would be necessary to preserve the feature in situ
and that impacts may not be mitigatable to an acceptable level. None of the land in this area would
therefore be suitable for extraction. In light of this the site promoter has formally withdrawn this
parcel so that only the land to the west of the Chapel Farm complex be included.

Historic England has been consulted on the proposal to allocate this site for mineral working and it
has not raised any specific concerns.

With the omission of the eastern parcel of land, it is considered that the potential for archaeology
within the remainder of the site is not sufficient to justify non-allocation.

Water Environment

The proposed site has been assessed against policy DM10 of the KMWLP which requires that
development should result in no deterioration and improved ecological status of all waterbodies
within the site and/or hydrologically connected to the site. This policy was prepared in line with the
NPPF.

The site has no impact on flood risk.

There is a watercourse to the northern part of the site which forms part of the Great Stour. The
relationship with this will need to be fully explored as part of an EIA and monitored throughout the life
of the site.

It is considered that any impact on the water environment can be satisfactorily addressed as part of
the planning application process through further consultation with the EA and other consultees where
necessary.

Land Stability

The proposed site has been assessed against policy DM18 of the KMWLP which expects that
planning permission for development will not be granted unless it is demonstrated that development
will not result in land instability. This policy was prepared in line with the NPPF.

The County Council’s land stability report includes consideration of the site’s proximity to sensitive
receptors such as sewage lines, electricity pylons and the railway line. It is considered that impacts
on these features can be mitigated with appropriate standoffs and diversion where necessary. A
suggested standoff is 45 metres but this will be determined by quantitative slope stability assessment
to be submitted with any planning application.

Soil Quality

The proposed site has been assessed against policy DM1 of the KMWLP which requires that
proposals demonstrate that there is no unacceptable adverse impact on the use of other land for
other purposes. This policy was prepared in line with the NPPF.

Natural England’s Agricultural Land Classification Map states that the site contains Grade 3 (Good to

Page 135 63



Moderate) soil. It is considered that while mineral extraction would result in a loss of this soil such a
loss would be temporary as the site would be restored to agricultural land.

PROW

The proposed site has been assessed against policy DM14 of the KMWLP which requires that where
proposals impact a PROW, they will only be permitted if; satisfactory prior provisions for diversion of
the PROW can be made which are convenient and safe for the PROWSs users, an acceptable
alternative route can be provided during operations and restoration, and opportunities to improve
countryside access are taken wherever possible. This policy was prepared in line with the NPPF
which sets out similar criteria.

There were several PROWSs running through the eastern parcel of the site, however as this has been
withdrawn, the allocation would not have any impacts on access provided by these PROWS.

Other footpaths run adjacent to the west of the site, and to the north, with one crossing the proposed
haul route. It is considered that diversions and screening can mitigate any impact on the PROW
network as necessary.

Services and Utilities

The proposed site has been assessed against policy DM11 of the KMWLP which requires that
proposals demonstrate that there is no unacceptable adverse impact on the use of other land for
other purposes. This policy was prepared in line with the NPPF.

Lenham sewage works are situated adjacent to the site and a sewer line cuts through the site.
Consultation with Southern Water has not revealed any insuperable obstacles to development of the
site which arise as a result of this infrastructure. Power lines cross the western section of the site, but
this area is no longer proposed for allocation.

Landscape and Visual Amenity

The proposed site has been assessed against policy DM2 of the KMWLP which aims to ensure that
there are no unacceptable adverse impacts on important landscapes, including the Kent Downs
AONB, and sets out the circumstances where impacts upon them would be acceptable. Policy DM2
notes that proposals outside, but within the setting of an AONB will be considered having regard to
the effect on the purpose of conserving and enhancing the natural beauty of the AONB. This policy
was prepared in line with the NPPF which sets out similar criteria. Impacts on visual amenity are
assessed against policy DM11 that seeks to ensure that minerals development is unlikely to
generate unacceptable adverse impacts from visual intrusion.

The site is approximately 1.5km to the south of the Kent Downs AONB and is considered be within
its setting.

A landscape assessment has been carried out which concluded that whilst mineral working will have
an impact on the long-range views from the AONB, these will likely not be significant.

The proposal was also assessed as likely to have an impact on the views from PROWSs and
residential properties surrounding the site. However, this was based on the site when the eastern
parcel was included. As this has now been removed, residential properties are now further away
from any mineral working and so the level of impact will be significantly reduced.

The Kent Downs AONB Unit stated that subject to the requirement for mitigation being included in

Page 136 64



any policy provision for the site, they did not object.

Mitigation would be provided by existing screening, including hedges on the boundaries of the site,
and this could be enhanced with additional planting including trees where appropriate. In particular
screening should address the exposed properties along Lenham Heath Road.

Subject to considerable attention being given to inclusion of appropriate and acceptable mitigation, it
is considered that the site could be developed without causing unacceptable impacts on the
landscape.

Need for the mineral

The proposed site has been assessed against policy CSM2 that sets out the requirements for the
supply of soft sand and silica sand. This policy was prepared in line with the NPPF.

Calculations regarding supply and demand based on 2017 data, taken together with an 18-year
landbank, suggest the shortfall is now in the order of 2.5mt for soft sand?. The yield from this site is
estimated to be 3.2mt.

The site is part of the Folkestone Formation (part of the Lower Greensand Group) and the
economically important aggregate yielding geological unit, a loosely consolidated to unconsolidated
marine (ancient beach) sand that is a unique part of the geological succession in Kent and the wider
South East. The material is generally free of contaminants (in its purest form it is referred to as
‘silica sand’) and is of a particle shape and size consistency that makes it suitable as a mortar sand
and its flow characteristics are such that it is often referred to a ‘soft sand’, it is also used as a
constituent in coated stone production, or asphalts.

An alternative to the land-won soft sands, that will provide a steady and adequate supply as required
by the National Planning Policy Framework, is unavailable at this time.

Neighbouring authorities support the allocation of sites suitable for the development of soft sand on
the basis that this would help address a wider issue that the vast majority of soft sand in the
unconstrained south east is being progressively exhausted, and much of what remains is
constrained by designations such as AONB’s or National Parks (such as the South Downs).

At this time, however there is no evidenced need to demonstrate a case to make significant over
provision in Kent to meet a regional need.

Cumulative Impact

The proposed site has been assessed against policy DM12 of the KMWLP which expects that
mineral development should not result in an unacceptable adverse, cumulative impact on the
environment or communities. This policy was prepared in line with the NPPF which sets out similar
criteria.

It is recognised that mineral working has taken place in the surrounding area in the past. The
KMWLP notes that cumulative impacts may occur where separate developments occur near to each
other and there is a need for such impacts to be taken into account. The assessment of potential
impacts which could arise form development in this location has not revealed that unacceptable
cumulative impacts would arise, however cumulative impacts will require further consideration if a
proposal were to come forward.

2 See Soft Sand Topic Paper 2018

Page 137 65



4.0 Conclusion - M3: Chapel Farm (West Site), Lenham

It is considered that the significant amendment to the site boundary (removal of the eastern parcel)
addresses many of the issues associated with mineral working in this location including access,
biodiversity and archaeology. The impact on amenity will also be reduced as residential properties
are now further away from the proposed mineral working.

It is considered that other matters can be addressed and satisfactorily mitigated through the normal
planning application process, seeking further views of consultees and technical advice where
appropriate. It is noted that the site is currently allocated for mineral working by saved policy CA6 in
the Kent Minerals Local Plan: Construction Aggregates 1993.

Therefore, it is considered that the site should be allocated with a requirement that any
application demonstrates compliance with the development management considerations,
with particular reference to:

Biodiversity

e Atleast a 15 metre buffer to be maintained around the Ancient Woodland at all times

e Lenham Quarry SSSI is approximately 800m from the site and Hart Hill SSSI is 2.5km
away; both are designated for their geological interest. Lenham Heath & Chilston Park and
Bull Heath Pit Local Wildlife Sites (LWS) are adjacent to the proposed site. Evidence to be
submitted with any planning application to confirm that the LWS and SSSis will not be
adversely impacted

o Woodland copse to the north-west corner of the site must be maintained

Landscape

¢ Detailed information setting out proposed mitigation of visual impacts and demonstrating
that the setting of the Kent Downs AONB will not be adversely impacted

Heritage

Nearby listed buildings include Royton Manor (Grade II*) and Chapel Mill (II), Vine House (1)
and Mount Castle Farm Cottage (ll). Consideration and mitigation of impacts on heritage
assets including listed buildings is required.

Water Resources

e Any application will need to be accompanied by an EIA with particular emphasis on the
site’s relationship and impact on the Great Stour

e Appropriate mitigation measures and monitoring will need to be implemented as per the
request of the Environment Agency, to demonstrate the following:

o Hydraulic continuity between those reaches of the Great Stour and associated
tributaries, if proven to be in part dependent on groundwater baseflow originating
from the adjoining aquifer (Folkestone Formation).

o The hydraulic integrity of the river is not compromised. In particular, the proposed
plans will need to recognise the function of the foremost transient reaches of the
Great Stour, which are dependent on both chalk escarpment seepage and surface
runoff contributions, where underlain by Gault Clay to the immediate north of
Chapel Farm. Any submission will need to account for this ‘contribution’, and the
plans cannot allow the Great Stour to become hydraulically ‘isolated’ from its
headwaters, irrespective of whether those watercourses are quantified as
ephemeral.

Page 138 66



o The underlining Sandgate Formation is not compromised, especially if the
Formation is shown to be acting as an aquiclude at Chapel Farm, and within the
immediate vicinity. Such a response is required to protect the Hythe Formation,
which is classified as a major water resources aquifer unit.

Transport and Access
e A detailed transport assessment to demonstrate compliance with KMWLP Policy DM13.
e The Transport Assessment should consider ability to access the site via rail, impacts on

the A20 and the Maidstone AQMA and show how any potential adverse impacts on this
AQMA will be mitigated.

Utilities

o Demonstration that sensitive receptors such as sewage lines, electricity pylons and the
railway lines will not be affected by land instability caused by the development.

e The functioning of the Lenham WWTW and other sewerage infrastructure must not be
adversely impacted

Health and Amenity

o Compliance with policy DM11 of the Kent Minerals and Waste Local Plan in respect of
health and amenity.
¢ Alighting, noise, dust, and vibration management plan should be completed, setting out

how unacceptable impacts will be avoided. A detailed dust assessment and management

plan should be submitted which follows best practice and any national Government
guidance (e.g. Planning Practice Guidance)

Page 139

67



M8: West Malling Sandpit, Ryarsh - Soft Sand (and 0.5mt silica sand)

Site Location Plan

Hilldene }

WOODGATE ROAD

=

Roughetts
Cottages

Church Far

AR

l’;lowendéfé'Bridge

= West Malling 7
- Industrial Park |/

| stubblesdown ‘\Q_j
Kasa ‘ The - 1:‘: '.I 4‘-1‘
'_ Woodlands Ty |7
bSta || Em
resl [ NI

' = & Crown Copyright and database right 201

Page 140

“Brook
Cottages

| [ S = = _____iCottages
L i o e S 5
[T -East Street ¥ \
TFarmhouse |
i I 3 ) \
L \ 1 — = _
22 ] East Street 'i
==t i
S
~ | Golf Course \\

T
£
[

FE

! IPartrig*
| Far

|
=
|

B T, 0

68



M8: West Malling Sandpit, Ryarsh - Promoter’s Indicative Proposal for
Working the Site

"'._ Planted screening bund ysing,
%, Site derived overburden

pralimenbomt

| 159000y

. Field Entrance

9 ::'?\l
\!

\ '%T
Diverted footpaths/Woedland #
e walk. Woodland to be , @

}| retained and improved < 3’,, L\
' o A\ S ,v:' )
e
— e = e g A\ asseoon
— e )

Le L West] ) U
L ....,(:\‘.:;;
13 ¢
g W} | E ‘
3 ; - g g

-

1.0 Matters add;essed Bv Detaiied Tecﬁnical Assessm"ent

Matters Identified by the Initial Site Assessment

As set out in section 3 of this report, the initial assessment of the site identified a number of matters
which would require further consideration, these were:

- Impact on landscape and the Kent Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB)

- Impact on biodiversity

- Impact on historic environment

- Impact on water environment

- Loss of grade 3 quality soil

Page 141

69



- Impact on local amenity

- Impact on the Green Belt

- Impact on Public Rights of Way (PROWS)

- Impact on utilities/services

- Access to the site and associated impacts on the highway network

- Cumulative impacts with other developments and quarrying operations within the area

Matters Raised During the Options Consultation

The matters raised during the public consultation on this site are summarised below.

Views of key organisations

A summary of the responses from key organisations, including statutory consultees, is set out below
which sets out the nature and extent of the concerns of such consultees especially with regard to the
matters listed above.

Environment Agency — No objection in principle.
The site is located in SPZ3, so waste activities should be avoided.

As the proposal includes the importation of inert waste to restore the site to existing levels, this will
require an environmental permit.

No concerns regarding flood risk.

Any application would need to be accompanied by an Environmental Impact Assessment with
emphasis towards demonstrating the relationship between the reach of the Leybourne Stream that
bounds the southern flank of the proposed working.

Appropriate mitigation measures, substantiated through a detailed programme of monitoring, will be
necessary to demonstrate that the workings will not have a detrimental impact on the following:

- Hydraulic continuity between susceptible reaches of the Leybourne Stream, if proven to be in
part dependent on groundwater baseflow originating from the adjoining aquifer (Folkestone
formation)

- The underlining Sandgate Formation is not compromised, especially if the Formation is
shown to be acting as aquiclude at West Malling Sandpit, and within the immediate vicinity.
Such a response is required to protect the Hythe Formation, which is classified as a major
water resources aquifer unit.

Dependent on the proposed ways of working, Abstraction License 9/40/02/0020/SR potentially could
be at risk of derogation, being located approximately 250m to the north west of the northern most
curtilage of the quarry.

A licence should be sought from the Environment Agency should there be a requirement to dewater
the site.

Page 142 70



Natural England — The site is within the setting of the Kent Downs AONB, therefore views of the
AONB unit should be taken into consideration. A Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA)
will be required with any planning application.

The site is within the Impact Risk Zone (IRZ) for the Trottiscliffe Meadows SSSI, therefore extraction
would need to avoid any hydrological impacts on the SSSI.

Highways England - Would have concern if the site affected the drainage, land or structure of the
Strategic Route Network.

Historic England - No specific comment

Public Health England— Risk of crystalline silica (quartz) exposure to members of the public is
much lower than occupational exposure. Non-occupational exposure to quartz can occur through the
use of certain cosmetics, paints, pet litter, and other household or craft items.

On mineral sites which are well managed with control measures in place to manage environmental
concentrations of particulate matter off-site, concentrations remain below those associated with long
or short-term impacts. However, additional detail is required (such as that which would be available
at planning application stage) before further, site specific comments can be made.

Surrey County Council - Supports inclusion of two soft sand sites as this will give a surplus of soft
sand over the plan period and recognises that soft sand supplies in Kent are relatively abundant
whereas other parts of the southeast are constrained by protective designations such as AONBs and
National Parks.

East Sussex County Council (ESCC) - Paragraph 2.12 of the Kent Minerals Sites Plan (Options
document) recognises the role that Kent soft sand plays in the South East of England and states that
the proposed two soft sand sites would provide a surplus which may help meet increasing demand in
other areas and for exports. There is a shortage of soft sand within the South East, all of the soft
sand within East Sussex is within the South Downs National Park which is highly constrained.

In the absence of sources to meet the constructional needs of East Sussex within East Sussex, it is
hoped imports of soft sand from Kent can continue. ESCC Strongly supports the two sites put
forward for allocation.

West Sussex County Council (WSCC) - pleased to note that two suitable sites have been identified
for allocation, which will meet the calculated shortfall of 1.9 million tonnes as set out in Kent’s LAA.
The sites identified would provide around 7.1mt, therefore a surplus of around 5 million tonnes of soft
sand. A surplus allocation in Kent would provide some certainty that the shortfall in soft sand
supplies in West Sussex could be met from beyond West Sussex where the resource is constrained
by the South Downs National Park.

Due to the unique constraints in the South East, allocation of the two sites (Chapel Farm & West
Malling) would be justified as it would reduce reliance as a whole in the South East of extraction from
protected areas, such as the South Downs National Park. NPPF Paragraph 145 requires MPAs to
make provision, taking account of the advice of the AWP. The South East AMR shows that there are
supply issues in the South East, therefore it would be justified to consider allocating a surplus
through the Kent Mineral Sites Plan.

Page 143 71



South Downs National Park (SDNPA) — The key issue is the provision of soft sand as the main
source of sand is within the SDNP and heavily constrained. SDNPA is keen to work with authorities
in the wider area to ensure that soft sand is identified and able to be worked in the most sustainable
locations.

In line with national policy and guidance, particularly NPPF paragraphs 114, 115 and 116 and the
additional guidance in the PPG, the SDNPA supports:
- the statements included in paragraph 2.12 about the relative abundance of soft sand within
Kent and the constraint on resources particularly within national parks; and
- the proposed allocation for two soft sand sites within the proposed options for the KCC
Minerals Plan.

Tonbridge and Malling Brough Council — Noted that minerals can only be worked where they
naturally occur and that minerals are an important material for construction.

The site does not conflict with the development strategy in the Borough Council’'s emerging Local
Plan. The following matters should be given particular consideration when deciding whether or not to
allocate the site:

- Impact on the amenity of nearby properties by way of noise, dust, vibration and lighting.

- Impact on the local highway network. Including the impacts upon the integrity of properties,

pedestrian safety and air quality.

- Impacts on the Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP) habitat, Ancient Woodland and the SSSI.

- Water contamination.

- Impact on the Kent Downs AONB landscape designation

Ryarsh Parish Council — Strong objection on the following grounds:
Adverse impact on traffic:

- Road infrastructure (i.e. country roads) unsuitable to accommodate quarry traffic/HGVs, and
the local road network is at full capacity already. This has become worse in recent years
since the introduction of new housing developments such as Ryarsh Park and Leybourne
Chase.

- Quarry traffic will use Ryarsh and Birling to get to or from the M20 or A20.

- The Roughetts Road and A20 junction is hazardous.

- Roughetts Road is only about 6 metres wide at one point and is too narrow for two lorries to
pass safely. Vehicles will travel extremely close to pedestrians on the narrow pavement on
Roughetts Road. Better lighting would be required.

Impact on air quality:

- Prevailing south west wind means dust from the sandpit will cover the whole area, including
Ryarsh, Ryarsh Park and Leybourne Chase. There will be an unacceptable risk to health of
residents due to silica dust e.g. risk of COPD and silicosis.

- Pollution will be caused by lorries travelling to and from the site.

Noise from digging, quarrying and from vehicle movements, especially in the summer and with
prevailing winds will affect the locality. The site is so close too residential properties that mitigation to
make the site acceptable is impossible. Parts of the village are already experiencing noise levels
above WHO/EEA recommended levels.

The site would have an adverse impact on public rights of way which go through site as these will be
lost - they are widely used and form a vital connection between Ryarsh and Addington.

Page 144 72



There will be adverse cumulative impacts due to other quarries in the area.

The site is within the Green Belt and a quarry is inappropriate development in the Green Belt. TMBC
Local Plan Green Belt Study September 2016 states that Ryarsh “retains a rural feel with open
fields” and refers to “the smaller nature of the settlement”; “the village is small” and regarding
openness has “a generally open landscape with open fields and a lack of urbanising features — a

typical rural, Kentish landscape”.

There will be a detrimental impact on the landscape character. The site is within the Kent Downs
AONB and would have an adverse impact on its setting.

There will be a detrimental visual impact on the local and wider landscape area. Impacts on views
cannot be mitigated by landscaping due to the proximity of neighbouring properties, the A20 and
Roughetts Road.

There are nationally important archaeological sites in the area including The Coldrum Stones,
Addington Long Barrow and St Michael & All Angels Church in Offham. Quarry will damage heritage
assets. St Martin’s Church, Ryarsh is the nearest to the site and will be most impacted. The
proposal would affect a number of listed buildings in the vicinity of the site.

There will be adverse impact on the extremely important aquifer on the site.
There will be an adverse impact flora and fauna including ancient and BAP deciduous woodland.

There is no need for soft sand which can be sourced from existing sites and imported via wharves.
Alternative materials could also be used. The calculation of need is incorrect. It must be possible to
obtain purer silica sand from Surrey.

There is no need for new landfill and creating new voids in new quarries may create filling problems.

Obijection to the initial screening assessment

Birling Parish Council — Objects to the potential allocation. The following grounds are raised:
- impact upon the surrounding communities and the locality — traffic, noise, dust,
landscape and visual impact, green belt, public rights of way and cumulative impact
- the initial assessment process was flawed
- the extent of need for soft sand has not been fully justified

Addington Parish Council — Objects to the proposal. The following grounds are raised:

- impact of further quarry on local infrastructure and residential amenity is unacceptable
- impact upon heritage, landscape, ancient woodland and local amenity

- air quality impacts

- unacceptable traffic impacts

- need not proven

Page 145 73



Kings Hill Parish Council —Strongly objects to the proposal on the following grounds:
- traffic impact
- impact upon amenity — dust, air quality, noise, PROWSs and light pollution
- Impact on Green Belt
- Landscape impact
Supports the views of the many who have objected to the proposal

Leybourne Parish Council — Objects to the proposal. The following grounds are raised:

- Environmental Impact including air quality and health
- Inadequate transport infrastructure and impact upon local roads
- Existing traffic problems will be exacerbated

Offham Parish Council — Objection on the following grounds:
- Impacts from dust and health risks to the community
- Unacceptable impact on traffic and local roads
- Supports the objection from Offham Church and the need to protect this historic building

West Malling Parish Council — Concerns raised in respect of need, traffic, pollution and health risks
and restoration of the site.

Kent Downs AONB Unit — The site is within the setting of the Kent Downs AONB. Views to the
south from the AONB were a principal reason for the designation and are a feature which merits
protection — this means the impact of proposals on views from the AONB need careful consideration.
While views of the site from the AONB appear relatively limited, a visual impact assessment should
be undertaken prior to allocation.

To avoid and minimise impacts on the AONB, appropriate and advanced landscaping would be
needed as well as consideration of working methods to ensure a large area does not remain open.

Restoration to agricultural land, including reinstatement of hedgerows and hedgerow trees (to ensure
restored levels are comparable with existing) would be supported.

PROW crossing the site which provide access to the AONB will need diversion.

Access to the site should be to/from the south to avoid use of rural lanes within the AONB to the
north

CPRE - The allocation of the site is premature pending the outcome of the forthcoming Local
Aggregates Assessment (LAA) and soft sand study.

Whilst the omission of extraction adjoining residential properties is welcomed, there is no indication
that this part of the site will be safeguarded from extraction indefinitely. This assurance is necessary
to avoid negative impacts on the residents.

The site is crossed by two footpaths which originate in a protected open space on the western
boundary of the site; the West Malling Golf Club. Restoration should occur in tandem with the
extraction to ensure that disruption to the footpa